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ASSEMBLY, No. 2001 

STATE OF NEW JERSEY 
INTRODUCED SEPTEMBER 22, 1980 

By Assemblymen BOltNliJ<;IMFJlt, 'l'. GALLO, KOSCO, ALBOHN, 

D. GALLO, HURLl<W, VAN WAGNFJR, FLYNN and BURSTEIN 

Referred to Committee on Banking and Insurance 

AN AcT conceming certain policies of life insurance other than 

group or blauket and supplementing chapter 25 of 'l'itle 17B of 

the New Jersey Statutes. 

1 BE IT ENACTED uy the Senate and General Assembly of the State 

2 of New Jersey: 

1 1. As used in this act: 

2 a. "Collateral term policy" means a policy of life insurance, 

3 other than group or blanket, which requires an insured to provide 

4 collateral as security instead of paying an initial additional pre-

5 mium, and which may provide that if the policy lapses or is sur-

6 rendered during its term, the collateral may be used to pay what 

7 is, in effect, an additional premium because of the lapse or sur-

8 render. 

9 b. "Additional f1rst year premium policy" means a term, modi-

10 fied term, modified life or other policy of life insurance which is a 

11 combination of an endowment and term policy and which provides 

12 that an additional f1rst year premium shall be paid so that certain 

13 values and options will be available at the end of the initial term 

14 period, which premium is forfeited in whole or in part if the policy 

15 terminates for any reason, other than death. 

1 2. N.J. S. 17B:25-19 shall apply to the following policies in the 

2 following manner: 

3 a. With respect to additional first year premium policies which 

4 do not convert to or become whole life policies: 

5 (1) Values required during the initial and any renewal term 

6 period shall be determined by treating the policy as a level benefit 

7 and level premium endowment for the cash value or cash payment 

8 provided at the end of the term period plus a term insurance bene-

9 fit provided by a supplementary policy provision to which, if issued 

10 as a separate policy, this section would not apply. 



11 (2) If the policy contains an option or provision hy which pre-

12 miums continue for decrpasing term coverage, the maml tests of 

13 values for the policy apply. 

14 b. With respect to a<lllitional first year premium policies which 

15 convert to or become whole life policies: 

16 (1) Values required during the initial and any renewal term 

17 period shall he determined hy treati11g the policy as a level benefit 

18 and lcvd premium cndownwnt for the cash value or cash payment 

19 provided at the cud of the term period plus a term insurance benefit 

20 provided by a supplementary policy provisiou to which, if issued 

21 as a separate policy, this section would not apply. 

22 (2) Values required after the initial term period shall be de-

23 termined by treating the e11tire policy as modified whole life. 

1 3. 'l'he form of a11 additi01ml first year premium policy that 

2 provides term insurance for au initial term period am! then auto-

3 matically converts to a whole life policy shall include a statement 

4 in the title of the policy that the coverage automatically converts 

5 to whole life at the end of the term period, and shall include a table 

6 showing the annual cash values during the initial term of the 

7 policy and the additional first year premium. 

1 4. In connection with advertising and sales o£ additional first 

2 year premium policie~, the following ~hall he an uufair trade prac-

3 tice and subject to the provisions of clmpter 30 of 'l'itle 17ll of 

4 the New Jersey Statutes: 

5 a. 'l'he use of advertisements, sales materials, and sales presen-

6 tations which fail to fully ami fair\~· inform an applicant or pros-

7 pective insured as to future premium dmnges, benefits, and related 

8 opinions. 

9 b. The use of any term in the name given the policy that implies 

10 a deposit or any similar term associated with fuud accumulations 

11 and investment contracts. 

12 c. The use of the term "deposit" to describe the additional first 

13 year premium and its use in reference to the cash value. 

14 d. The use of any statement or illustration in any advertisement, 

15 sales material, or sales presentation which makes reference to such 

16 terms as ''deposit,'' ''accumulation,'' ''interest at a certain per-

17 ceniagc, ''and similar terms associated with fund accumulations and 

18 investment contracts where life contingencies are involved. 

1.9 e. The making of any statement or usc of an illustration show-

20 ing a comparison between the endowment value or any specific 

21 cash value anrl the excess of the first year's premium over the 

22 renewal premium which impli<>s that the enrlowment or cash value 

23 arises solely from that excess. 
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f. The use of percentages figures or words such as "earn 8% per 

year interest on your additional premium" to represent the rela­

tionship of the eash values to the additional first year premium. 

g. The use of such terms as "investment," "profit," "tax free," 

"return," "double your money," and terms of similar import to 

describe the insurance policy, additional first year premium, or any 

portion of the insurance purchase. 

h. The failure to include information that explains what happens 

to the additional first year premium if the policy is terminated 

prior to the end of the term period. 

i. The failure to show separately and identify properly the pre­

mium for the insurance and the additional first year premium. 

j. The failure to show information about related or companion 

sales of annuity contracts or mutual funds separately from ad­

ditional first year premium policy information in marketing ma­

terials where the contracts, funds, and insurance are not part of 

the same contract. 

5. This act shall take effect 30 days after enactment. 

STATEMENT 

This bill regulates additional first year premium life insurance 

policies. These policies, often referred to as "deposit term" poli­

cies, require the payment of a premium in the first contract year 

higher than a level series of premiums in the renewal contract 

years. The excess of the first year premium over the renewal year 

premiums is sometimes described as a "deposit." 

Because consumers are often confused as to the purpose of the 

"deposit," the ·supposed savings on premiums and other items re­

lated to the marketing of these policies, the Life and Health Insur­

ance Code should contain provisions which insure an informed 

decision on the part of an insurance buyer when considering the 

purchase of additional first year premium policies. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN JAMES W. BORNHEIMER (CHAIRMAN): We will call this public hearing to 

order. •rhere is no n<ced for a quorum of the Committee as long as the Chainnan of 

the Committee or a member of the Committee is ~resent. 

Let me make an opening statement by explaining that the hearing today 

is on Assembly Bill 2001, dealing with deposit ter1n insurance. I want to clear 

the air for all those pr~sent. This is not to strike a death blow to deposit term insur­

ance or anything else. The purpose of this hearing is to make members of this Committee 

aware and make the public aware of this type of insurance and make everybody aware 

of what deposit term is. There have been a lot of misnomers about deposit 

term, pro and con. So, today, we may have a clearing of the air from both sides 

of the question, and an understanding of the subject. 

To update things, there have been m~etings by the Insurance Department 

dealing with deposit term, where they have been talking about some sort of regulations, 

but the Commissioner would have to speak to ~hose and give you information about 

that. Your industry was represented and also the counterpart of the industry was 

represented. I was not pL·ivy to the meeting and I am not aware of what happened 

at th~ meeting. 

So, for all those present, I want you to understand that everything 

you testify to today will be taken and recorded and will become a permanent document 

so that the Committee will have an understanding of what deposlt term is, what it 

does, how it is administered, what its purposes are, how the general public is 

treated, what the delivery system is, and so forth. 

Therefore, we will start the puolic hearing with the first speaker. 

The first person to testify today will be Joseph McMichael. Let me add 

something here. Anyone who testifies will come up to the microphone 

at Mr. Doyle's desk. Another thing, ii there is anyone who wishes to testify and who 

hasn't been recorded on the list, would you come up and speak to Laurine Puro~a, 

the Aide to the Committee, and give her your name. You will then be added to the list. 

J>,r. Mchichae 1? 

J 0 S E P H w. M c M I C H A E L: Good morning, Mr. Chairman. My name is Joseph 

W. McMichael, Jr., CLU. I am PretiidenL of the New Jersey State Association of Life 

Underwriters. Our Association is comprised of 16 local associations throughout 

the state, with a combined membership of more than 3,400 life insurance agents. 

I am accompanied by the Chairman of our Law and Legislation Committee, Russell 

Benke. Every officer in our State Association is here coday and another 75 members 

throughout the state have accompanied us. 

My purpose for being here today is to express our Association's strong 

support for Assembly Bill A-2001. 

At the outtiet, we would like to make it clear that we are not opposed 

to the sale of term life insurance. According to the "1980 Life Insurance Fact 

Book", $10.7 billion of life insurance was sold in New Jersey in 1979. Oi that 

amount, roughly 61% or $6.6 billion was term insurance. The National Association 

of Life Underwriter6, head~uartered in Washington D.C., estimates that our membership 

wrote 94% of that $6.6 billion. 

Deposit term, however, is another matter. In the Fall of 1977, our 

Association bega;1 to receive numerous c0mplaints from our members abuut what appeared 

to be a concerted and massive effort to replace existing permanent life insurance 

policies. That practice has not abated in its intensiLy. Since the ~ricing of iife 
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insurance products is, in part, impacted by replacements, the consumer is adversely 

affected when replacements occur. Further, all of the protecciv0 provisions, such as 

incontestibility clauses, are forfeited when a replacement results. vve received no­

tice recently that of 35,000 claims made on life insurance policies issued within 

the first 12 months, all of which would be contestible, if the policy is replaced, 

the contestibility feature that was in the former contract was already forfeited. 

Therefore, those 35,000 claims, if they were all replacements, wwuld be contested. 

It may be important to define for you what the product called deposit 

term is. Actually, the name was created by insurance companies to enha11ce its marketing. 

The typical deposit term contract has two features: term life insurance and a pure 

endowment. The contract usually makes two promises: (1) to pay a stipulated sum 

of money if the insured dies during the policy ~eriod--this is the term insurance 

feature; and (2) to pay a stipulated smaller sum if the insured survives the period. 

This is the pure endowment feature. 

The marketing concept of deposit term life insurance suggests to the 

public that the large difference between the first and subsequent annual premiums 

represents a "deposit", which is returned at the end of the initial policy period 

at some multiple of the original "deposit", if the insured persists--which means 

he keeps on paying the premiums--and survives--which means that he doesn't die. 

Actually, all that can be said accurately is that a deposit term policy's first 

year premium is higher than its subsequent premiums. 

In February of 1979, our Association filed with the New Jersey Department 

of Insurance a written and extensive complaint regarding the abuses which are taking 

place in the marketing of deposit term insurance. In my hand is a copy of that 

complaint. Since then, we've sup~lied the Department with considerable, additional 

documentation. Much of the material supplied to the Department is being provided 

to you today in this forum. We are grateful there are a number of legislators who 

have taken the initiative by introducing this legislation. Last Wednesday, as you 

noted, the Insurance Department did conduct a meeting with some of the parties concerned 

with this legislation. The Department proposed to correct one of the abuses to 

which this legislation addresses itself. We believe regulation, especially if it 

takes the form of what was made available to us at that meeting, will only oover 

over the abuses. On the other hand, we believe regulation, if applied effectively 

to this legislation, will put to rest the abuses which concern us. 

We support this legislation because of three concerns: (1) The use 

by some insurance companies of marketing techniques which are designed to confuse 

the public; (2) An inordinately high front end commission schedule,"which attracts 

the individual who is motivated by greed; and (3) The use by some agents of outrageous, 

malicious and often inflammatory literature, which misleads and deceives the J?Ublic. 

Samples of marketing literature of two insurance companies are attached 

to our statement. You will find them in Exhibits lA and lB. They are representative 

of what is now in use. 

We would like to focus your attention on two pronouncements in this 

literature: 

1. Each insurance company contends that deposit term is anexcellent 

buy because the lapse factor has been almost or entirely eliminated from ~he cost 

of the product. To lapse means to discontinue the payment of premiums before the 

expiration date of the policy. 
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To guarantee that the lapse factor is eliminated, insurance companies 

require the purchaser to pay a large additional first year premium. If the policy 

lapses during the ten year period for which the contract is drawn, the policy forfeits 

some or all of his large additional premium. The insurance companies do not emphasize 

this forfeiture contingency in their literature. 

2. Each insurance company contends it will return the large additional 

premium at the end of ten years with interest, which is ~ax-free,and that is false. 

Herbert S. Denenberg, former Insurance Commissioner of Pennsylvania 

and a former Professor of Insurance, Wharton School, University of Pennsylvania, 

stated on the subject of the tax-free interpretation, "It gives off the impression 

of a rich and guaranteed return when no such return may even be promised, much less 

delivered. First, the return is contingent. It is aleatory, a mere gamble. It 

depends on the policyholder continuing the policy for a specified period, a contingency 

often beyond his con~rol or ability to predict. So, he buys, subject to an inherent 

contingent event not fully stressed in the typical sales plan or pitch. 

"Second, the return of the deposit may be deceptive in another sense. 

The policy can be structured so the return looks extraordinary, when, in fact, it 

may be principal as well as interest that is being returned . 

"Deposit term is founded on forfeiture, is structured to lead to mis­

representation and misunderstanding, is a likely tool of fraud and deception and 

is a sorry example of life insurance competition by confusion." 

Joseph M. Beth, Professor of Insurance, School of Business, Indiana 

University, a respected and well-known consumer advocate, in discussing deceptive 

marketing practices and particularly the amount of interest the insured will earn 

on the deposit stated, "In my opinion, use of this method of presen·cation constitutes 

a deceptive sales practice." 

He suggested that insurance be required to ~rovide a prospective purchaser 

of deposit term with a disclosure statement which delineates the rate of return 

on the deposit on a year-by-year basis throughout the entire ten years. On page 

4 of his remarks, the yield in his analysis was a minus 100% for the first eight 

years in the contract he reviewed, and was not 7.2% until the tenth year. We support 

his suggestion enthusiastically. 

In a letter to the editor of "T.he National Underwriter", dated 4-18-78, 

while a private citizen, William A. White, now Chief Life and Health Actuary 

in the New Jersey State Insurance Department, made a statement regarding the tax-

free interest rate. He remarked, "The acknowledged fact is that there is not a 

necessary relationship between the deposit and the endowment amount. An endowment 

arises not from the deposit, but from the portions of the level premiums of principal. 

From an actuarial viewpoint, it is ~retically possible to establish any relationship 

between the deposit and the endowment amount and, as a practical matter, the only 

constraint is the gullibility of the consumer. It seems apparent that deposit t~rm 

presents an opportunity for misrepresentation tu the public through deliberately 

designing such policies to mislead." 

We've attached a copy of the entire reamrks of Messrs. Denenberg, 

Belth and White and you will find them in Exhibits 2,3, and 4. 

Our Association is also concerned wich the replacement tactics of 

some of the deposit term companies. On March 20, 1978, Jack McKewen, CLU, then 

President of 'rhe Million Dollar Round Table, presented The Million Dollar Round 

Table's position paper on replacement to the replacement panel of the Life Insurance 
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Marketing Research Association, which you will find in Exhibit 5. The Million Dollar 

Round Table is an organization for outstanding life insurance underwriters throughout 

the world. In 1979, the Million Dollar Round Table had 17,205 members. Mr. McKewen 

stated, "There are really two kinds of replacement activity: that which occurs 

between major companies and that which is manufactured by orga1itized, replacement 

oriented insurers whose primary marketing thrust is replacement." Mr. McKewen continued 

by stating, "The most dangerous form of replacement is that which manufactured by 

companies whose principal thrust is to seek out any whole life contract and make 

it game for replacement." 

We believe a deposit term policy is devised to make certain that 

the replacement-oriented company does not lose business the same way it got it in 

the first place, by replacement. It does so by severely puni~hing the buyer who 

lapses his contract. 

Some companies merchandising this product make it clear to their agents 

that the replacement of existing policies is the way to sell deposit term. In fact, 

a number of the deposit term companies have become so sophisticated in their replacement 

techniques that they have built the replacement forms into a computer ~rogram. We've 

included a copy of one company's forms and you will find them on Exhibit 6. If 

you review them carefully, we'll wager you will not understand them any more than 

the public does. 

One reason companies advocate replacement of exist.ing insurance is 

that deposit term is supposed to have a lower cost. In an article written by Harold 

Skipper, Ph.D, Assistant Professor of Insurance, Georgia State University, he stated, 

"But, more importantly, results suggest that the priced advantages, which the theory 

behind the deposit term promises, may not have yet materialized in the marketplace. 

For the average deposit term product in this sample, the comsumer may have been 

in a superior financial PJSition if he or she purchased the same company's non-deposit 

term product rather than the deposit term insurance." You will find his statement 

in Exhibit 7. Deposit term is not the lowest cost life insurance product in the 

marketplace, and arguments to the contrary will not change that fact. 

To add economic injury to insult, the buyer of deposit term must raise 

his additional first year premium from his personal resources. Unfortunately, this 

is usually done by either cashing out or borrowing existing insurance cash values, 

against which there are no forfeitures whatsoever. Thus, the buyer of deposit term 

is convinced to change non-forfeitable cash to a forfeitable deposit, often with 

the only beneficiary of that transaction being the agent who is paid an extraordinarily 

high front-end commission. 

Moreover, at the end of each ten year period, the deposit term policyholder 

typically must select from one of four options: (1) He may lapse his policy and 

collect his deposit and thereby lose his insurance coverage; (2) He may continue 

the policy as deposit term, but his term rate, however, will be higher because of 

age and his deposit will be subjected to forfeiture for another ten years; (3) He 

may exchange his policy for decreasing term and collect his deposit; or (4) His 

policy au~tically will be converted to whole life insurance. 

You should understand the subtlety of what takes place under option 

four. As mentioned earlier, deposit term is being sold primarily as a replacement 

for existing whole life insurance, usually because existing cash values are pirated 

to pay the high first year additional premium. If, at the end of ten years, the 

deposit term policyholder does not elect options 1, 2, or 3, he automatically 
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is converted back to whole lifeJ a policy form he was told was not a good deal ten 

years earlier. 

The deposit term agent, however, has the best of all worlds. On the 

original sale, he earns first year commissions as high as 265% of the term premium. 

He've attached a typical commission schedule for your review and you can find that 

on Exhibit 8. At the beginning of the next ten year period, the agent earns another 

commission, the size of which depends on the option selected by the buyer. 

Our Association believes these high commissions are necessary to sell 

an inferior, overpriced product which benefits the company and the agent at the 

expense of the public. 

Although members of our Association can sell deposit term and are 

obviously are interested in making money, we strongly believe deposit term is 

in the consumer's best interest, or else we would be buying for ourselves and selling 

it to others. 

I would like to pause for a moment from my notes so that you under­

stand what we are talking about here. If I am an individual who has life insurance 

policies in which there is a cash value of say $1,000, and I am convinced that 

the product I have is not what I should have, but I should have deposit-term, I 

am asked to take the $1,000, byborrowing against my policies and cashing 

them out and transferring them to a deposit-term contract. The reason I am told 

to do that is because the policy will not lapse; in fact, I continue paying the 

premium, a'nd at the end of ten years I will get my money back, compounded, tax 

free, with interest. Now, what I have done in that transaction is, I have taken 

money on which I have total rights - they are not forfeitable; I can get that money 

at any time - and I have transferred them to a policy in which I have no rights 

until the policy expiration period. If at the end of ten years I do not elect to 

take my deposit from the insurance company, and I choose to go the deposit road 

for another ten years, at the point that I make that decision the cash that is again 

non-forfeitable to me becomes forfeitable again for another ten years. If I do not 

choose that route and I go the whole life route, and they take my deposit and use 

it to convert me back to what I had ten years earlier, I lose my cash again. Every 

time that occurs, I lose access to my cash, and the only thing that is happening is 

that somebody is earning a commission on my transactions. 

You should note that New York State has no problem with deposit term. 

We believe the reason is that a maximum commission scale of 55% is permitted 

there on term products, including deposit term. The experience in New York is a 

clear indication to us that a commission scale of 265% is the reason that deposit 

term agents find the product so attractive here in New Jersey. 

If Assembly Bill 2001 is enacted, it is our belief it will require 

insurance companies to restructure deposit term contracts to include protective 

provisions - we call them non-forfeiture - for the policyholder, which, in turn, 

will drive down commissions. This will make replacement of whole life contracts 

with deposit term less attractive to the self-serving agent. By requiring the 

inclusion of protective provisions in the policy form, the insurance companies 

can be expected to structure their commission scales to include renewal commissions. 

Such a change will at least impose on the companies and the agents the responsi­

bility to service the business they have sold. Presently, an agent gets most, 

or all,of his commission in the first year. As a result, he has neither loyalty 
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to the insurance company, nor interest in the policyholder until the tenth 

year. This is because he doesn't have to concern himself with servicing 

his business to collect renewal commissions or service fees, since there 

are usually none paid. 

Lastly, we would like to turn your attention to some of the outrageous 

and deceptive marketing literature being used by a number of agents who 

sell deposit term. 

Here is a copy of the "Federal Trade Commission Report on Life 

Insurance Marketing and Cost Disclosure." This was issued in July, 1979. 

Also, here is what purports to be an abridgment of that Report. I would 

like you to see the difference. We have given you a copy of this abridgement 

in exhibit 9. This looks to be very official. It even has an eagle on 

the front of it; but, in fact, little, if any, of the material contained 

in the abridged version is from the actual report. The abridged version 

is used to mislead the public into believing the Federal Trade Commission 

Report supports the contentions of the agent in his attempt to replace existing 

cash value policies with deposit term. 

Another brochure is entitled: "Plain English About Life Insurance 

From Consumers Information Service." You will find that in exhibit 10. 

It purports to supply information which has been developed by the "Consumers 

Information Service," whatever that is. Listen to the derogatory statements 

from this brochure. I would like the insurance companies who are sitting 

here to listen to some of the things their agents are using: "If you bought 

a policy that has a savings feature, you and your family are victims of 

the biggest consumer fraud in history. By planned confusion, deceptive 

sales practices, and even brainwashing to a certain degree, the life insurance 

industry is swindling millions of Americans." Imagine, gentlemen, these 

malicious statements are being made by an individual whom we assume is licensed 

to sell life insurance in New Jersey. 

The last piece of literature we have provided is entitled: "The 

Multi-Billion Dollar Life Insurance Rip-Off." You can find that in exhibit 

ll. This four-page piece of trash characterizes insurance companies, their 

agents, and insurance commissioners as dishonest, ignorant, and self-dealing. 

This literature includes the following closing comments: "If this article 

has come into your hands by way of a life insurance agent, you can say: 

'there's a person who has nothing to hide.' Ask him or her to help you 

eliminate or replace unneeded, outmoded, or over-priced policies." 

It is our contention that these and many other similar pieces 

of literature are misleading, deceptive, constitute an unfair trade practice, 

and appear to be blatant misrepresentations which border on twisting, as 

defined in the New Jersey State Insurance Code. They are being used by 

agents who base their whole careers entirely on replacing business created 

by others, solely for their own enrichment. And, unfortunately, there are 

managements of a few insurance companies who thoughtlessly have and are 

encouraging these agents to raid other companies' business. 

Gentlemen, New Jersey is not the only state to experience the 

problems of deposit term. We have attached to our presentation copies of 

rulings, and/or comments on deposit term from the following states or organiza­

tions: Delaware, Illinois, Indiana, Michigan, Mississippi, Missouri, New 
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Hampshire, Oklahoma, Pennsylvania, South Dakota, Vermont, Washington, and 

the National Association of Insurance Commissioners Task Force on Deposit 

Term. You will find them in exhibits 12a through 12m. In addition, we 

understand there are hearings being conducted in Alabama, Tennessee, and 

Texas, all on the same concerns. 

All of these states, either through their legislatures or insurance 

commissioners, have had to take, or are taking, steps to correct some of 

the same flagrant abuses to which New Jersey buyers of deposit term currently 

are being subjected. 

The noted financial columnist, Sylvia Porter, often is misquoted 

by deposit term advocates as a spokesperson who supports the deposit term 

concept. We have included her most recent statement on the subject in which 

she unequivocally cautions potential buyers about the same concerns we have 

expressed today. We ask you to look at exhibit 13 for her comments. 

In summary, it is our belief that the passage of A-2001 will accomplish 

the following things: 

1. Insurance companies will be required to redesign their deposit 

term products to provide protective provisions for those who purchase these 

policies. 

2. These protective provisions will drive down commissions and, 

thus, discourage the wholesale pirating by self-serving agents of existing 

permanent insurance policies. 

3. Literature now in use by some insurance companies will include 

a disclosure to the public on a yearly basis, the actual return on the higher 

first year premium. Insurance companies will not be allowed to state the 

additional premium is compounded tax-free, which is false, and they will 

not be permitted to make misleading statements which cause the public to 

believe it is getting a superior product because it is sold to "good guys 

who don't lapse their policiE:s." 

4. Deceptive, malicious and flagrant statements made in literature 

by some agents will be outlawed. 

5. Offenders will be subjected to regulation by the insurance 

department which will be accorded justification to remove an insurance company's 

products from the market, and cause an agent to turn in his license for 

such reprehensible acts of conduct as we have described here today. 

The New Jersey State Association of Life Underwriters sincerely 

wishes to express its appreciation to you for the opportunity to appear 

here this morning to express our views on this important issue. Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BORNHEIMER: Thank you. I would like to bring every­

body's attention to the fact that Assemblyman Mike Adubato has arrived, 

and Assemblyman Lou Kosco has also arrived. They are both members of the 

Committee. 

Are there any questions of the witness? Mike. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: I would like to start off by identifying 

my other hat. I have been in the life insurance business for twenty years. 

I am still in the life insurance business; that's how I make my livelihood, 

outside of politics, which is usually an expense. 

I would like to say that my first seven years in the industry 

I worked for a management type company, and when I left that company, I 
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was the youngest manager, to my knowledge, in the State of New Jersey, of 

any major life insurance company. I then went with another company, who 

I am presently with, as an independent general agent; which means, for the 

two or three laymen that may be in the room today, that I don't receive 

any salary from the company, and I am a producing general agent. I make 

this clarification because in the past seven years I have probably been 

one of the loudest and strongest critics of the insurance industry, in all 

phases. At the same time, some people consider that I am fair in that criticism. 

I would like to ask Mr. Mchichael about his experience. When 

the first, or the initial, ten year period arises and the automatic provision 

that would convert to whole life sets in, what has been your experience 

in dealing with the primary companies that deal with deposit term in the 

equity position of the cash values comparable to another contract with 

maybe another company that doesn't deal primarily with deposit term, as 

far as the cash value build-ups are concerned? Do you find that they are 

comparable, or are the companies automatically switching to deposit term 

in their bottom line -- their cost factor, say, over the next ten years 

or fifteen years, or whatever? Have you ever projected that? 

MR. MC MICHAEL: First off, the product is new in this State. 

There have not been contracts that have run the ten year period. 

Number two, the product that's converted to automatic 

if it goes to whole life is non-par contract. Many of the contracts that 

are being replaced are participating contracts, which would have had ten 

years additional experience for a build-up of cash value and/or dividends. 

As a life insurance agent, I am sure you are aware that there 

is a material difference. Once you get past the seventh or eighth year of 

a contract, it is between participating and non-participating. So, the 

individual has lost that price advantage between getting through the seventh 

and eighth year, and going back to a non-par contract. 

I can't speak to the point of whether or not one product is comparable 

with another product in terms of should he have stayed with a whole life 

contract or converted to the new whole life contract. As a practical matter, 

however, anyone who has been in the life insurance industry for any length 

of time knows that a contract that has been in force 10 years has much greater 

buildup of cash value and/or dividends than will a brand new contract 

which has new acquisition costs and has no first year cash value, usually, 

at all, and sometimes not as long as three years. So, that old contract 

is going to be far better as a cash value product than will be a new product. 

Pricewise, an older contract should also be a lower cost product 

to the individual if he has a ten-year-old contract versus a brand new contract. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: One more question. Have you made any studies? 

We will use the age 35 classic example of an individual purchasing, say, 

an annual renewable term from a company that has, let's say, its expertise 

in term insurance. If that individual at age 35 bought the same amount 

of protection - death benefit - and took the difference of his money as 

opposed to putting in with the deposit term side fund, theway I under­

stand it, it causes him to lose his flexibility for ten years. That 

is mandated. That money must remain there, and you must continue the con­

tract or you lose the deposit. Is that a fair statement in most cases? 
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MR. MC MICHAEL: You lose it, at least in most contracts for 

at least the first five years, at which time you begin to get access to 

it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: Right. After five years a lot of them have 

a roll over. 

MR. MC MICHAEL: On a graded basis, you get more and more access 

to that deposit. For the first five years, in most of the contracts being 

written, you have no access to that money at all. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: All right. What I am getting to is that 

if you had that flexibility, as opposed to deposit term, in the picture 

that is projected - which is not the same but similar to what equity funding 

was doing at one time, where there was no cost to the individual, and where 

they projected mutual funds paying the premium-- Of course, if the market 

went down, you had to put up more money, but let's not get into that. It 

is the same, as far as I am concerned, philosophy. If that individual took 

that same amount of money and applied it on his own, as opposed to going 

to the projection that is displayed there, forgetting the twisting or anything 

else that may take place, have you projected the amount of money that he 

would make, or could make, as opposed to leaving it with the brokers, or 

whatever they are, that sell deposit term? 

MR. MC MICHAEL: You're almost like a shill in the question you 

just asked, and I really enjoy the question because two of the companies 

will be speaking here later. I am also licensed. I am an independent, 

much as you are. I have been to many, many presentations of one of those 

companies, and you are going to see it this morning. I asked that same 

question: "Why not sell the individual, if it is such a great deal, yearly 

renewable term and let him invest the difference in your annuity product? 

Your yearly renewable term product is cheaper, and your annuity pays ••• " 

at that point in time it was seven and one-half percent; I think it is a 

little over eight now. The comment back to me was: "Don't you like earning 

money"? And, my comment back was: "That is not the purpose. The purpose 

of what you have told me is that this is consumer oriented, and if it is 

consumer oriented, the best deal for the consumer is to sell yearly renewable 

term and put the money in an annuity, not in the product you are suggesting." 

If you make a comparison between a deposit term contract and a 

yearly renewable term and invest the difference in an annuity-- And, you 

can buy no load ann.uities, and the company that will present this later 

sells that product. It is no load. Unless you cash out, there is a penalty 

at the end, if you cash out prematurely. The point is, their product, YRT 

and annuity, far outdistances their deposit term contract, but it doesn't 

pay 265% in commissions . 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: If you agree to the basic statement that 

money makes money, if you will, as well as people working for it, where 

is that line? If an individual, for instance, invests $1,000-- You know, 

you are limited today on what you can put that in. Forget annuities for 

a minute. You know, if you talked about buying the kind of paper where 

you had a little more flexibility, or the restrictions were maybe a year, 

or two, or three, or four, or whatever, as opposed to an individual who 

takes out, say, $10,000 in a lump sum and divests himself of the cash value 

and puts it into a deposit term, or $15,000, and has that money grow, I 
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think the amount of money does have a bearing on the growth factor, as far 

as what is available to the individual, and what he can or cannot do. So, 

if you take an individual, for instance, who is a little bit above the cookie 

jar situation, and let's say he has a premium of $500 to $1,000 a year, 

or whatever, for life insurance, and he has accumulated $1,000 or $2,000 

in equity, and he diversifies that, it is a little different. Quite frankly, 

some of the individuals I have seen who took that same approach with a lot 

more money and who were shown that if they put that lump sum money that they 

took out - I am talking beyond $10,000 - and projected that over the next 

ten years, he would have made a hell of a lot more money on his own, and 

still have the same protection -except he would have the flexibility -then 

he would have if dealing with deposit term. Now, I don't know if that has 

been your experience. 

MR. MC MICHAEL: Yes. We, in our office, advised a number of 

our clients during the significant interest crunch of the earlier part of 

this year, when interest rates rose on CO's to 15 1/2%--

ASSEMBLYMAN AOUBATO: Yes. 

MR. MC MICHAEL: We have advised a number of our policyholders 

to go into their policies and borrow out the money. They could borrow it 

anywhere from 5% to 6%. The 8% rate is now effective in our State, but 

it has not been too effective in terms of the amount of cash you can actually 

get your hands on. We had at least one client, I can recall, from Lancester, 

who borrowed $185 thousand, and who did just that. That life insurance 

still exists. He is still paying the premiums. It is true that if he dies, 

the life insurance is down by $185 thousand, but he has $185 thousand sitting 

over here in CO's, which are growing. At that point in time, they were 

earning 15 1/2% interest. We think that is a more appropriate approach 

to people than to tell them to surrender out their existing contracts to 

buy a brand new product in which they have no access to their money at all 

once they put it in that contract. That is the reason the majority of our 

members do not buy the product themselves, nor do they sell it, and it is 

why we are opposed to it. We don't think it is a consumer oriented product. 

ASSEMBLYMAN AOUBATO: Are the people who believe - and everyone 

has right to their philosophy, that is what we are all about in this nation, 

and we have a right to disagree - in the concept of deposit term, primarily 

people who began their career in the life insurance business, or in the 

money business-- let's say stock brokers, or selling funds? Or is that 

not a fair question? 

MR. MC MICHAEL: I don't want to mask deposit term advocates 

with coming from a particular segment of our industry. The company that 

I mentioned earlier primarily is soliciting this as surplus business, or 

through property and casualty agents. As many of you are well aware, a property 

and casualty agent in our State could, at one time, answer four questions, 

and he was licensed to sell life insurance. All right? Most of those chaps 

do not sell much in the way of life insurance. And, that particular company, 

again, has the largest producer of its business in the Philadelphia area. 

It is a property and casualty agent who is out soliciting that business 

from property and casualty agents. He knows absolutely nothing about life 

insurance, and he admits it. He has his CLU, his broker's manager, and 
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his CLU says, "I will not sell that product." The reason is because he 

knows its ethical charge says you don't sell something that you won't buy 

yourself. 

The thrust of what I am saying is, I don't want to prejudge all 

deposit term advocates. The group with which I am familiar are not men 

and women who are fully cognizant of what life insurance can do in terms 

of meeting needs. Deposit term products are being sold to replace existing 

policies, not to fulfill needs. That has been the approach, and a truly 

professional insurance person fills needs. He does not out go out and rip off 

other people's policies in order simply to replace one policy with another 

policy . 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: I will let you go with this 

one last question: Is it fair to say that in New Jersey, a little while 

back, the applications were made and the Insurance Commissioner at that 

time rejected the product in the State of New Jersey, and that now the product 

is available? Is that a fair statement or not? 

MR. MC MICHAEL: In this State, yes, it was initially rejected. 

It was also rejected, for quite a long time, in Pennsylvania, and it has 

only recently come on the market. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: Was there any change in the product from 

the time it was rejected in New Jersey, to your knowledge, in '66, as opposed 

to the way it is marketed in its present form? 

MR. MC MICHAEL: Not that we are aware of, no. We are not aware 

of any changes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: Thank you. I have no other questions, Mr. 

Chairman. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BORNHEIMER: Thank you very much, Mr. McMichael. 

The next witness will be Frank McCormick. I will direct everybody 

to look to their right because we have a slide presentation, I understand. 

F R A N K MC C 0 R M I C K: What I would like to do, Mr. Chairman, 

is to make a few brief remarks prior to getting into our slide presentation. 

I will keep that as brief as possible also. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BORNHEIMER: Do you have a copy of your remarks? 

MR. MC CORMICK: No, sir, they are extemporaneous, other than 

the slides which we will present to you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BORNHEIMER: Okay, proceed. 

MR. MC CORMICK: Mr. Chairman, members of the Committee, ladies 

and gentlemen in attendance, my name is Frank McCormick. I am a CLU, and 

I am Senior Vice President of Firemen's Fund American Life Insurance Company 

in San Francisco, California. 

The purpose of our meeting today is an issue that has been going 

on, quite literally, since 1964, when the product sometimes referred to 

as "deposit term" was first introduced in the United States. 

You have an issue here that I think it tantamount to a number 

of issues that we have faced, both moral and economic issues, over the develop­

ment of this nation, where honest people of sincere beliefs disagree. 

My colleague from the industry, Mr. McMichael, represented the 

New Jersey Underwriters. I find no fault with his integrity, or with his 

direction, nor with his sincerity. 
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There are points that we take exception to. I will make a slide 

presentation that will memorialize those exceptions from what we consider 

to be the consumer's point of view, and the evolving economics in this country 

frcmour industry's point of view. There are things that are said that are 

said out of context, that need to be focused on by people who have sat and 

listened to testimony from literally thousands of people. I won't presuppose 

that you will not apply the same level of intelligence in analyzing that, 

as you would anything else. 

One of the things was, some companies even use sophisticated replacement 

techniques, such as computers. We happen to be one of those companies. 

We don't exactly refer to it as a sophisticated replacement technique, but 

rather, a, a compliance with the law in terms of doing a comparative analysis, 

which the consumer is entitled to have, and, b, as the moral obligation 

of the agent whose advice the consumer acts upon, as if he is getting the 

best the man has to offer, and, in fact, he is entitled to such. 

We hear that ART is a better product. It is cheaper, and it is 

better for the consumer, in perspective. We should like to be on the record 

as saying that we unequivocally agree with that position. Annual renewable 

term, across the board, day in and day out, for the average American consumer 

is the best form of life insurance he can buy -- period. The problem with 

the sale of annual renewable term is the survival of the American agency 

system. It behooves us not to offer a product in any industry, whether 

it is the automobile industry, the banking industry, or the insurance industry, 

where we underprice the product to the extent that the industry doesn't 

survive, and thus the benefits to the consuming public are very short lived 

indeed. It would not behoove us to try and underprice our automobiles to 

the point that we had no automobile industry left in this country, nor would 

it behoove us to sell a product, such as annual renewable term, that an 

agent would have to sell $30 million a year worth of business to make a 

respectable living -- an impossible task. Therefore, we think that somewhere 

between the products that we are seeing, and that we find objection to -

but, quite frankly, not to the extent of trying to have them outlawed or 

disbanded or to shed them in discredit - needs to be examined. 

I think a member of the Committee, Mr. Adubato, commented that 

he had foun~ in his career in the industry, a number of faults with the 

industry. I think we totally agree with that, and a lot of these faults 

need to be focused on. They need to be focused on in their entirety. They 

don't need to be focused on from a self-serving agent's point of view, or 

a self-serving company's point of view. They need to be focused on from 

the point of view of the consumer. 

Mr. Denenberg was quoted numerous times here today. While I have 

great respect for Mr. Denenberg as an individual, I think it is noteworthy 

that the ban that existed in the State of Pennsylvania existed for seven 

years, and existed because Mr. Denenberg wrote a statement that said it 

would be banned. Our company challenged that statement, and we asked the 

State of Pennsylvania to please furnish us with the public hearing that 

by a matter of law was required in that State, following an emergency ruling 

by the Commissioner. It was never forthcoming because the hearing never 

took place. The entire ban that existed in the State of Pennsylvania existed 

upon the word of one man, who is also a man who said that ordinary life 
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should be outlawed. That quote was not put forth this morning. It was 

said by Mr. Denenberg. Okay? 

Upon public hearing, the State of Pennsylvania reversed its position, 

as has every other state in these United States that has ~ooked at this 

in public hearing, as is the good State of New Jersey this morning. Not 

one has found the product in fault. 

Marketing practices of the sales organizations of all sorts of 

companies need to be corrected. For example, just walk in the street and 

ask your everyday citizen what the word dividend means and find out if he 

described to you what we refer to as a dividend. See if his understanding 

of that subject is very clear. See if he understands that he pays an over­

charge for seven years to receive it back. I doubt seriously if you are 

going to find common understanding of that. I recognize that these are 

not the issues in front of us, but they are, in a broader perspective, what 

this industry needs. 

Mr. McMichael commented that we do not have a consumer product. 

The issue we will put before you will either memorialize that or not, and 

we will conclude with a position that I think you will find particularly 

interesting, and that is, at the conclusion we will give you a written statement 

whereby we encourage this Legislature, in concert with its Insurance Department, 

to undertake an investigation. You may be assured you have our company's 

full support, and I am sure you will have the New Jersey Life Underwriters' 

full support, and such c~ies as the Prudential's, who are obviously 

interested in the truth. 

At the conclusion of that report, we will find out what percentage 

of policies sold,and durations,to what people at what point in time, in f~~t 

should be replaced by new, more modern policies, and at what point in time this 

should occur, if ever. There is a representation that it never should. 

But, until someone with legislative authority and the public's interest 

at heart undertakes to do this formal study, with the support of the industry 

but with control at the legislative level, all we are going to hear is the 

same thing we have been hearing here and in all of the other states. And, 

we will have the same conclusion. You gentlemen will reach the conclusion 

that the product is perfectly legitimate; it has a place in the market; 

the consumer should have a right to it; and, we will move on to some other 

state, to some other association that raises the same issue, until we finally 

run out of states. 

So, with no further comment, I would like to show you a brief 

slide presentation that will focus on those issues. Thank you. (applause) 

ASSEMBLYMAN BORNHEIMER: If I may comment, the same rules cover 

this hearing as the normal operation of the legislature. Your emotional 

outbursts will not be of any benefit to you, so I suggest you refrain from 

them -- either side. 

MR. MC CORMICK: The first thing we would like to comment on 

is deposit term, a matter of consumer concern. We would like to focus you 

on what we consider to be a phony issue. We consider, and hopefully will 

prove to you in the next 10 or 15 minutes, that the phony issue is the product; 

the real issue is competition, and the direct attempt to stifle it. 

Let's examine the facts. This product was first introduced by 

13 



a major company in 1964. It has been approved for sale in all states of 

the Union, the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico, and all U. S. Military 

installations throughout the world. 

There are three perspectives of the product: First, is the agents. 

One of the things I would like to point out to you, contrary to what my 

colleague from the industry said this morning on the ripoff of commissions, 

is that, in fact, that position represents a protectionist position of protect­

ing their own commission structure, which is proported to you to be lower. 

I think upon examination, especially upon critical examination that I have 

suggested be conducted under the auspices of this State, you will find something 

to the opposite of that statement. The truth will out then -- not my opinion, 

nor my colleagues opinion. 

The company's primary interest is to protect their business enforced 

now because many of the products they have sold today are an economic anach­

ronism. They are long since past their useful life. Someone quoted a very 

close friend this morning, a personal colleague of mine, Dr. Harold Skipper 

from Georgia State University. While I didn't speak to Dr. Skipper personally 

about this Assembly meeting, a colleague of mine did, and his comment was: 

"IL is an abomination. I would be pleased to speak at it, if I only had 

time to get there." He would, I 

any investigation you undertook. 

he is going to publish it in the 

am sure, be pleased to give you input to 

He also conducted an investigation, and 

Risk Journal, where it will show that a 

tremendous number of policies in fact should be replaced in the consumer's 

best interest. This is the same type of study that I am encouraging the 

State of New Jersey and the Department to undertake on behalf of the consumers. 

Obviously, such an undertaking may very deleteriously affect the future 

profits of the companies involved. It may also focus what their great interest 

in knocking deposit term is. 

The last one we think is the one you have the most concern in 

because these are the people you represent, and that is the consumers and 

their economic interest and needs. Let's look at the same people who find 

such great fault with deposit term. Many of them have billions of dollars 

of debit insurance in force, which has been termed by many, including many 

states, to be a ripoff of the consumer. A Sixty Minute, NBC report was 

done on it. Numerous articles have been written on it. Yet, nothing is 

said about it. 

Our colleague said this morning that he has, in fact, advised 

some of his policyholders to take advantage of when the high interest rates 

existed, earlier in the year. 

didn't know they'd gone down. 

Quite frankly, I am so unsophisticated, I 

The fact of the matter is, I wonder how that 

was done. Was it done by the company, or was it done by just one agent 

for all of his policyholders, of just one agent for some of his policyholders? 

An~ I wonder which one got the benefit of that advice and which ones didn't. 

And, I wonder what caused the advice to be necessary at all -- All of which would 

come out in a formal study. 

Agents' contracts. We will find under c:t formal study of many 

cf the companies, that 40% of the agent's commission is reduced if he sells 

annual renewable term, as opposed to whole life, or just about any other 

form of insurance -- partly what you would consider to be a strong inducement 
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to sell what we have forthwith acknowledged to be the best product the consumer 

can buy if the agency system could survive selling it. And, interestingly 

enough, under New York Section 213 - the only code that requires it - that 

demunition takes place on which there is no legal, moral, or ethical background 

for it. The other 49 states do not subscribe to it; New York law just makes 

it occur in your State. 

The whole life contract -- delete one word. The gentleman commented 

that over $4 billion of whole life had been sold to the consumers of this 

State this year -- an impressive number to say the minimum. If that was 

at $10.00 per $1,000, that is $400 million of premium. Twenty percent of 

that premium, according to LEMRA does not renew. That means that $80 million 

were lost by the consumers of this State by buying whole life they were 

unable to carry through its second year. Now, one of two things happened, 

ladies and gentleman: Either they had no need for the insurance, and were 

missold at the outset, which would have been a moral act -- you talk about 

reprehensible, that would have been the ultimate; or, in fact, what happened 

is something took place for them economically -- they lost their job, they 

went through a divorce, they were laid off, or whatever happened. But, 

the insurance need, if it was sold properl~ did not evaporate. What evaporated 

was their ability to meet the premium. The deletion of one word in the 

whole life contract -- one word -- would have solved an incredible amount 

of that problem. That word is in the conversion, where it says: "This 

policy may be converted to any higher premium payment." Delete the word 

"higher", allow the whole life contract in your State-- in fact, force 

it -- to be converted to an ART at the end of the first year if, in fact, 

the consumer needs it. I suggest to you tens of millions of dollars would 

be saved by that act, and I am sure it would have the overwhelming support 

of the New Jersey Association. 

Let's look at Northwestern Mutual's answer to one of the problems. 

It is a very outstanding company, respected by all of us in this business. 

They looked at the problem. They looked at the consumers. They looked 

at the economics of today. They increased, for over one million policyholder~ 

coverage by $4 billion at no increase in premium. What we are seeing today 

is another form of response, where companies stem the tide by using political 

clout of their Associations, etc., hardly the same form of answer. 

Those interested in changing the non-forfeiture values for deposit 

term generally have two strong characteristics. First of all, the majority 

of all their sales in force is in whole life; second, they don't offer deposit 

term in any form of alternative, irrespective of what cash value is applied. 

Let's look at the real issues. I apologize for the slide not 

being very readable; I will read it to you, if I may. Deposit term has 

several major consumer advantages that some agents and companies object 

to. First of all, the lower initial cost in whole life. The young, asset­

poor family can come closer to fulfilling the real insurance need that 

he has at that moment in time, not as close as IRT, but closer than whole 

life. Where is this published? One gentleman has already introduced one 

of them: The Federal Trade Commission Report, to which our industry, to 

its great pride, went to Washington and got the FTC out of the insurance 

business, thus putting ourselves right there with the funeral directors. 
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We also found the House Subcommittee of the 85th Congress publishing 

a report on it that I think would be very enlightening, and should clearly 

be incorporated in this State's formal document if you accept our recommendation. 

Third, the higher commissions and annual renewable term allows 

the agent to make a living, although lower than the whole life alternative, 

as we will show you in a moment. 

Last, when coupled with a high, modern yielding annuity it offers 

the consumer more flexibility and protection against early lapse. 

Let's look at a male, age 35, $100,000 initial amount of insurance, 

a annual premium of 1964, representing a typical whole life participating 

contract. We use a dividend accumulated and interest and/or we will do 

it the other way, with paid up additions; flexible payment annuity, current 

yield 8.25 and a guaranteed yield of 6% for five years thereafter. Let's 

briefly look at the death estate comparison of what a consumer is looking 

at on our "sophisticated computer system." First and foremost, the guarantee 

under the participating whole life is $100,000. Under the life cycle, which 

is the deposit term term in an annuity couple, thus creating identically 

the same cash flow. The guaranteed changes from $100 to $169. Using the 

dividend on paid up additions - which is the most favorable, I should add -

is $236,000 versus $267,000. That $31,000 difference might be significant 

to a consumer in your State. 

But, let's look at it from the living estate accumulation. In 

one he has a guarantee on the participating whole life of $48,000. Under 

the guarantee of life cycle he has $69,000. With the current dividend on 

paid up additions, he has $136 versus $167. So, you will note that the 

consumer is $31,000 better off in both instances, live or die. 

Let's then proceed to see what happens if the consume~have 20% 

of them in the first year, and a diminishing number in the second year 

and are forced to lapse their contract. Our contention is that the majority 

of them lapse their contract not because they were improperly sold, but 

because their economic conditions change and they are unable to respond 

with a premium. If we sold him the whole life contract - a par whole life 

contract - he is committed to $1964. His first year cash value is $231. 

He has himself a very significant problem-- like $1700 worth. If he had 

purchased the life cycle contract with its huge front end load, he would 

have had a $1,400 cash value and could have carried his insurance for the 

next four years out of his existing cash value. 

Let's look at the flexibility of the premium commitment and ask 

which the New Jersey Underwriters would rather see for themselves as a commit-

ment to their agency system, as well as their commitment to the consumer. 

Ask the consumer which he would rather do, commit to $39,000 of premium 

or commit to $12,000 premium. I think you will find that the overwhelming 

majority of the consumers will say, "I choose to commit to the lower. " 
Let's look at the objections that are offered and see how valid 

they are, and whether or not there is a smoke screen and the subterfuge 

that we strongly suggest exists. We strongly suggest that a formal investigation, 

conducted outside of our industry but with subpoena powers used by us to 

us, that forces us to give you the information you need. I think you will 

find some very interesting facts. 

16 

• 



• 

. 
"' 

First of all, let's look at the objections to this product. A 

client loses his deposit; therefore, he is being ripped off. Unconscionable 

commission schedule -- we have heard that time and time and time again today. 

The annual renewable term is cheaper, which we have already commented on. 

And, another one, which was not mentioned today and which is an estate planning 

type of thing, is the stepped up cost based on taxation and death, which 

is relatively esoteric for this purpose. 

Now, in the first slide - I am going to go up and point to it, 

if I may - I am going to show you something very interesting because I have 

to read the number to you. This is a participating whole life right here. 

The first premium is $1964; the cash value dividend is $231. Therefore, 

if the client or policyholder drops his policy in the first year, he has 

suffered a $1733 loss. We will look at life cycle in two component parts. 

First, we will look at it just as the modified whole life quote, end 

quote: 11 deposit term". You will find it as $668. The first year cash value 

is zero. The first year loss is $668. Now, three things are different 

about this that you should know. Let's start off with contention. First 

of all, this is a ripoff, and this is right there with God, the flag, and 

apple pie. (laughter) 

The other three things that are wrong with it are, this has a 

cash value, God bless it, and this does not. However, from the consumer's 

point of view, he loses $1100 more, and over here he had $1,000 more insurance, 

and he had to come up with $1,000 less to do it. If we take the same cash 

flow -- excuse me, he had $1300 less -- now we have apple to apple. We 

find that his loss is $562, not $1733. Now, LEMRA will tell you the average 

policy lasts seven years in the United States -- quoting the same source 

as my colleague from the Association did. In the seventh year this policy 

is showing a $985 loss. This policy is showing a $2,072 gain -- almost 

a $3,000 gain, not to mention that during all of these years if the economic 

circumstances of the customer has changed, and he would have been able to 

respond; where over here his response would have been considerably less, 

as I will show you in just a moment. The phenomenon is that the modified 

premium whole life is the one that we are being asked to stop. It would 

seem to be appropriate that if we were going to stop anything, we would 

stop the one on the left first. (applause) 

Let's look at the objection that annual renewable term is cheaper. 

We have already said, but we are memorializing it here with a slide, that 

that is true, but let's also look at something else that I think is important 

to understand. The agent performs a very valuable service to the consumers 

of your State -- a very valuable service. Insurance cannot be purchased 

out of a machine, or .out of a newspaper, for its many multiple uses. It 

cannot be done. Therefore, the need of the insurance agent is something 

that I cannot over-describe, nor can I over-·describe his value to the consumer. 

Look at the difference. A good, quality, annual renewable term, ladies 

and gentlemen, is selling for around $2.00 per $1,000. A modified premium 

whole life is $2.38, with the additional $4.00 premium the additional 

first year premium of $4.00. Thus, the combination in the first year is 

$6.38. Over here, the whole life is $16.22. Now, what you are being asked 

to consider is a methodology by which to kill this product, while leaving 

this one just fine, and that one just ~ine, because they know that one 

17 



can't be sold in sufficient volume for the agents in this State to survive. 

That's the truth. When you do the subpoenas and you put people under oath, 

you will find out that is the truth. However, the logic is interesting. 

The mofified whole life is based on a cost base of $6.38. It drops in the 

next year to $2.50 -- okay? But, the whole life's cost of $16.22 is fine. 

The issue is not the profit, ladies and gentlemen, the issue is competition. 

Let me show you one other thing, going back to something I forgot 

to show you on commission. This product right here, under New York Section 

213, will pay 96.4% commission -- fifty-five to the agent and the balance 

to a structure of a general agent, manager, supervisor, or whatever else 

the expense reimbursement allowance is on direct compensation. Ninety-

six point four percent we own in New York Life Company. We operate under 

Section 213. Now, that would generate a little over sixteen hundred and 

something -- almost seventeen hundred dollars in commission. This product 

over here, the first year additional premium is not commission. Only the 

two thirty eight is commission. It would generate about $441 of commission. 

Now, $441 providing the insured with $1,000 more coverage and more 

flexibility, is unconscionable. If $441 is unconscionable, $1700 must be 

criminal. 

Let's look at the retirement objective, since many of your people 

in your State are concerned about it, and will become increasingly concerned 

about it. Let's look at the same program that we put into effect, and carry 

it out to their retirement years. This one we did on a non par whole life, 

just to show you the relative comparison of par and non par. This one, 

we stopped paying a $1652 premium, which is non par. We wanted to have-­

This is the client's objective; this is what you and I as agents told our 

client we would like to see him accomplish if we could. We will provide 

him an additional retirement income of $800, above his social security, 

above his company benefits, etc. We would like to see him maintain a minimum 

death estate of $100,000. We would like to see him have a minimum cash 

kitty of $100,000 living estate. Let's see if we can do that with the product 

we call life cycle. The answer is, ye~ we could, and here is how. First 

of all, the cash accumulation -- we would use a partial withdrawal of the 

current interest rate of 8.25, generating $11,825, pre tax. We will convert 

$25,000 of the policy to a whole life. We wouldn't recommend it at that 

point, we are doing it simply for explanatory purposes. We discontinued 

a balance of thirty-six. The twenty five whole life premium is seventeen 

hundred and fifty-four dollars, guaranteed rate. We would now take the 

seventeen hundred from the eleven thousand-eight that we got from just cash 

flow, not an annuitization -- just interest cash flow and we now generate 

annual withdrawal, pre tax, to the consumer of eleven thousand, eight hundred 

and twenty five dollars. Now, let's look at that from age 65 on, and see 

how the consumer is impacted by that. The simplest form of doing it is, 

first we will find that if he keeps his non par whole life contract what 

he would be doing is continuing to pay the premium of sixteen hundred and 

fifty-two dollars. At age 75, he would have spent sixteen thousand, five 

hundred and twenty net after tax dollars to keep the insurance in force. 

What would have happened is his living estate would have gone up to almost 

sixty-six thousand; his death estate would have remained constant because 

it was a non par contract. Now, notice the great miracle of life insurance. 
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Notice that right here it started off at fifty-nine and it went up to sixty-

six well, that is almost sixteen thousand dollars, or a little over. 

The miracle of life insurance: it didn't cost you anything, Mr. Consumer, 

isn't that amazing. Sixty five to seventy five you carried it free -- like 

the interest didn't count. 

At age 75, he spent thirty-three thousand dollars and the cash 

flow is now seventy-seven and the death estate is one hundred. Using life 

cycle, which is why we say it is a competitive issue not a product issue, 

he would have spent ten thousand dollars between sixty-five and seventy­

five -- that's "MIF": money in fist- as opposed to having spent sixteen 

thousand out of his pocket. That's a twenty six thousand dollar swing in 

his cash flow. At the same time, his living estate would have gone from 

one hundred and forty three to one hundred and fifty -- notice, two point 

something times this -- and his death estate is one hundred and sixty eight 

absolutely, virtually no comparison. Virtually none. 

Let's look at the whole life and see if our marvelous contract 

would have done that. First of all, what options do we have to whole life? 

Let's look at what we were trying to accomplish. First, we were trying 

to stop the annual outlay of earned income, because there is a time when 

a person wants to stop saving and start spending. He wanted eight hundred 

dollars additional. He wanted a one hundred thousand death estate. We 

wanted a one hundred thousand dollar living estate. The options he has 

on whole life is a monthly lifetime, paid up life insurance, extended term, 

cash the policy in, or pay the premiums -- continue the premiums. Now, 

let's look at which one gives him all "yeses". The first one gives him 

one yes that is to stop the premium, and if he does he doesn't get eight 

hundred dollars, he gets three hundred and forty seven, but he loses both 

of those. If he takes the paid up insurance, what does he get? Seventy-

six thousand, not one hundred. He doesn't pay any more premiums. He doesn't 

give any cash flow to himself. The other two are both below one hundred. 

If he takes the third alternative, this is the one he gets the 

best deal on in terms of how many "yeses" he gets. This is a marvellous 

situation here. Yes, he does stop paying the premium. No, he doesn't get 

eight hundred dollars a month. Yes, he does get a one hundred thousand 

death estate for thirteen years and seventy-one days. If he dies thirteen 

years and seventy-two days later, he gets three shells and one pea, and 

he got the one with the no pea, and no one hundred thousand dollar living 

estate. 

The last one -- cash surrender -- he gets forty nine thousand, 

and that is half, or he can continue the premium. There is actually and 

virtually no comparison in any dimension whatsoever. Again, a formal study 

of this will prove the fact so we won't be in these kinds of chambers debating 

the issue; rather, we will be under subpoena and furnishing it to you. And, 

the first guy that lies gets to go to jail. 

Let's talk about advantages and flexibility. Cash accumulation 

flexibility -- keep in mind that these are advantages over and above the 

economic advantages. These are the ones you don't see, but they really 

come into play if you need them. Contribution may be increased or decreased 

on a monthly or lump sum basis; it may be stopped or started again, consistent 
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to the way the real peoples' money actually works. That is the way the 

real people in America live -- sometimes they have some and sometimes they 

don't. With our good whole life contract, he does not have those options. 

He will pay that premium every time. His only other choice is to pay it 

out of his own reserve. 

Functional separate elements for insurance and cash accumulation 

allows for more stable financial flexibility. Insurance and cash accumulation 

are integrated and are stated to you that you can't even split them apart. 

You can't do it; it's magically stuck together. The Federal Trade Commission 

says it isn't, as well as the 85th Congress says it isn't, but we say it 

is. 

Significantly lower fixed premium commitment, you have already 

seen that. Higher total premium commitment-- aqain,there is no choice when 

it comes to what alternative the client has under varying and changing circumstances. 

Liquidity -- let's look at his access to his money. As my colleague 

commented on this morning, all those interest rates went up, and still are, 

and what a super thing they had. Let me show you what they would have had 

under a different plan. In liquidity under partial withdrawal, ten percent 

of the annuity accumulation may be withdrawn each year at no charge zip. 

And, withdrawals after that come out in excess of ten percent, subject to 

a one-time low withdrawal charge that melts down at the end of the ninth 

year to two percent -- a one-time two percent. That is significantly different 

than a compounding interest factor of five to eight a significantly different 

factor. Competitive interest rates reflect the many market conditions and 

our own investment result. Fixed by law, interest on dividend accumulations 

vary, but have no underlying guarantees. Every dollar going into life cycle 

has that underlying guarantee. Since that is the business we like to talk 

about being in, years ago when the people were in the mutual fund business 

and we were trying to stop that, we hammer on the one guarantee. 

Ability to modify type and amount of coverage -- over here you 

can modify it to a higher premium type, just what the average American citizen 

needs, the right to pay more for his insurance. 

Flexibility -- our conclusion is there is no comparison between 

traditional whole life and life cycle. The objections are based on inability, 

or unwillingness, to compete. Those are the real issues. 

Let's look at it from one point of view that we think you will 

find particularly interesting, having seen the preceeding slides. If you 

were in that business and did not have these products, and this was a public 

forum of New Jersey people interested in buying life insurance, and saw 

those two, and they are both truthful, which do you think they would buy? 

We don't have any doubt which they would buy. This is why ~e were the number 

one growth company in the United States. We know what they are buying. 

If you, therefore, are in the position of trying to generate new business, 

and you didn't want to come out with that product, would you not try to 

stop it? I clearly would. If you were losing your agents to companies 

that are doing this because of exactly the reasons you are looking at, 

would you want to stop it? Clearly, you would want to stop it. 

On the issue of replacement, if you are looking at, side by side, 

the advantages of that, where you were told you would lose control of your 

20 

• 

J 

• 



, 

money, etc., etc., the consumer can read the economic facts. In that case, 

we were talking about a $100,000 policy, with which the company is involved 

here. Probably the average sized policy is twenty five; we are talking 

about four hundred dollars. That is hardly what you would call asset management 

loss. 

Those are the real issues right there, having nothing to do with 

the protection of the consumer; it is protection of self interest. 

Let's look at how interested these individuals are in the consumer. 

About seven percent of the consuming public in the United States that are 

life insurance buyers are sub-standard risk. Let me show you how that works 

with the standard, typical, "vanilla", participating whole life. The premium 

goes from nineteen hundred and something. Incidentally, sub-standard table 

four means they have one hundred percent increase in mortality risk, ladies 

and gentlemen. In other words, they have a one hundred percent increased 

opportunity for looking at the roses from root end. This entire loading 

loads both sides, the cash accumulation side and the mortality side. Now, 

if you went to a bank to deposit any money, or a savings and loan, have 

you ever had anyone ask you, "What is your state of health"? If you don't 

have a very good heart, or if you are a little bit chubby, they say, "Well, 

this is ten thousand you want to put in; we will give you eighty six hundred 

of it back if you withdraw it." You would look at the guy like he absolutely 

smoking grass, or something. Okay? That's what we do here. But, when 

you split the products and you say: "This is a risk premium", that's what 

that is; that's pure life insurance premium, and that has an extra mortality 

on it because we are sorry Y?U are not as healthy as everybody else is. 

This piece over here doesn't because that's just plain savings. Now, the 

difference in that in total outlay. We combine these two to make them constant. 

So, you will see that the consumer has the ability to put the money aside. 

Let's see what happens to his difference. At the end of the first year, 

on a twenty three hundred dollar premium, there is fifteen hundred dollars 

worth of difference. By the time you go to the fifth year, there is five 

thousan~ seven hundred and forty-one dollars worth of difference. By the 

tenth year, there is ten thousand, six hundred and forty. And, by the twentieth, 

there is twenty-two thousand dollars worth of difference. Now, that is 

a ripoff product. That's incredible, isn't it? That's the one we are supposed 

to be legislating against. I don't think that is going to stand the light 

of day, gentlemen, when you see it closely. I don't think it is going to 

stand the light of day. 

Now, we ask you some rhetorical questions here. If this is what it 

is represented to be -- what you have already heard and what you undoubtedly will 

hear further today? Is the American Council of Life Insurance, which represents 

94% of the insurance in the United States,here today to testify in its behalf? 

No. And, will they be? No. Is the National Association of Insurance Commissioners 

here today to testify in its behalf? No. Will they be? No. Are any national 

or state consumer groups here to testify on outlawing a single product? 

I doubt it seriously. The Society of Actuaries, are they here today to 

testify in its behalf? We doubt it seriously. The Federal Trade Commission, 

or the Congress, that has done a great study on this issue -- no one. Who 

supports it? Our local association. 
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The replacement -- let me give you a reading. This is an absolute 

quote, which will be on the slides you were furnished. This is a quote 

from the National Underwriter, September 13, 1980, by Mr. Myron Margolin. 

It says - I quote: "The replacement of Prudential policies with partial 

endowment policies (deposit term) on financial grounds rarely, if ever, 

can be justified." It rarely, if ever, can be justified. That testimony, 

incidentally, was in front of the National Association of Insurance Commissioners, 

so it clearly would have been said in absolute, ultimate honesty. Interesting 

point. 

We would like to make a challenge to that. Firemens Fund American 

Life, based on its experience, contends this statement is self-serving, 

misleading, and inaccurate, and it was testimony before the National Association 

of Insurance Commissioners. What do we suggest be done about it? The truth, 

from the consumer's perspective, can be determined, and clearly should be 

determined before any changes are made in the non-forfieture statutes that 

may adversely affect New Jersey's consumers' choice of products. We respectfully 

request that the New Jersey Legislature, in concert with the New Jersey 

Department of Insurance, undertake an in-depth study of the subject of replacement 

to determine if replacements are in the best economic interest of the consumer. 

Such an undertaking will have the full and complete support of the Firemens 

Fund, and I can assure you will have the support of a number of other interested 

parties. 

As to the remaining part of the bill in front of you, relative 

to sales and the advertising section, we have no objections to any rules 

that are fairly and equally applied to all products. We strenuously object 

to rules designed to discriminate against a single product line. 

May I be specific in an example of that? It is suggested that 

the consumer be focused on how much he will lose if he drops a deposit term 

contract in the first five years, second year, fifth year, or whatever year. 

We completely agree with that. The consumer should - if you will pardon 

the expression - damn well know; but, he should also know what he loses 

in any cash value policy he buys. So, the seventeen hundred dollars we 

show with the whole life, the gentlemen who sell whole life will show that 

and they will say, "If you buy this plan and you do not continue it next 

year, you will lose $1700. Do you understand that"? As long as the rules 

are equitably applied, equally and fairly, we have no objection to whatever 

they are. We are perfectly willing to live with whatever this Legislature 

and this department comes up with for the protection of its consumers. What 

we are not willing to live with is a discriminatory act focused only on 

one thing, and that is competition; it is not in the best interest of your 

consumer. 

We thank you very kindly for the opportunity of presenting our 

views. (applause) 

ASSEMBLYMAN BORNHEIMER: Do the members of the Committee have 

any questions for Mr. McCormick? Lou. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KOSCO: Just one thing. Mr. McCormick, you said 

that Congress did an in-depth study of this particular situation. Do you 

happen to have copies of that study, or are they available? 

MR. MC CORMICK: Yes, sir, they would be. They are published 

under the Moss Committee, which is a Subcommittee on Interstate and Foreign 
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Commerce, 85th Congress, published December, ~979, Congressional Printing 

Office, Washington, D.C. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KOSCO: All Right. Thank you. 

MR. MC CORMICK: It was a very in-depth study. It covered a period 

of years, and I think it would be enormously enlightening to your Committee. 

Incidentally, parallel in enormously close detail is the Federal 

Trade Commission. It is very, very parallel to the Federal Trade Commission. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BORNHEIMER: Mike. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: I want to compliment you first, Mr. McCormick, 

on the very enthusiastic and informative presentation. I start off by saying 

that some of the things you spoke about I agree with. In my opinion it 

is true that the insurance industry, first of all, should find newer and 

more innovative ways to produce more for the people they are selling insurance 

to. 

With that aside, I took special notice during your presentation 

that you, I think, agreed that an annual renewable term contract would probably 

be the best product as far as net cost analysis over a projection, as opposed 

to whole life or deposit term. Is that a fair statement? 

MR. MCCORMICK: That's correct, sir . 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: And the reason I believe you gave for not 

selling annual renewable term was because the agent - and I agree with it -

must make a living. But, it is not necessarily a purist statement that 

it is the best thing for the person who is buying the product. Would that 

also follow? 

MR. MC CORMICK: Do you mean in every instance? 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: No, I won't say in every instance. I won't 

say that. 

MR. MC CORMICK: I don't think anything fits every instance. There 

is clearly a time when a number of the insurance products we have fit the 

consumer's interest, which is one of the reasons why you don't hear us, 

in our side of this philosophical discussion, if you will, siding for "take 

that off the market; change its cash value" -- you know,do all those wierd 

things to it -- because, quite frankly, we don't find any fault with competing 

aginst it. We find no fault with it, and in many instances we find great 

use for it. Okay? 

The only thing the people in our philosophical bent are attempting 

to do is to prevent ourselves and what we represent to the American consuming 

public from being pushed off the sled. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: The next question I was going to ask you 

was, in your opinion, in your vast experience, who or what would you consider 

the profile in income earning need of the individual that you think would 

be the ideal prospect for deposit term? 

MR. MCCORMICK: That's very interesting that you raised that 

question, sir, because we just completed a study on that exact issue; albeit 

relatively informal, nonetheless, over a year we have looked at that subject. 

We average about $78,000-average-sized policy, which indicates to us that 

we are selling to a slightly above middle income market -- that being probable 

average income in the $27,000 to $32,000 class. Now, part of that is the 

fact that the product is not available in its present form to the lower 
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income group. We are designing a product for mass merchandising that will, 

in fact, be available to the modest income American. We are finding - which 

is true of the profile of all of the insurance companies - the larger the 

product, the larger the sale, the more apt it is to be ART. You find a 

two, three, four, five million dollar sale almost inevitably is an annual 

renewable term because this person is getting the advice of attorneys, 

CPA's, etc., where the person buying a five, ten, fifteen, or twenty-five 

thousand dollar policy is not getting that kind of advice, if, in fact, 

he could get the ART at that price. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: Well, then I would assume - and it may be 

pre~uous to presume anything - that your profile is dealing with a non­

corporate entity? 

as such? 

MR. MC CORMICK: Oh, yes, indeed; it is with the individual person. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: So, you are not soliciting corporate entities 

MR. MC CORMICK: Not as such, no. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: Okay, so we have limited the discussion 

to individual sales. 

MR. MC CORMICK: If it would be helpful to you, and I think perhaps 

it might, sir, a comment was made earlier that people are soliciting through 

property and casualty agents who answer four questions and obviously the 

intent of that statement is to disqualify them as either qualified people 

or knowledgeable people. We have over 10,000 property liability agents 

in the Firemens Fund Agency organization. We have a little over 11,000 

in the Firemens Fund Life organization. There are about 2,000 that are 

common between. I would venture to say, without statistical fact on this -

but here again, our study, if you choose to initiate it-- We would be more 

than glad to get the numbers together for you. I would estimate that over 

ninety something percent, probably in the ninety percentile rang~ of our 

life sales are from life agents, not property-casualty agents. The over­

whelming majority is from life agents. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: I appreciate the information. I didn't 

know I asked that question, but it's okay. 

First of all, let me back up by saying that I have never sold 

debit insurance. I think I have some knowledge of it, and I agree with 

you, that in the cost analysis it is horrendous; however, the $25 a week 

policy that my mother still has on my life, which is returning about 40% 

when I am 65, was something that she could afford. She couldn't afford 

anything else. So, while I agree with you with the net cant analysis, 

I think it is fair to say that the debit contract was sold specifically 

to those people with the cookie jar, and I think it served a purpose and 

had its day. I think it is out-dated today for the most part, but I really 

think it was a product that did a lot of good for a lot of people, in spite 

of the fact that times have changed and the money market has changed. 

I just want to bring that out because while, again, I agreed with 

you that the insurance industry could do more for the product, I would like 

to tag a comment onto your comment that the agent has to make a living. 

You have to have a profit in free enterprise, which I think we all agree 

with. Your comparisons, for the most part, dealt with participating contracts. 
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l-'irsl, l would like Lu Lcll you that my first seven years in the 

industry were with a good mutual company, but I agreed, philosophically, that 

the better deal, as far as I was concerned for my clients, was to associate 

myself with one of the - if not the -lowest, net cost, non-participating, in­

surance companies in the industry. But, that is my personal philosophy. 

The amount of money that is controlled you mentioned Prudential 

and the amount of jobs, excluding agent, the amount of diversification that 

goes into the pyramid of industries, the other jobs, the other employment, do 

you think that is a legitimate basis for the life insurance companies to say: 

"Yes, this is our product, and this is what we are giving you for your money"? 

In New Jersey, as you may well know, when you deliver a contract you also have 

to deliver an illustration. I am sure most agents in the industry, when they 

deliver their contracts -- I hope they do; I think they do -- analyze it and 

explain it to the individual. In fact, most companies that I am aware of also 

show a cash value sheet outside of the policy itself -- separate. They project 

every year. What I am getting at is the philosophy of deposit term as opposed 

to whole life, as you laid down those ground rules. 

You already agreed that annual renewable term is better. The justifica­

tion for going in and selling it initially is one thing, to a primary buyer. 

I think it is another thing when you go in and you cancel out a contract that 

has been in force for some years, as opposed to canceling the contract and taking 

that equity, if you will. I agree that you can't limit it to one policy because 

I am sure you know that there are contracts that would provide the same amount 

of death benefit even though you extract and take the equity out of the contract, 

either by a dividend option, if you are dealing with a mutual company, or a 

non par term rider. So, you are not losing any death benefit, necessarily, 

if the agent is doing a good job. But, he can still take the money and have 

that flexibility and diversify it into something else without using deposit 

term. There is no need, in my opinion, for him to use deposit term at that 

stage, without arguing our philosophical differences -- okay? Do you find that 

plausible? 

MR. MC CORMICK: Plausible is a very sweetening statement. Yes, it 

is plausible. Would it be intellectually bullet proof? No. And, the reason 

it wouldn't be intellectually bullet proof is because there are a number of 

different factors you have to look at, one of which is the composition of the 

person, and what he wants to do. One of the reasons that we have so strongly 

supported the buyers guide in life insurance, which you know got a thundering 

round of applause from all of our colleagues in the Association -- they were 

very strong to see that this came out early, having fought for years to get 

it - was because it did, in fact, define those different choices to people in 

simplistic language. So, the questions were raised just exactly as you raise 

them. 

You see, one of the things that is a myth about deposit term, and 

it is certainly a myth relative to our own company, is that its whole reason 

for existence is replacement. That is ridiculous, from our position. First 

of all, about twenty-six percent of our business is replacement. That 

comes about as a result of-- It is not because we are oriented to "replacement." 

It is extremely difficult to show someone a contract, as you have seen up 
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here today if the guy is sitting there with a $25,000 contract and you have 

just donean estate analysis for him and he needs $250,000 worth of coverage, 

or whatever he needs -- maybe it is $100,000 -- and you show him the balance 

of seventy five and he says: "Wait a minute; that incredible. 

I am paying five hundred for twenty five, and I am paying seven hundred 

and fifty for seventy five thousand. What would it look like if I had the 

whole thing"? Now, the agent at that point in time has two choices: He 

can lie or tell the truth. He is very well advised to tell the truth, and 

the truth is, "I don't know; I will run a comparison for you and we will 

look at it." But, you see, one of the interesting things about replacement is 

which your study, sir, I submit, done properly, will show, and only you 

have the power to do it, not us; I can't make any insurance company in this 

country do anything, you can because you can tell them they don't get to 

stay in New Jersey if they don't -- (continuing) you say, "Okay, this 

policy was replaced by what and for how much." You see, one of the things that 

is open to some considerable amount of intellectual debate is whether or 

not a policy replaced at $25,000 for one at $75,000 is deleterious to the 

client. If in fact, the insurance need exists, I strongly suggest that 

it is not. 

Now, if in fact -- your premise is based on the fact that the 

man has one hundred and your are replacing it with one hundred for the purpose 

of doing it with deposit term versus ART, I quite frankly would side with 

you and have great difficulty with that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: So, the real overview - if I can say that -

is that I have no problem in saying to you that out ·of the fourteen or fifteen 

hundred life insurance companies, forgetting deposit term philosophy, you 

have many, many differences in the course of doing business, and whatever. 

Is there any other remuneration when you sell deposit term besides what 

is a very, very high commission on term insurance? I am not arguing it 

one way or the other, but is there any other value the person receives who 

sells that product, or could receive? 

MR. MC CORMICK: Is there any other value that the agent, or the 

person selling it receives? 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: Or a district manager? 

MR. MC CORMICK: Economic value, yes. Okay. Yes. First of all, 

he will receive - it is very small - a commission on the annuity. It will 

generally be something like 4%. He will receive, if the policy is renewed-­

Oh, he may receive on our products - we have what is called a scheduled 

annual renewable term which allows the face amount of the policy to be increased 

as it goes forward. So, a one hundred thousand dollar policy can be programned 

by our agent on behalf of our client to be worth two hundred thousand dollars 

ten years from today. So,actuall~ he receives a commission on that. If 

the entire plan rolls ove4 at the end of the tenth year he waul~ receive 

yet another commission. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: Would he receive at the end of the tenth 

year another new, first year commission? 

MR. MC CORMICK: It could be described as that, yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: Well, that's what it would be, right? 

MR. MC CORMICK: Yes. Which is similar, I might add, to the property 

and casualty business, the group business, or whatever else, where a new 
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commission is paid every single year, except this one goes down and back 

up at the end of ten years. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: Well, I want to limit it to life insurance, 

if I may. Is there anything else? 

MR. MC CORMICK: Not that I am aware of. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: Well, maybe in your company there isn't. 

Are there any other companies selling deposit term that allow for pyramiding, 

or stock options, or lump sum participation after, say, five or ten years, 

producing a certain amount of volume that the agent will receive--

MR. MC CORMICK: I--

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: Forgive me; let me finish. (continuing) --that 

the agent receives a piece of all the business that is produced under those 

people that are in this circle. 

MR. MC CORMICK: I personally have no knowledge of that, no -­

certainly not within our company. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: Are you aware of any other company that 

does that? 

MR. MC CORMICK: Not per se, no. I am aware of companies all 

over the United States that have stock options, that have--

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: (interrupting) I am talking about specifically 

dealing with deposit term as their vehicle -- that is really their leader. 

I think they are from California also. 

MR. MC CORMICK: A California company? 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: Yes . 

MR. MC CORMICK: No, we are not aware of them. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: Oakland or somewhere out there. You are 

not familiar with them? 

MR. MC CORMICK: No. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: I thought maybe you could help me because 

I have some limited information on them. 

MR. MC CORMICK: There are a number of companies in the United 

States that have all sorts of promotion things. You know, one company has 

been famous for years for giving away cadillacs. You know, you sell enough 

whole life, they will give you a cadillac. There are a number of companies 

like that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: I think that is a fine company. 

MR. MC CORMICK: Yes, it is. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: I'm with it. 

MR. MC CORMICK: Are you? (laughter) 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: By the way, I didn't take the cadillac: 

I took the Lincoln Continental. (laughter) 

MR. MC CORMICK: Gas mileage is better in the cadillac. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: But, of course, it is also a company that 

doesn't provide us with any secretarial help; any telephone costs; any office 

costs; and I am a pure general agent. As you know, the cost of doing business 

in insurance is hidden; it is not just the agent's commission, as we all 

know. But, that is another side. 

The value that I am getting at and the reason why I am taking this 

stand, I think, is because I took exception -- not to some of your statements 
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as much as to the tone of some of your statements, because we can discuss and dis­

agree, as you pointed out, philosophically. The one thing I have to say 

for the record is, the easiest thing to attack, and I have been doing it 

for seven years, is a giant. But, at the same time you attack that giant, 

I think it is fair to say that Prudential Insurance Company -- you mentioned 

Prudential two or three times-- I would like to say that the State of New 

Jersey is very proud that Prudential's Home Office, in its beginning, started 

in this State, and it provides an awful lot of jobs and an awful lot to 

our economy. In fact, it wouldn't be an overstatement to say that one of 

the things that has given us an identity in this state is our Meadowlands 

Sports Complex, where the New York bankers left us in the twelfth hour, 

and Prudential put up the "bread." I am very proud of that, and I am very 

proud of Prudential -- although I don't always agree with them, as you may 

or may not know. I think they are an excellent company; and I just have 

to say that because I belive it. I believe it is true. I think they can 

improve on their products, like we all could improve on a lot of things, 

but I don't think the attack on Prudential was necessary, in my opinion. 

On the product, it is one thing. 

I would also like to see in your illustrations -- and maybe the 

next time you deliver a slide you will use that company that I earned that 

car from -- the Prudential Insurance Company. I would like to see that, 

because I have already done it. Then, let's talk about who is doing what 

for people and who is giving more to people, not only in return, which is 

important, but in flexibility and the right to choose. I couldn't agree 

more with your philosophy, that once you have that pile of money, the way 

the economy is today and with what is happening today, you are losing money 

by leaving it there, but the thing that I haven't heard anyone bring out 

today is that in that 6% return of interest that you have to pay - and I 

don't want to debate it today because I have been debating it for a little 

while now with some people from Florida that are selling deposit term -

after that seven year period, you see, in that grey area, we talk about 

whether or not that interest is tax deductable or not. It is a very interesting 

proposition that arises because if you took that money out then and you 

still had the 6%, and if it is true that you still can take that tax writeoff 

because you meet the seven - but I don't want to argue that - then you project 

it into a similar situation, with a similar return, comparing apples to apples 

and peaches to peaches, and I think you would find what happens very 

interesting. 

The problem, as you pointed out, is that you have to be there; 

you have to tell your client about it; and you have to provide him with 

that information. And, I agree with that, it is a hard thing to do, but 

it can be done, and I suggest it can be done as well if not better in many 

cases than selling a person deposit term. That's my opinion. (applause) 

ASSEMBLYMAN BORNHEIMER: All right. As I said before, we will 

hold back the emotions. Are you finished, Mike? 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: Yes. 

MR. MCCORMICK: May I make an observation to Mr. Adubato's statement? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BORNHEIMER: Surely. 

MR. MC CORMICK: First of all, I would respectfully submit to 
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you that we are not the attacker we are the responder -- okay? We are 

not the person or the company or the philosophy that is attacking. We have 

not ever. We have just, with a great deal of consistency, had to respond 

to the same identical issues -- and, incidentally, to the same identical 

results. The fact of the matter is, we would like very much to just simply 

have it accepted on its face value, as "there are places for other things." 

It was purely by choice, or by chance - and I mean totally by chance - that 

the incentive award program I pointed out happened to be your company. That 

was a remarkable coincidence, but nontheless it was a coincidence. I picked 

that because we find great fault sometimes with the fact that company "a" 

over here is doing something and its incentive is too nifty, or it is too 

something or another, but if it is being done over here under a different 

foremat, then it is kind of like whose ox is getting gored. Now, interestingly 

enough, you have not hearing us say incentives ought to be stopped, or life 

commissions ought to be lowered, or any of those kinds of things. You see, 

we are not on the attack here never have been. We never want our company 

to be in that position. But, what you must do when you are attacked is, 

you must respond. That, sir, is respectfully what we are trying to do. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: You are doing a good job. 

MR. MC CORMICK: Thank you, sir. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BORNHEIMER: If I may--

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: Even though I may not agree with you, you 

are doing a good job. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BORNHEIMER: Has your company projected what the initial 

cost would be to the consumer with a renewable clause at the tenth year, 

and without the different age category? 

MR. MCCORMICK: I'm sorry, Mr. Bornheimer, would you say that 

again, please? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BORNHEIMER: Has your company projected what the insurance 

will cost to the consumer at the end of the tenth year when he has to buy 

a new policy? 

MR. MC CORMICK: Yes, it is projected out. The choice the consumer 

has is given to him at the time he buys it. As was stated, an illustration 

is given to every consumer. It goes all the way out to any age he wants, 

including age 100. 

I would like to make one observation that I think should be noted 

here. One of the legitimate, in my opinion, objections to deposit term 

is the fact that it converts to whole life at the end of ten years in many 

of its forms. I totally agree with the legitimacy of that objection. I 

think you should, however, understand how it came into existence. Some 

years ago when the product was being filed in a number of states - and letters 

of reccrd can be shown if you choose to initiate the investigation we recom­

mended, or the study - they refused to approve the product because it didn't, 

some time or another, turn into the magical product of whole life. So, companies 

that design the products said, "Okay, we will design the product for a term 

of ten years, and then automatically convert it to whole life, with the option 

to renew it," which, of course, did nothing but placate the states on a particular 

point. Subsequently, the newest products we have brought out do not convert 

to whole life automatically, but rather renew automatically, with the option 

to take whole life, if that is what you want. Subsequently, we intend to 
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change all of our products, so that whole entire option is out of it, except 

as an option; it is not automatic. 

correct. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BORNHEIMER: Now, that projection is a guaranteed price? 

MR. MC CORMICK: Oh, yes, sir. It is fully guaranteed price, that's 

ASSEMBLYMAN BORNHEIMER: Has any state, or anyone -- or the Congressional 

investigation -- asked the Internal Revenue Service to take and make a recom­

mendation of whether these interests, or whatever you may call them, are 

non-taxable? And, on what basis have you established that they are 

are non-taxable? 

MR. MC CORMICK: Under IRS Section 101, cash value accumulation, 

until it exceeds the gross premium, is non-taxable. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BORNHEIMER: Now, let me ask you another question in 

reference to your own particular company. Take, for example, that you have 

a consumer, or a client, who has a whole life policy with a cash surrender 

value, or has a cash value. Do you recommend to that consumer, or do your 

agents recommend, or it is the company's policy, that he take and convert 

his whole life policy to deposit term, or do you recommend that he take the 

cash value and convert that to some other type of term which would be compatible 

to deposit term? 

MR. MC CORMICK: First of all, in the company we have only one 

stated position on the subject of replacement, and that is that it is in 

writing, it is made crystal clear, it has been done, or stated, publicly, 

as it is being stated now. First and foremost, we are unalterably opposed 

to the concept of replacement, unless it can be clearly shown to be in the 

consumer's best interest. That is position one. 

Position two is that in the conducting of the affairs that bring 

about the conclusion of position one, it must be within the letter, the moral, 

and the spirit, of the law of that state, and if that state is silent, as 

fifteen states of this country are silent, then they will use our replacement 

statute which means we have no silent states at Firemens Fund. 

There are none. To my knowledge, we may be the only company in the country 

that does that. So, we supply an analysis of that, irrespective of whether 

the state law requires it or not, because we think it is necessary and in 

the consumer's best interest. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BORNHEIMER: Are there any other questions from the 

members of the Committee? 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: You know, I wrote almost the same question 

down. I didn't ask it; I took so much time. But, I would like to say that 

when we talked about profile, and we are talking about the earning years, 

and the years of dependency - I saw a young lady walking around with a sign 

that said, "Vote No; Protect our Children"-- Unfortunately, I have had the 

opportunity to pay death claims, and it is one thing in dependency; it is 

another thing when you start talking about those people. Today I think there 

are a hell of a lot more people that are in need of insurance for state tax, 

as well as non-taxable money -- as much as we can get, legally. What happens 

to that individual if he goes along with the process, say from age 35, and 

then doesn't have the same earnings that he had and is now on a fixed income -

which most people would be - but needs that $100,000 life insurance? He is 
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going to pay - if I am wrong, correct me - either a very high premium for 

term insurance again, or if, for instance, the individual becomes uninsurable, 

I would think he would convert to whole life at any stage, in my opinion. 

We can debate that, but I would rather not. That is what I would urge. What 

happens to that individual when he has to pay that kind of a premium, as 

opposed to the argument that if he --? I am not defending the system; 

what I am defending is that there are ways within the structure of the system, 

according to what contract you are using, and how you apply and diversify 

that equity, to have that person have that $100,000 whole life contract 

paid up at age 65 by replacing the money that he spun off, not into the deposit 

term concept necessarily, but taking that money out that he had the use of 

and then buying-- You know, he kept the contract. He never lapsed 

the policy. So, he is tying up whatever amount -- $60,000 or whatever 

it may be according to the company -- to buy a fully-paid-up life insurance 

contract without paying any more premium, but still having the benefit of 

today's economy. I would think that there is no comparison to doing it that 

way, as opposed to having a man take money now and then purchase a life insurance 

policy. And, I admit that I am setting up a certain situation, specifically. 

I admit it. You know, it is not universal. I am not saying it is for everybody. 

I am saying for this specific situation. 

There is no way, that I can think of -- and I can change my mind 

if I see facts -- after 20 years in this business -- and I know something; 

I am not saying I know everything, but I know something about this business 

and money -- that anybody can say that he is not a heck of a lot better of 

taking that equity out, diversifying, having that policy, without having 

to pay for it at age 65, if there is a need for permanent life insurance. 

If there is not a need, that is another story. But, if there 

is a need for life insurance, for whatever reason, when that person is on 

that fixed income, how do you or I, as salesmen who believe in what we are 

doing regardless of where we are coming from, sell that man that product 

and say, "Okay, at age 65 you are going to have to go out and you are going 

to have to pay maybe $6,000 a year in premium for the $100,000 policy 

or more. Is there any response that you can help me with? 

MR. MC CORMICK: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: Good. 

MR. MC CORMICK: In fact, there is one I can give you beyond help; 

I can give you absolute proof, and that is commence the study that we suggested. 

Commence the study that we suggested, and then when you outline specific 

detail, you have alternative a, b, c, d, and intelligent people - knowledgeable 

people such as yourself - can look at it and say, "Given these circumstances, 

there are four legitimate choices there, two that are sort of flaky, but 

nonetheless real," and you mightfind that of 100,000 New Jerseyians that 

look at it, 25,000 take each of the four, for whatever reason. Because 

when you use terms like fixed income, if fixed income is at $800 a month, 

that is one thing; if fixed income is "I'm fixed and right down to my last 

$140,000 a month from my oil wells", that might be a different fixed income 

problem. What is a gross estate? What kind of tax problems do we, in fact, 

have under the then existing Federal Income Tax laws? All of those are variables, 

and thus preclude my responding to them in any specific "yes", "no", "I agree", 

"I don't agree" manner 
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ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: I agree that I was unfair by setting out 

a specific situation, and I also say that it is fair to say that while whole 

life is not apple pie and motherhood, I don't think deposit term is apple 

pie and motherhood either. 

MR. MC CORMICK: I didn't suggest it was; I do not now suggest 

that it is. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: Thank you. 

MR. MC CORMICK: All that we suggest, and have all along, is it 

is a legitimate product; it has a legitimate place in the marketplace, and 

it should not be legislated against. That has been out only suggestion all 

alonq. 
ASSEMBLYMAN BORNHEIMER: We will break for lunch now. We will 

be back at 1:30. 

(lunch break) 

AFTER LUNCH: 

\ 
ASSEMBLYMAN BORNHEIMER: We will call the hearing back in session 

now. The next person we will hear from will be Robert Witney. 

R 0 B E R T W I T N E Y: Good afternoon 

ASSEMBLYMAN BORNHEIMER: Good afternoon, Mr. Witney. 

MR. WITNEY: I feel privileged to be the lead-off speaker this 

afternoon. My name is name is Robert L. Witney. I am the Vice President 

of Huggins and Company, consulting Actuaries of Philadelphia, Pennsylvania. 

I am a fellow of the Society of Actuaries, a memeber of the American Academy 

of Actuaries, and also a Certified Life Underwriter. I am representing Firemens 

Fund, American Life Insurance Company. 

My testimony will explain our opposition to Assembly Bill 2001 

for reasons based simply on the minimum cash value requirements therein. 

Huggins and Company is one of the oldest actuarial consulting firms, 

having been in business since 1911, and has had extensive experience with 

additional first year premium policies. Incidentally, my usage of the phrase, 

"additional first year premium" here is consistent with the spirit, and perhaps 

the letter, of Section 4 of the subject bill. As is noted in the Statement 

accompanying this bill, the original label of "deposit term" can be misleading 

to the consumer, who might think of the additional first year premium as 

a deposit in a savings bank. 

First, I will provide some historical background. As was mentioned 

this morning, the development of additional first year premium contracts 

dates back to the mid-1960's. At that time, many newer companies found it 

difficult to attract quality agents. Those agents that they did attract 

provided them with poorly persisting business. This produced losses for 

these companies, many of which did not have the capital to absorb such losses. 

These losses arise because when a life insurance policy is written, 

a substantial expense is incurred, ranging from 125% to 200% of the annual 

premium, just for acquisition costs. These costs cover sales conunissions, 

sales management and training costs, policy issue, record establishment, 

underwriting expense, medical exams, etc. These costs are then recovered 
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over a period of five or more years. 

When a policy lapses for nonpayment of premiums, the unrecovered 

acquisition becomes a loss. In the premium calculation process, the actuary 

anticipates such losses, and arranges for them to be absorbed by the persisting 

policyholders through higher premiums. If the level of lapses exceeds what 

had been anticipated, the Company absorbs the losses. The dilemma of many 

new companies was to minimize the risk of such Company losses. They also 

were interested in reducing the impact on persisting policyholders' costs. 

A few creative companies, in analyzing these problems, came up 

with the idea of providing a more specific penalty to lapsing policyholders. 

This took the form of an additional first year premium added to a level 10 

year term policy. If the policy did not lapse during the 10 years, the policyholder 

would receive twice the additional premium back. 

It has been accepted by the vast majority of actuaries and regulators 

that it is proper to provide a penalty to lapsing policyholders of additional 

first year premium policies in the form of policy cash values which gradually 

increase to the tenth year endowment of double the additional first premium. 

Another facet of what is generally acceptable is that the first positive 

cash value will be available in the fourth or fifth policy year for most 

ages at issue. This level of cash value is actually in excess of what is 

required under the standard nonforfeiture law, which is applicable in New 

,/,• t'S('Y. 

Assembly Bill 2001 maintains a penalty to lapsing policyholders, 

but the required minimum cash values are significantly in excess of what 

I just described as generally accepted minimums. This leads to our opposition 

of Bill 2001 for the following reasons, each of which will be discussed briefly: 

l. It does not follow the principles or the spirit of the Standard 

Nonforfeiture Law. 

2. It is inconsistent with basic actuarial approaches to the determina-

1 io11 <>I c·d:;ll V<~IU<'S. 

3. It would unnecessarily add to the cost of the product, causing 

companies to raise premium rates for New Jersey residents. 

4. It treats one type of insurance product completely differently 

from all others, although the same issues concerning early termination equity 

pertain to these products also. 

Mr. Alfted M. Guertin, currently a consulting actuary and a resident 

of New Jersey, and previously an actuary of the New Jersey Insurance Department, 

was Chairman of the National Association of Insurance Commissioners Committee, 

which developed the Uniform Standard Nonforfeiture Law. The purpose of this 

law was: l. to update minimum cash value requirements in a way that is 

fair and just to the policyholder, and also recognize some, but not all, 

of the insurance company's acquisition expenses; and, 2, to establish uniformity 

of cash value requirements in all states. 

Mr. Guertin has testified that the additional first year premium 

type of policy was considered when the standard law was drafted, and that 

such policies which contain cash values within the requirements of the standard 

Nonforfeiture Law cannot be regarded as unfairly discriminatory. In addition, 

it is not within the principles nor the spirit of the Standard Nonforfeiture 

Law to split a policy the way Bill 2001 does into a term insurance element 
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and a savings element, and to reyuire separate minimums on each part. If 

such were the case, the minimum cash values on virtually all permanent forms 

of insurance would be higher. In short, Bill 2001 is unfairly discriminatory 

but the standard Nonforfeiture Law currently applicable in New Jersey is 

not. 

As I indicatec earlier, in describing the initial development of 

additional first year premium policies, it is standard actuarial practice 

for an insurance company to recover its commission and other acquisition 

costs over a period of time. Assembly Bill 2001 would significantly lengthen 

this recovery period, thereby increasing the costs of early lapsation. 

This additional cost would cause some companies to stop issuing 

in New Jersey, or to raise premium rates for New Jersey residents. Prior 

to this morning, I thought the indirect intent of the framers of this bill 

might be to prohibit the sale of additional first year premium policies in 

New Jersey, now I learn that the intent is to lower commissions. In my opinion, 

there is enough superiority in the typical life cycle type product over the 

typical whole life product for the result to be an incrc'ase in the tPrm prc;mium, 

rather than a reduction of commissions. I might add that it is rare for 

a State to adopt a special nonforfeiture provision for the additional first 

year premium type, or any other type, product. 

My testimony has been essentially limited to the minimum cash value 

requirements of Assembly Bill 2001. It is very difficult to understand the 

statements describing these requirements, whether one is an actuary or not. 

We question whether the Assembly would want to follow such poor form which 

could lead to substantial differences in interpretation between the insurance 

department and carriers. Aside from this point, we have mentioned several 

substantive concerns with this bill. 

them in summary form: 

I would like to close by repeating 

1. The bill does not follow the principles or the spirit of the 

Standard Nonforfeiture Law. Such law anticipates additional first year premium 

policies. 

2. It is inconsistent with basic actuarial approaches to the determination 

of cash values which take into account the impact of acquisition costs. 

3. It will cause companies to increase prc'miums in Nc?W .J<·t-S('Y. 

The National Association of Insurance Commissioners is considering 

a cash value formula for additional first year premium policies, commonly 

called the NAIC method. It is my understanding this method will be discussed 

more fully by other speakers. My purpose here is to indicate that if New 

Jersey were to take any action on cash value requirements, it should follow 

the NAIC method in the interests of uniformity. 

Thank you for the opportunity to present my views. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BORNHEIMER: Thank you very much, Mr. Whitney. Mike, 

do you have any questions? 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: No, not really. 

the speaker. 

I would just like to thank 

ASSEMBLYMAN BORNHEIMER: Thank you very much. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: Mr. Chairman, if I may make a suggestion, 

with this long list that we have before us, I hope that we can give everyone 

an opportunity to present their point of view. It might be helpful if the 

Chairman would request the speakers to, if they have one, leave a copy of 
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their presentation and to, more or less, give us an overview instead of reading. 

We have allowed the previous speakers this morning to take all the time they 

wanted. We haven't heard at all, but I think that the speakers who presented 

their point of view this morning did it very eloquently, on each side of 

the issue, and I would hope that the speakers, in fairness, give everyone 

an opportunity to speak, and that we could limit the time for each speaker, 

and read into the record their total statement, if they have a printed one 

with them. That is just a suggestion, Mr. Chairman. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BORNHEIMER: Okay, Mike. 

The next speaker will be Roland Panneton. 

R 0 L A N D P A N N E T 0 N: My statement starts out with good morning. 

I am not sure of whether that was wishful thinking or what, but please disregard 

it. Good afternoon. My name is Roland Panneton. I am an attorney and 

I am here representing the views of the National Association of Life Underwriters. 

NALU is a federation of approximately 1,000 local and State associations, 

whose membership in the former totals over 140,000 individual life insurance 

agents, general agents, and managers throughout the United States, and 3500 

of these individuals are located right here in New Jersey. 

We are pleased to be afforded the opportunity to present our Association's 

views concerning what we consider an extremely serious matter. A-2001 is 

legislation which, if enacted, should have a sign1f1cantly positive impact 

on the consumers of New Jersey who might be considering the purchase of deposit 

term type insurance. As we understand it, very generally, A-2001 would not 

adversely affect the sale of deposit term, but would require certain disclosures 

which will assist the consumer in his decision-making, and also A-2001 would 

prohibit certain marketing techniques which would tend to mislead and confuse 

the consumer. 

I think I can safely say that we can all agree in this room that 

since the introduction of deposit term into the marketplace, it has certainly 

been controversial, to say the least. It has been described as be-

inq "a real break-through for consumer oriented life insurance;" "a superior 

type life insurance", all the way down to "it shouldn't be allowed to be 

sold." 

We see the need this afternoon to address ourselves to two basic 

questions: One, does the deposit term type of product and the way it is 

marketed create such problems as to call for special legislation to alleviate 

these problems? And, two, if it does call for such legislation, is A-2001 

substantially that legislation which will insure that purchasers of. these 

products in New Jersey be protected from these problems? 

After years of research of deposit term, I am sure it is no surprise 

to anyone that there are varying, differing views of the product. There 

are a number of qualified authorities in the field who feel that there are 

very serious problems with the product and the way it is marketed. 

In my prepared statement I list six or seven of these authorities, 

and go into detail as to some statements that they have made in the past 

concerning the product. You have it. It is part of my prepared statement. 

Due to the constraints in time, I see no reason to go into them now, but 

they are there for the record. I would like, however, to concentrate, if 

I might, on the last authority, which is quoted there on page 5 -- that is 
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number 7 -- "The problems with Partial Endowment Type policies stem primarily 

from the conflict between the marketing techniques associated with the product 

and the true nature of the product. These problems fall into five broad 

categories: 1) misleading or confusing terminology; 2) artificial relationships; 

3) arbitrary severability; 4) cash value inequities; and 5) inadequate disclosure." 

This quote is from a very well prepared article, by Dr. Harold 

Skipper. He was mentioned this morning, more than once. And, this article 

that he prepared is in the CLU Journal. The full context of that article 

is in the prepared document of the New Jersey Association of Life Underwriters. 

In that article, he explains in detail, and analyzes the problems 

associated with deposit term products. Dr. Skipper does point out, however, 

that in his opinion the problems associated with deposit term policies should 

not be viewed as peculiar to these products but are actually endemic to the 

existing system of life insurance. They merely magnify already existing 

systemic problems. He believes that as such they cry out for systemic analysis 

and solutions. 

The systemic problems that Dr. Skipper outlines fall into five 

basic categories: One is the inadequacy of the Unfair Trade Practices Acts; 

two is the inadequacy of Standard Nonforfeiture Laws; three is inadequacy 

of solicitation regulations; four is inadequacy of the replacement regulations; 

and, five, inadequacy of licensing procedures. 

From a long-range perspective, Dr. Skipper may be absolutely correct, 

presuming Dr. Skipper's prognosis is correct: To remove from the marketplace 

the supposed five systemic problems above would certainly be the ideal solution, 

not only for deposit term but for all other problems now present in the marketplace. 

However, this is the real world we live in and to even suggest that these 

five categories of systemic problems will be successfully addressed in the 

short term is wishful thinking at best. The consumers of New Jersey need 

relief from the problems associated with deposit term today, not six or seven 

years from now. If and when long-range systemic solutions can be implemented -

and I am reminded of the study which was suggested by the Firemens Fund spokesman 

this morning; such a study would take, I am sure, years and years and years 

to conclude, meanwhile the consumers of New Jersey are in need of a solution 

and they need one now -- the short term solutions needed today can be supplanted. 

New Jersey needs a solution now. 

The last question I would like to address is whether A-2001 is 

adequate to protect the New Jersey insuring public from the many problems 

which are mentioned in the formal statement with the deposit term product 

and how it is marketed. We feel that it is, and we fully endorse A-2001. 

I want to thank you again for the opportunity to share our views. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BORNHEIMER: We want to thank you for your kindness 

in paraphrasing. 

MR. PANNETON: You're welcome. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BORNHEIMER: Mike, do you have any questions? 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: I would just like to make one comment, Mr. 

Chairman. Mr. Panneton, when you talk about time going by, I would just 

like to share with you that the other day - in fact, last week - I attended 

the opening of a spur on the New Jersey Turnpike in Harrison, coming out 

of Newark, and that was something that was planned for 23 years, but we 
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finally got to it. 

MR. PANNETON: Well, you are to be congratulated. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BORNHEIMER: The next speaker that we will take will 

be Commissioner James Sheeran. 

C 0 M M I S S I 0 N E R J A M E S S H E E RAN: Mr. Chairman, I 

have a prepared statement, which is quite lengthy. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BORNHEIMER: Okay, would you paraphrase it? 

COMMISSIONER SHEERAN: I am going to try and get into the more 

specific parts. The first part is a rather complete background statement, 

in which we attempt to view it from the perspective ofall parties, and I 

think fairly so. 

The New Jersey Insurance Department believes there are three essential 

criteria that should be used to craft a workable, remedial response to partial 

endowment term insurance problems, or to evaluate any of the multitude of 

proposals that have already been advanced. 

We believe, first, that any proposal should be evaluated primarily 

for what it does to advance the overall interest of New Jersey's life insurance 

consumers, and not for the relative advantage it provides to one or another 

group of agents or companies who are understandably competing to retain, 

or expand, their share of the life insurance business in New Jersey. 

This criteria immediately suggests a second, which is that remedial 

action should be to the extent feasible neither piecemeal nor discriminatory, 

but should deal with whole classes of consumer problems and should be applicable 

across the board to any and all industry practices or products that generate 

these problems. 

Third, we have subscribed to the traditional wisdom that where 

a problem can be handled by an administrative agency under existing general 

statutory standards, it is preferable the problem be handled throuqh available 

administrative Procedure. 

This brings me to a consideration of the Department's position 

on Assembly Bill 2001. There are two main parts to this proposed legislation. 

The first is a product's specific set of rules for determining minimum non­

forfeiture values, or cash values, during the succeeding years of a partial 

endowment policy term. The second is a product's specific miscellaneous list 

of disclosure rules that would apply to the sale of partial endowment term 

policies. 

To begin with, the section of the bill establishing new, specific 

non- forfeiture values for partial endowment term policies-- it is the Department's 

position that these provisions would operate not so much to advance the general 

interest of the consumers, as to advance the special interest of the industry 

competitors of partial endowment term companies and agents. We do not object, 

in principle, to the idea of increasing the required cash values in the early 

years of any life insurance policy. This is one possible approach - as more 

adequate disclosure is another - to the problem of avoiding, or reducing, 

the risk to the consumers of significant financial penalties because of early 

lapsation policies. 

What we do find offensive about the specific provisions of Assembly 

Bill 2001 is that they single out partial endowment policies for precisely 

the kind of discriminatory and punative regulation that we have said we 
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would like to avoid. If the minimum non-forfeiture values which would be 

imposed by Assembly Bill 2001 are really necessary to protect the interest 

of consumers, we would wonder why they are not proposed for application to 

all cash value life insurance policies. (applause) 

ASSEMBLYMAN BORNHEIMER: I will repeat, if I may -- as I said three 

times this morning, and the first time this afternoon there is no need for 

emotion, and if there is another outburst I will have to pick and choose 

and maybe have some people stand out in the hall, or sit in the hall, until 

they find out how to act as they have been directed. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: Excuse me, Mr. Chairman, excuse me, Commissioner, 

for the benefit of those people who are here for the first time - and I am 

glad to see so many people here today fighting for their cause, or whatever 

it may be - the rules of this House are enforced very strictly. Now, we 

would just like to help you by saying that we would like you to remain in 

these chambers. Now, the Chairman has very patiently, three times, requested 

that you conduct yourselves the way you are supposed to conduct yourselves 

in these chambers. If there is another outburst, I am going to request the 

Chair to have the person removed from the room and he will not be allowed 

back. 

Now, we would appreciate if we would be fair to all speakers here. 

That is our system, and if you want to cheer anyone, wait until they go outside, 

or wait until this meeting is over and you can cheer right here in these 

chambers, but allow us to go through with the procedures. Thank you, Mr. 

Chairman. 

COMMISSIONER SHEERAN: I'm sorry, Mr. Chairman, if anything I say-­

ASSEMBLYMAN BORNHEIMER: No. Please, it is just a thing that we 

have to do in order to maintain order. 

COMMISSIONER SHEERAN: 

over the years. 

I understand, we have dealt with many problems 

As matters now stand, if these providions were enacted, partial 

endowment policies would be required to provide higher cash values in the 

policies early years, than, for example, competing straight life insurance 

policies sold my major insurers. We think this is unfair, and we think it 

is unnecessary. We think it violates Professor Skipper's suggestion that 

such changes not be couched in terms of punative action against partial endowment 

term policies exclusively, and his point that for the sake of practicality 

all proposed changes in nonforfeiture laws should be undertaken at the same 

time. 

We note that the National Association of Insurance Commissioners 

is now perfecting recommendations for a variety of improvements in the standard 

nonforfeiture laws, and we believe that that is the appropriate general context 

in which to consider equitable changes that would affect partial endowment 

term policies. 

Turning to the miscellaneous list of disclosure rules in the remainder 

of the proposed legislation, the Department of Insurance has no strong objection 

to the content of most of these provisions, except that where they would 

permit certain misleading terminology, or mandate certain forms of disclosure, 

we think that the consumer interest and the ordinary common sense would dictate 

they apply to any life insurance policy where the same kind of problem needs 
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to be addressed. 

In a recent meeting with companies and agents who are among the 

major sellers of partial endowment term insurance, and others who are among its 

severest critics, we propose to amend the Department's existing life insurance 

solicitation regulation so that the most important of these proposed disclosures 

and provisons would be available as protections for the New Jersey consumers 

in any and every solicitation situation where they are relevant. 

We propose, for example, to prohibit the use of the term "deposit", 

either in the name of partial endowment term insurance, or as a designation 

for the addition of first year premium, and to prohibit misleading statements 

or implications of a rate of return relationship between the additional first 

yearpremium and the endowment available at the end of the policy term. 

The critics of partial endowment term predictably favored this 

prohibition, and we found it interesting that the representatives or partial 

endowment term companies and agents at our meeting were also willing to accept 

it. 

We felt that the single other most valuable provision contained 

in Assembly Bill 2001 was the designation of an unfair trade practice of, 

"the failure to include information that explains what happens to the additional 

first year premium if the policy is terminated prior to the end of the term 

period." Or, in other words, a mandatory disclosure of the risk of a substantial 

financial penalty if a consumer lapses a policy in the first few years of 

a policy term. Since this risk may be equal or greater in the case of a 

traditional straight life policy, we propose an amendment to the Department's 

existing solicitation regulation that would mandate such disclosure for all 

cash value policies. 

The reaction to this proposal was also interesting. Representatives 

from partial endowment term companies and agents were willing to live with 

it, while their critics were opposed to applying such a rule to the sale 

of their own policies. 

Although the critics of partial endowment term apparently find 

it consistent to require a special warning of the dangers of early lapsation 

exclusively for the purchasers of that product and not for their own, we 

find this to be a monumental inconsistency. The unwillingness of some partial 

endowment term critics to live under the kinds of rules they would make for 

others is, in our view, prima facie evidence of the discriminatory cast of 

many of these proposals. 

The Department of Insurance believes that many of the disclosure 

rules prescribed in Assembly Bill 2001 should be adopted for the protection 

of New Jersey consumers, but we do not think it is a good or practical idea 

to fashion separate miscellaneous lists for every different insurance product 

that may need additional regualtion. Still less do we think it is a good or 

practical idea to engage in such miscellaneous regulatory list-making through 

the legislative process. 

The third criterion we have suggested for the evaluation of proposals 

on partial endowment term problems is that these proposals should rely, to 

the extent possible, on available administrative remedies. The Department 

of Insurance does not believe that the problems relating to partial endowment 

term insurance are qualitatively different than disclosure and other problems 
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which are currently addressed in the Department's solicitation and replacement 

regulations, and we believe that those regulations are the obvious starting 

point for efforts to improve disclosure to consumers. To address the problems 

with legislation would, we believe, foreclose the opportunities provided 

through these administrative mechanisms and set a burdensome precedent for 

legislative involvement in the detailed regulation of dozens of other insurance 

products with their own problems and their own avid partisians and critics. 

The Department is actively pursuing its study of partial endowment 

term insurance problems and at the first opportunity in the New Jersey issue 

of the New Jersey Register, we will publish remedial proposals in the form 

of amendments to the existing life insurance solicitation regulation. 

While we have not yet put this proposal into final form, it will 

cover many of the practices intended to be addressed through the disclosure 

Standards proposed in Assembly Bill 2001. 

In addition, we agree with companies and agents on both sides of 

the partial endowment term insurance controversy that an improvement in the 

Department's life insurance replacement regulation is needed, and that this 

would benefit consumers in a variety of ways including but not limited to 

partial endowment term replacements. A revised model replacement regulation 

recommended by the National Association of Insurance Commissioners seems 

to provide many improvements over our existing regulations, and we will therefore 

propose changes based on this model in the New Jersey Register in January. 

One defect of all replacement regulations is that they seem more 

attuned to the clarification of rights and procedures applicable to existing 

and replacing companies and agents than directly to the plight of the consumer 

in trying to make a sound decision regarding a proposed replacement of insurance. 

Rules governing the conduct of existing and replacing insurers are a step 

in the right direction, since they increase the likelihood that the consumer 

will receive information illustrating the argued advantages of either course 

of action. In any replacment regulation finally adopted by the Department, 

however, we will try to assure that the consumer is the prime focus of attention 

and concern, and not merely a passive third party in a vigorous tug of war 

waged by existing and replacing insurers. 

We will, of course, provide adequate opportunity for industry and 

public comment on each of our proposed administrative remedies before adopting 

them in final form. 

In conclusion, I would like to think the Assembly Banking and 

Insurance Committee for this opportunity to present the Department's views 

on Assembly Bill 2001. We certainly share your concern that action be taken 

to correct the problems which it is intended to address. I hope that my 

comments have been helpful in this regard. Thank you very much. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BORNHEIMER: Thank you, Commissioner. Mike, do you 

have any questions? 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: Commissioner, I want to thank you for being 

here today. I would, however, being a legislator and not a regulator, say 

to you that in the past I think we have shown that sometimes - and I am not 

necessarily specifically talking about today's issue - with all the good 

intentions on everybody's side, it is necessary to have legislation, for 

whatever reason. 
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COMMISSIONER SHEERAN: I certainly recognize your function. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: And I thank you, being that I have been 

elected seven times -- or, I don't know how many times -- I haven't been 

appointed, I am sure the people recognize it too - a little bit. 

But, I would like to just give some thought to some of the conclusions. 

When we talk about, first of all, the issue today, and we talk about deposit 

term, we talk about being fair to all products that are similar, and we talk 

about cash value products, I think one of the things I have come to realize 

today is that the argument, as you pointed out in your closing statement, 

is not necessarily what is in the best interest of the consumer, but what 

is this tug of war? 

Now, if we are going to talk about what is in the best interest 

of the consumer, then I think it is fair to compare apples to apples. Now, 

it is my understanding that a product called deposit term, number one, is 

a term policy -- term life insurance - a side fund - that does not have cash 

value in the true sense of the meaning of cash value. So, I would think 

that if you are going to compare equals, the comparison should be made with 

deposit term and an annual renewable term contract. Then, take the same 

amount of money that the person would have to pay out of his kick for deposit 

term, including the money that is used in the side fund, and project if that 

individual, for instance, bought that term insurance with another company, 

as opposed to the company that is selling deposit term, what value would 

he get for that protection, and apply that same amount of equity that is 

in the side fund into a similar side fund, without any commissions, with 

no load, and then see what is in the best interest of the consumer, because 

certainly that is what we are here to talk about today -- the consumer. 

It is totally out of focus to talk about a whole life product as 

opposed to any term product, that is the first step. They are two separate 

animals, no matter what you think of them. They are not equal. No one ever 

said they were equal. And, according to the specific situation, that's the 

product the individual should buy. 

So, I just feel that it is unfair to the discussion to talk about 

whole life as opposed to term insurance, because that is what this person 

is buying. And, the uniqueness of the product, as opposed to whole life, 

is that this individual, every so often, must make a decision. The norm, 

we say, is ten years. So, if he starts out and uses the classic projection 

of age 35, now he is 45; now, if he decides to take option four, which is 

an automatic conversion to whole life with that company - because if the 

person becomes uninsurable, he cannot go to the lowest net cost life insurance 

company that he can find; he is restricted to that company, that product, 

that portfolio -- of course, he is ten years older. Now, if you pro-

ject that out to age 65, then the consumer that we are all interested in 

is on a fixed income. He has projected for those periods from 35 to 65, 

and now he decides, "Hey, I am uninsurable; I need whole life; I am not going 

to buy term 100; I want to make sure I have it and I have to come up with 

that premium"- which is a heck of a lot more for whole life than when he 

was 35 you know, we seem to forget that, even in the analogy with whole 

life. We seem to forget that. We cannot make these sweeping statements 

and compare apples to oranges. It doesn't work. It doesn't fit. It may 
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sell. It may be appealing. It looks great on paper, just like Equity funding 

looked great on paper. The point is, if we are going to be fair, and I know 

everyone here wants to be fair, we have to compare equals. And, I suggest, 

Commissioner, very strongly that the equal to this product, regardless of 

the legislation-- I am not defending it one way or the other at this point 

in time because I think it is fair to listen first, in spite of the fact, 

Commissioner, that some people here are talking about spending four million 

dollars to defeat me next time. I think that is a waste of money, to tell 

you the truth - to spend four million dollars to defeat one legislator - but 

I welcome the challenge, in spite of the fact I haven't made a decison yet. 

But, I think they are helping me go the other way. 

The point is, that in spite of that arrogance by some of the people 

here today, and that attitude of dogma that they have the answer 

to the public's problem and everybody else is wrong -- in spite of that, 

I will do my best to be fair. I think everyone else should. And, we cannot 

be fair if we are going to limit the discussion to comparatives of just whole 

life and this product. We must discuss the entire marketplace in the best 

interest of the consumer, first of all -- as you pointed out. 

I would just like to say that those questions that are unanswered-­

As was pointed out by one of the previous speakers, the answer is to have 

a study; well, I don't need a study. I know what that man is going to pay 

at age 65 for whole life. I don't need any commission. I don't need anyone 

to wait five years, or seven years to tell me that. All. I have to do is 

open up a rate manual of any company, and I can find a premium. Now, if 

the individual wants to buy a product, knowing what he is going to buy, I 

have no problem with that-- absolutely none. But, I don't think we ought 

to be here today saying that for one hundred years or so the industry has 

been raping the public. That is ridiculous, and it is slander at its worse. 

And, I resent it. I resent it very much that these "Johnny-come-latelys" 

come out with this pie in the sky and two weeks in a course,and they have 

the answers to the insurance problems. I would hope that the State of New 

Jersey, in all its official capacity, will be fair in dealing with these 

issues and not be intimidated and not be misled into thinking that in a matter 

this complex we are going to sit here and make judgment on a product based 

on the ground rules of other people, and not on reality. The reality is 

we are talking about a term product - for the third time - with a side fund. 

That is what we are talking about, and you must use that product. 

If a person wants to buy whole life knowing what's there, I think 

it's great. If a person wants to save money in an insurance company and 

he can't afford to do several things at once, he is limited, and he doesn't 

want to buy term insurance -- no problem. 1£ he wants to take a paid up life 

contract at age 65 -- no problem, the money is going to be there. We can 

guarantee that too. You can guarantee it with any product, but it is the 

cost of that product. And, the trick with this product is that you don't 

work it out to its final conclusion. That's the trick. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BORNHEIMER: Okay, thank you, Mike. 

Jim, I just have to be a little critical. It seems like we are 

separate branches of government, and it is always interesting to me - it 

has been in my short experience down here in the Legislature - that as soon 
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as you put a piece of legislation in,everybody gets interested. I think 

this piece of legislation is very interesting to the public of the State 

of New Jersey. I hear about it because I am involved with it. I am involved 

with banking and insurance. But, the average citizen sitting in his closed 

room in his horne doesn't know anything about it, and it is our obligation, your 

obligation, and actually the agents' obligation, and the insurance companies 

obligation to see if we are doing the right thing by the public in general. 

So, the original purpose of this piece of legislation was to stimulate 

activity, and I think I have done that very well today. 

COMMISSIONER SHEERAN: I agree. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BORNHEIMER: I think it has become an important fact 

in the legislature, even ~ho~gh we didn't override the Governor's veto, that 

we always like to have legislative oversight, as we did with the standards 

bill. 

I am glad to see that your Department is involved in this, as 

they always have been in the past. I think we would like to invite ourselves 

to be part of that with you, while you are going along in your process, and 

in our plodding ways - being novices - we will try and find out all the facts 

we can, and draw upon your Department for expertise. 

We appreciate your being here, and we thank you very much. 

COMMISSIONER SHEERAN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BORNHEIMER: The next person we will have to testify 

is Mr. Guasconi. I hope I have pronounced that correctly, Mr. Guasconi. 

J 0 S E P H G U A S C 0 N I: Thank you. Good afteroon, Mr. Chairman, 

Mr. Adubato, my name is Joseph Guasconi and I am an assistant counsel in 

the law department of Equitable Life. I am pleased and grateful for the 

opportunity to testify before this distinguished committee concerning A-

2001, a bill which we belive would provide the insurance purchasing consumers 

of New Jersey with additional protection when purchasing partial endowment 

type products. 

The Equitable has more than 500 agents and employees here in New 

Jersey. The Equitable also provides life insurance protection for more than 

650,000 New Jersey residents, the total coverage for which exceeds $6.5 billion. 

In addition, the total of our mortgage and real estate investments alone 

in this State exceeds $330 billion. I think these numbers demonstrate that 

Equitable has a vital stake in New Jersey and, therefore, we feel it is particularly 

important for us to be here today. 

Now, I will heed the admonitions of Mr. Adubato and do my bes~ 

to try not to repeat some of the things that have been said already here 

today. 

Although we don't market a partial endowment product, we have come 

to learn a great deal about it because of a large number of replacements 

of in-force Equitable policies. 

In New Jersey, for instance, alone, for the first nine months of 

1980, almost 40% of the reported replacements of whole life insurance were 

by a partial endowment product. Now, while Equitable is committed to adoption 

by all states of the NAIC Model Replacement Regulation, we do believe that 

replacements are generally recognized as not being in the best interest of 

an insured. 
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As I indicated, our agents and our underwriting specialists have 

become familiar with this partial endowment product, and we found that the 

sales presentation of the product is often accompanied by a distribution 

of a package of information which may denigrate companies which offer whole 

life products, and characterize these products as outdated and even a "rip 

off." The fact that among the mot-e common options available to a partial 

endowment purchaser is a contract which then converts to a traditional whole 

life product is usually avoided. 

We have reviewed the proposed Marketing Guidelines, as set forth 

in Section 4 of the bill. We believe that these proposals to eliminate references 

to certain terms and phrases will be especially helpful in implementing the 

consumer protection purposes, which this bill serves. 

In anticipation of this hearing, I asked our Agency Operations 

Area to see what they could do to develop a profile of the Equitable whole 

life policyholder whose policy is replaced by a partial endowment product. 

Admittedly, it was an unscientific sample, but the sample indicated that 

over 60% of the replacements involved policies with face amounts of $25,000 

or less. Almost 88% of the involved policies were $50,000 or less. Now, 

these data suggest to us that the person most likely to be receptive to a ~ial 

endowment sale is from a lower or middle class family and, with no disrespect 

intended, described as a "less sophisticated" buyer. Although the data we 

prepared are not intended to be conclusive, it is our strong impression that 

the average purchaser is more likely to be impressed by the overwhelming 

amount of computer-printout information which is used to attempt to convince 

the purchaser of the sale information which is, by our analysis, sometimes 

misleading and, by virtue of its volume, confusing. Because partial endowment, 

though available for many years, has only recently become somewhat attractive 

and well known, the average person doesn't have enough familiarity with the 

product to be able to immediately determine whether the promises being made 

can be fulfilled. Therefore, the potential for misrepresentation is greater 

and will continue unless corrective action along the lines of the proposed 

legislation is enacted. 

Now, we recognize that any discussion of the marketing tactics 

used by the partial endowment companies, and the purported benefits of the 

product offered is likely to be highly charged and controversial. Therefore, 

it is all the more important that this Committee consider the benefits and 

drawbacks of the proposed bill. We believe it represents a constructive 

effort towards correcting one of the major problems involved in marketing 

the product. We have supported and will continue to support efforts at the 

National Association of Insurance Commissioners level to develop a partial 

endowment regulation, and to improve upon the existing replacement regulation. 

That concludes my paraphrased statement. I would be happy to answer 

any questions you might have. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BORNHEIMER: Thank you very much. Mike. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: I would just like to say that from your presentation, 

it is not so much the product that you are arguing about. 

MR. GUASCONI: We have no objections to the sale of the product. 

That is why I was kind of entertained by the discussion earlier today. We 

are not objecting to the sale of the product in New Jersey, we are just 
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concerned with the marketing standards that are sometimes used, because we 

see the promotional literature that is put out and we find quite a bit of 

it to be misleading. 

L I L I 

~SSEMBLYMAN ADUB~TO: Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BORNHEIMER: Thank you very much. 

MR. GUASCONI: Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BORNHEIMER: The next person will be L. L. Schmid. 

S C H M I D: Mr. Chairman, Mr. Adubato, ladies and gentlemen, 

my name is Lili Schmid and I represent the Newark Association of Life Underwriters, 

which is the largest association in New Jersey. 

You have in your possession a copy of my presentation. Since it 

is getting late, I would like to forefit my statement because many of the 

statements would be repetitious, and for the sake of saving time I would 

like to say thank you very much; we would like to support your bill. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BORNHEIMER: Thank you very much, we appreciate it. 

Your statement will become part of the record. (see page 

The next individual will be James Hunt. 

JAM E S H UN T: Mr. Chairman, my name is James Hunt. I am Fellow 

of the Society of Actuaries. I am former Insurance Commissioner of Vermont. 

I have worked in the Massachusetts and New Hampshire Insurance Departments 

as an actuary. I was consultant recently to the Federal Trade Commission. 

And, currently, I represent the National Insurance Comsumer Organization. 

This is a newly-formed organization, which has been aided by Ralph Nader 

in its formation, and obviously intends to do work in insurance. 

I have done two different studies on deposit term, and feel that 

I am quite informed about the product, at least from a technical point of 

view, not necessarily how it is sold in the marketplace. 

We just heard about the hearing a couple of days ago, and that 

is the reason I have no prepared statement. I would like to ask whether 

the record will be open? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BORNHEIMER: Yes, it will. 

MR. HUNT: Thank you. I think we will supply a statement, perhaps 

going into some deatil on some of the technical areas raised this morning. 

Our position on deposit term is that we are not against the concept 

of deposit term, but rather against the way the theory is put into practice. 

I consider, as an actuary, the contrived relationship between cash value, 

and the difference between the first and second premium, or the deposit, 

to be a kind of actuarial trick. The reason for that is, that contrived 

relationship implies a certain rate of return -- double your money, or increasing 

10% on your money. If we are making the kind of comparison that Assemblyman 

Adubato has been talking about, with going rates for term insurance, we find 

that the actual rates of return on that deposit, if you will, vary anywhere 

from pretty close to the representation, at least in the case of double your 

money, to negative 10% on one's deposit. And, we think that when the representations 

are made on a certain rate of return, it ought to be matched in the product, 

and it is not. 1t is especially not matcht·d in the products which are widely 

sold, because the better deposit term policies pay lower commissions and 

are not sold so much. 

If I understand the way deposit term is sold, it is represented 

that it is low cost term insurance because you put up a deposit, and if you 
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drop out, the deposit is forfeited. If that is the case, then deposit 

term rates ought to be even lower than renewable term rates, but they are 

much higher. In addition, one is p.romised double his money, or even better. 

Now, either you don't get low cost term insurance, or you don't double your 

money or better. You don't get both, yet it is sold on that basis. 

Now, this raises the question of what, if anything, should be done 

about that. As a personal matter, and I am not sure that our organization 

has been in business long enough to have formed a position on this question, 

I consider the way in which deposit term is sold to be an unfair trade practice. 

I think that the Commissioner should convene a hearing, not only on some 

of the reforms he just mentioned, but on this question of whether when they 

say they are going to double your money and don't, it is an unfair trade 

practice. 

I am not against the deposit term concept. If they don't say we 

double your money, if they want to sell high-priced term insurance with an 

additional first year deposit, if they want to wrap a deferred annuity around 

it -- all of those are perfectly appropriate, competitive products. 

Now, it would be one thing if this product were only used to compete 

with other products, but it is used to replace older policies. It is used 

a great deal, as I understand it. I would just like to give you one example. 

If I take a four or five year old Prudential policy - I am going to guess, 

but I could take another company - and I calculate this rate of return that 

you may have heard the Federal Trade Commission mention, I find that the 

rate of return for the next ten years is going to be five, six, or seven 

percent on that policy. That is the return on the equity in the policy. 

But, if I take that equity out and buy deposit term, I am going to get anywhere 

from zero to negative ten -- maybe not quite negative ten, but somewhere 

in that range. Now, why would anyone want to surrender a policy that has 

a positive seven percent rate of return for one that has a negative rate 

of return, and also give up the right to borrow one's money at five or six 

percent, which is a valuable right in and of itself? 

!-will state it as an actuarial judgment on my part that almost 

all existing policy forms that are replaced by deposit term policy forms 

are unjustified replacements, and one of the reasons that it is unjustified 

is that if you do the analysis on a borrow out cash value, which the 

Assemblyman was talking about, you will find that it is much better to keep 

the old policy. 

What is our position on the Bill? I don't think the bill will 

knock out deposit term insurance. It will just make it even higher priced. 

I don't think the initial cash values are that much different from some that 

are already on the market, but I have not tested this myself. 

I question whether the sanctions in the bill will be effective. 

If you allow the contrived relationship to imply double your money or better, 

I can't imagine the agents won't find some way to point that out. 

So, we have some worries about the merits of the bill. I am not 

sure if we had to come down on one side or the other which side we would 

come down on, but I would suggest the better approach is for the Commissioner 

to take up this question of whether the sale of deposit term, as it is now 

structured,with a double-your-money-or-better relationship, is an unfair trade 

practice, because if it is, then I think he has the powers within New Jersey 

46 



law - although I haven't read the law, but all states have Unfair Trade Practices 

to deal with the problem -- not necessarily to knock out deposit term, but 

to knock out the double your money represenations. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BORNHEIMER: Thank you. Are there any questions, Mike? 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: I would just like to thank the speaker because 

I agree with him that we shouldn't knock out the opportunity for the people 

to buy the product if that is what they want to buy. That's their right. 

I don't think there should be any more restrictions on that product as opposed 

to an equal product. That is why I said what I said before, and I was glad 

to hear that you are not convinced about the necessity of this bill, because 

I am not convinced of it either. But, I am convinced that we have some learning 

to do and some education to do in protecting the people who are buying the 

product which could be sold, and is sold sometimes, I think, under false 

pretenses. It is very simple. And, it is not only this deposit term, I 

think we all know in this room that there are some agents that replace an 

existing policy and sell the guy another whole life policy with another company 

under false pretenses. So, it is not unique to deposit term. 

MR. HUNT: That's right. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: So, I think our job here is to not look at 

the product as the enemy, but as something that is misunderstood, something 

that should be understood by the public before they buy it, put their money 

up front, and give up something else. 

Another thing I would like to point out concernsyour statement about 

the commissions with the product as opposed to one company and another company. 

There are companies that sell deposit term that pay a commission of 40%, 

not 245%, and that is a different product than the one you are talking about 

today. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BORNHEIMER: Thank you, Mike. Thank you very much, 

sir, we appreciate it. 

The next individual will be Allan L. Hellman. 

A L L A N L. H E L L M A N: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I am here to 

speak in favor of Assembly Bill 2001. My name is Allan L. Hellman, and I 

reside in Montclair, New Jersey. I have been selling life insurance for 

nine years and I carry the professional designation of Chartered Life Underwriter, 

CLU. As President-elect of the Passaic-Bergen Association of Life Underwriters, 

I am representing a professional organization of 600 life underwriters, and 

I have been authorized to speak to you today on their behalf. I appreciate 

the opportunity to be here. 

The Passaic-Bergen Association is involved in providing educational 

opportunities for its members, sponsoring public service projects, offering 

consumer education, and striving for excellence in the business we practice. 

In addition, we adhere to a Code of Ethics which states the following: 

"I believe it to be my responsibility: To keep the needs of my 

clients uppermost; to respect their confidence and hold in trust personal 

information; to render a continuous service," and I will skip on to the last 

point which is, "to keep myself informed with respect to insurance laws and 

regulations and to observe them in both letter and spirit." 

It is this last point in our code which prompts me to appear before 

you. The spirit of the laws and regulations you are concerned with involves 

protecting the best interest of consumers, as has been stated. Our Association 
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is concerned because consumers are being hurt by licensed insurance agents 

who disregard all of the six points in our Code. 

Despite our Association's efforts to promote ethical standards, 

and to build public confidence in our profession, we are constantly being 

plagued by the marketing activities of those who take advantage of the consumers 

you serve as legislators and we serve as life underwriters. Because of the 

complex nature of the products we sell, it is not very difficult for a clever 

individual with questionable motives to confuse and to mislead consumers. 

I would like to cite something that has not been mentioned yet, 

and that is a personal example of what does happen in the marketplace. We 

have been talking a lot in theory. I am one of those individuals who is 

on the firing line day in and day out, dealing with the consumers. I would 

like to tell you the story of what happened with one of my clients. My client 

was approached through a telephone solicitation by a so-called financial consultant 

who claimed he did not sell life insurance, but merely worked as an advisor 

who would help him cope with inflation. 

What happened is as follows - and this is just last January: This 

consultant proceeded to review my client's insurance policies and advised 

theywere inadequate, and that he was being ripped off. The statements my 

client remembers hearing about the values in the policies which he was able 

to pass along to me were inaccurate. 

The consultant advised immediate replacement of the permanent insurance 

with a policy that would provide twice the coverage for the same amount of 

outlay. Even though he previously represented himself as not selling insurance, 

he offered to now handle this transaction for my client. 

Papers were signed and one-half of a large first year deposit was 

paid. My client was assured that the deposit would double and be paid back 

to him in ten years. My client did not sign a disclosure statement required 

by the State of New Jersey, nor did he recognize it when I showed him a blank 

form and what it looked like. 

My client was not informed as to what premiums would have to be 

paid after ten years. He was of the impression, when I talked t.o him, that 

the attractively-low premium would continue indefinitely. My client was not 

told that he would forfeit all or part of the deposit if he terminated the 

policy before the end of ten yars. My client was not given, in hand, any 

kinds of figures or illustrations regarding the replacement policy. 

When the policy was issued, the agent left it at the door and did 

not offer to review it. Again, no illustrations or explanatory literature 

was offered. Two days after the policy was received, I met with my client 

and reviewed the policy with him. Also, we compared it with what he was 

giving up -- what I had previously sold to him. My client realized that 

he had made a mistake and decided to return the new policy under the ten­

day-free-look provision. The next day my client informed the agent of his 

decision. In response, the agent paid my client a visit and proceeded to, 

one, tell my client it was unnecessary to file a disclosure statement; two, 

assured him that the policy could be returned and his money returned anytime 

up to thirty days; and, went on to convince him that he might better wait 

and reconsider. When my client later insisted on returning the policy, the 

agent paid another visit, this time with his general agent. Again, without 

leaving any illustrations, the two agents now offered an annuity to go with 
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the deposit term policy,led my client to believe that the high rate of interest 

was guaranteed indefinitely and convinced him to consider buying the annuity 

and keeping the new policy. By now the ten day period had passed. 

My client decided, finally, that he would return the policy and 

buy the annuity. However, the agent refused to sell the annuity unless the 

life policy was kept, and my client ended up mailing the policy and a letter 

to the agent. As you might expect, the agent denied ever receiving the 

policy in the mail, and my client never received his deposit back. 

Living through this sequence of events used up a great deal of 

my time and energy; however, in keeping with the code of ethics I subscribe 

to, the best interest of my client was served and I was unable to help him 

avoid a mistake that could have jeopardized his family's financial security 

for years to come. 

Now, this was one of six cases that I have personally had to deal 

with in the past year. You miltiply that by six hundred, and you will under­

stand why our Association is concerned and why it is in the public interest 

that Assembly Bill 2001 become law. 

I might also mention that as an added comment, every time I have 

run into a situation with deposit term, it has not been in competition for 

a new sale, it has always been involving a replacement situation. 

Secondly, I would add that after hearing the insinuations that 

have been made early today about the motives of life underwriters, for me 

this is a profession, and the commissions I receive - although I make a good 

income - are not uppermost in my mind. If I do the job for my clients, I 

know that I will be taken care of, and my first interest is in serving them, 

and I think I say that for many, many other underwriters in our State who 

are concerned about this problem. Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BORNHEIMER: Thank you, I appreciate your testimony. 

Mike. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: Yes. I would like to clarify something. 

Did you say that you were able to recoup your client's money? 

MR. HILLMAN: No. The deposit was not returned. They denied having 

the policy, and we were not able to recoup the money. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: Was the Department of Insurance contacted 

about this transaction and the way it was done? 

MR. HILLMAN: The client did not wish to pursue it. At this point, 

he was very disgusted with the whole thing and decided not to push it any 

further. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BORNHEIMER: Thank you. The next individual will be 

Robert Germann. 

R 0 B E R T 0. G E R M A N N: My name is Robert Germann. I live in 

Bricktown, New Jersey, and I am a consumer and a factory worker. Excuse 

me, I am not used to speaking like this; I am a little nervous. Bear with 

me. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: Please don't be nervous, you are the person 

I want to hear. 

MR. GERMANN: Yes. I am the first consumer. I hear everybody 

talking about consumers, but here I am. 

In March, 1980, I had the pleasure of talking to a gentleman from 

Charter Life. He came and he talked to me, and for the first time in my life 
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he explained to me about life insurance. I had three different policies 

Metropolitan, Prudential, and Equitable -- and I never knew what I had. Agents 

always came; they sold to me; and they gave me the policy. They never went 

into the policy. They always had a piece of paper that showed me different 

things, but they never went into the policy itself. 

These people went into the policy and explained some good things 

and some bad things. This is what I wanted to hear. 

Then, they made a complete comparison of what they had to offer, 

a comparison to Metropolitan, Prudential, and Equitable. With this comparison, 

and the same amount of money- I didn't have to change my outlay one penny-

I was able to double my face on my life insurance, my wife's face, and I 

kept the children the same. 

I also have a cash value, and this cash value is going to grow 

too, and it almost doubles. The only difference is, now, if I want any of 

that money out of the cash value, I don't have to take a loan or anything 

like that, it doesn't come off the face if I take a loan; I just withdraw 

it -- no loans, no nothing; there is nothing. I just take out if I want 

it. And, if I die, I get the complete face amount and the cash value -­

or my wife does; I'm not around to get it. 

I mean, I can't see how anybody can discredit something like that. 

I didn't have to change anything, and it goes all the way down the line for 

the same outlay, because I would have put the same amount out with the other 

policies, no matter what. The question is, there is nothing wrong with it. 

What is wrong with the others? Why couldn't they do that? That's what I 

want to know. 

My agent never explained. These people came with my policy - the 

new one - and they went through that whole policy for two hours and explained 

every little bit to me. I didn't comprehend it all. I'm not that good. 

But, I knew it was a lot better, I just knew it. It was cut and dry, unless 

you can change my mind. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: I don't think anyone wants to change your 

mind, Robert. I think it is beautiful that you have faith in the person 

you are dealing with. 

MR. GERMANN: I don't have faith--

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: Regardless of - if I can interrupt you-­

MR. GERMANN: Go ahead. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: I think it is good if you find someone that 

you have confidence in, someone that you feel is doing the job. If you want 

it done, then you ought to do it. The question is, is the fact that you 

feel that way-- Well, let me put it this way: I don't want to question 

your feelings; I don't have a right to. I think the bottom line is you, 

and sometimes government does try to overprotect people and that is wrong. 

Whether you made a mistake or whether you didn't make a mistake, that is 

your right. And, if you feel good about it, that is not for us to judge. 

If you feel that you improved your situation and if you fell that 

you are getting more value for your bucks, fine. I am not going to tty and 

sell you anything, but if you would ever like to talk to me about it, I woUld 

be happy to show you the first step is, as you pointed out, the one you took 

with all the oh's and ah's. I would be very happy to sit down and discuss it 
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with anyone because I don't know everything and I am always willing to learn. 

I don't think anyone in this room knows everything. 

But, you know, some of the people here are emotional for the things 

they believe in, otherwise they wouldn't be selling it -- no matter what 

side of the aisle you are sittinq on. So, I don't think that is the issue. 

1 think the issue is that vou have poor service, number 
one, regardless of what company you were doing business with. That is something 

that I don't think anyone that respects themselves and their identity in 

the insurance business sanctions. I think people in the life insurance business, 

regardless of what product they are selling, are all upset about things like 

that, because that happens too often, unfortunately. 

The product, on the other hand, when you talk about your total 

outlay and you talk about doubling your face - or your protection - and you 

talk about the fact that now you are putting out the same money that you 

were puttinq out--

MR. GERMANN: That's right. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: (continuing) --and you got double your face 

and nearly double your money back in ten years -- well, is it true that-­

MR. GERMANN: No, I didn't say ten years. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: I'm sorry. 

MR. GERMANN: My cash value grows, and it will be a lot more at 

retirement time. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: Okay. I wonder. I don't know the answer, 

but I wonder if you are putting out the same money ? Did you put out a lump 

sum payment, plus payments as was described here? 

MR. GERMANN: No, I will tell you exactly. I was putting out fifteen 

sixty-five with my old policies, and I am putting out fifteen sixty-five 

now. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: One thousand five hundred and sixty five 

dollars a year? 

MR. GERMANN: That's right. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: That's what you were putting out annually? 

MR. GERMANN: That's right. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: And today you are still putting out one thousand 

five hundred and sixty five dollars a year? 

MR. GERMANN: That's right, forty-three thousand on myself, fifteen 

on my wife, and two fives on both children. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: Can I ask how old you are? 

MR. GERMANN: I am thirty six. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: And you had forty-three thousand dollars 

worth? What did you have endowments? 

MR. GERMANN: No. Whole life. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: Robert, let me just say this to you: I am 

not going to try and defend anybody, but let me defend myself. In twenty 

years I have never sold an endowment because I never believed in them. In 

twenty years I have never sold a retirement income contract because I have 

never believed in them. And, I am not going to criticize those people that 

do. I mean, if they believe in it, they sell it. 

Let me say to you that you are a tough customer and your testimony 
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means a lot to me and I will certainly weigh everything you have said, and 

I will investigate it even more so I can make a better judgment. I want 

to thank you for coming down. 

MR. GERMANN: Okay. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: Come down again. Don't be nervous. 

MR. GERMANN: I will. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: 

I think the bottom line is, I had the choice. 

That's right. I agree totally with you. 

It should always be your choice. 

MR. CEHMJ\NN: 'l'ho111k you Vt!r·y much. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BORNHEIMER: The next individual we will call will 

be George Harding. And, for the record I would like to let everyone be aware 

that we are making part of the record a statement by Hal Wolf. He submitted 

it. He is not here, but we are making it part of the record. (see page 66x) 

G E 0 R G E W. H A R D I N G: My name is Gl!O rqt' W. Ilardi ng. am 

Senior Vice President and Actuary, University Life Insurance Company, Indianapolis, 

Indiana. I am a Fellow of the Society of Actuaries and a member of the American 

Academy of Actuaries. I have given you a copy of my prepared statement, 

which I will not read. 

Basically, it makes two points: I am in opposition to Assembly 

No. 2001. I believe the cash value portion of that bill is inappropriate 

on its face. I believe things of that sort should be done through NEIC, 

which, in fact, is taking place currently. 

Lastly, the effects that are in the bill with respect to cash values 

will produce unfortunate results for New Jersey residents in the form of 

either higher premiums for consumers or lower commission for agents, or both. 

With respect to the disclosure portions of that Assembly Bill, 

it seems entirely inappropriate to me to do that through legislation. There 

is adequate regulatory administrative authority in the Commissioner's office 

to handle those matters quite adequately. 

I did have a few other comments though, generally. I have attended 

a lot of hearings of this sort in various stales. I have kind of Losl cuurll 

over the years. It has been over a relatively brief period three and 

one-half or four years -- but there must have been fifteen, or sixteen, or 

seventeen meetings like this. In one sense I would find your position to 

be very difficult because you are being bombarded by an immense amount of 

information and you are trying to make some sense of all of this. 

If I may, I have just a couple of comments in trying to sort this 

information out. Perhaps my comments on these items will be of value to 

you. First of all, one type of comment that you have been bombarded with 

is whether or not deposit term is good-- whether it is good or bad-- inand of 

itself. I submit that is not a question that has any relevance to this hearing. 

You are committed, as is the Commissioner, to allow all products which meet 

the laws of this state. To prohibit any particular product is entirely inappropriate 

in a free market economy. 

Secondly, another type of comment that you are being bombarded 

with is a comparison of deposit term policies with other types, whether they 

are yearly renewable term, or life, or anything else. Again, that seems 
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to me to be irrelevant. Every person is going to have his own opinion about 

that, and the only one that really counts is the purchaser. 

Third, in the areas of marketing practices, there are a lot of 

comments made about marketing practices and the sale of deposit term, and 

probably rightly so. Over my three to four years, that is probably the area 

that down-deep causes the most problems. 

I would like to go on record supporting Commissioner Sheehan's 

approach to this. That, I believe strongly, should be done through administrative 

means rather than through legislative means, first of all; and, secondly, 

~ny such action should be on a non-discriminatory basis. Anything that is 

done in the sale of deposit term policies that is bad is likely being done 

in the sale of other policies as well. It is no more wrong when it is done 

in the sale of other kinds of policies than it is in connection with deposit 

term. 

Fourth, you have been hit with a lot of questions about replacement, 

whether replacement is justified, unjustified, how you determine that, whether 

replacement even ought to be permitted -- I submit that is irrelevant. I 

think replacement has been, is, and is going to be even more so a fact of 

life. That is not caused by deposit term. It is not caused by whole life, 

or YRT. It is caused by increased interest rates, decreased mortality, lower 

unit costs. Those are the things that cause replacement. It is also caused 

by consumers not being willing to pay higher charges in their insurance costs 

for commissions, expenses, and so on. Companies are being forced to bring 

down the price of their products. That makes newer products more attractive 

than older ones. So, I submit that arguments about replacement are irrelevant 

for the purposes of this hearing. Again, it is up to the policy owner to 

decide whether a different policy serves his needs better, and even if it 

doesn't, it is up to him to make the decision. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BORNHEIMER: Thank you, sir. I would challenge some 

of your statements, but for purposes of expedience I will not at this time. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: Well, I will. Excuse me. I agree, quite 

frankly, philosophically, with almost everything you said in the bottom line 

about the consumer. The question is, is the consumer given accurate information 

when the replacement is made, regardless of whether the replacement is made 

so the consumer buys deposit term or he buys another whole life product, 

or anything else? When the analysis is made, unfortunately, I have had the 

opportunity in the past 20 years to bring to task some of my colleagues in 

the industry who - and I am not talking about deposit term; let me clear 

the air - who replace the contracts and in that column where it talked about 

the comparitives of the amount of premium the person was paying, and the 

mode of premium, this one specific contract that I remember vividly is, the 

person was paying a five hundred and sixty dollar a year premium and the 

person who replaced the contract labeled that as an semi-annual premium when 

he made his comparison. It is so simple to do that it is unreal. And, I 

challenge that no one in the Department picks it up no one. They are 

not questioned about it, and unless the person wh~ is servicing that individual, 

who is the original agent, is on his toes, analyzes it and finds things like 

that, nothing is ever questioned. And, no legislation is going to stop that, 

I agree with you. No legislation is going to prevent that from happening. 
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None. 

The other exception thai I have is when we talk about the regulatory 

power and the legislative power. While I am prejudiced Loward lhl~ lcgisLtliVc' 

power, I have a right to be because the Commissioner of Insurance - and I 

am not talking about this Commissioner of Insurance - in that role has always 

had the power, through regulatory processes, to deal with the blatant inequities -

for instance, in auto insurance and they don't do it, not only in New Jersey, 

they don't do it in any state. And, the only way it changes is through legislation. 

Now, I am not saying the analogy fits this bill or this subject. 

All I am saying to you is that it is not always the regulatory way to do 

anything. There are ways where even though people have the power to change 

things for whatever reason, they don't do it. And, unfortunately, then the 

legislature must act. Now, whether or not the time to act legislatively 

in this situation is now, I am not prepared to say. But, it doesn't mean 

that it isn't. 

MR. HARDING: May I respond to that? 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: Sure. 

MR. HARDING: With respect to the latter subject, I am in no position 

to argue. There is a time for legislation and there is a time for for regulatory 

action, and never shall the twain meet. The circumstances when each is more 

appropriate vary from case to case, so I can't argue on the point. 

With regard to whether the individual gets all the facts in the 

case of replacement, I suspect many times that is not true. There may be 

errors. There may be incomplete disclosures, or there may be no disclosure 

at all in some cases. There is ample authority in the Commissioner's office 

to discipline anyone found guilty of not correctly completing the necessary 

papers. But, in any event--

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: That's not true. Forgive me for interrupting 

you, sir. That is absolutely not true. 

MR. HARDING: I stand corrected. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: I apologize for telling you that, but it 

is not true. There are complaints that are laid there; they don't even get 

telephone calls. And, it is not true, forgive me. 

MR. HARDING: May I suggest then that if there isn't ample authority, 

then that is a subject for appropriate legislative action. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: Thank you, sir. 

MR. HARDING: With respect to providing facts on replacement or 

disclosure on original sale, though I think that is a broader subject and 

there is no difference with respect to deposit term and any other kind of 

policy, I would point out to you, whether it is New Jersey or it is New York, 

probably New York is one of the most heavily regulated states in the country 

with respect to life insurance. California is one of the least regulated 

with respect to life insurance. As far as I know, there is no evidence to 

indicate that original purchase decisions, nor replacement decisions, are 

any better in New York than they are in California. I think there is some 

doubt whether regulations or legislation have a magic effect just by themselves. 

Thank you very much for the opportunity to appear here. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BORNHEIMER: Thank you. 

John D'Amico. 
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J 0 H N D' AM I C 0: Mr. Chairman, my apologies for missing my turn. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BORNHEIMER: All right. Just paraphrase what your 

statement says. 

MR. D'AMICO: Sure, I will be very brief. My name is John D'Amico, 

Jr., Counsel of the Mutual Benefit Life Insurance Company in Newark-- the 

other life insurance company in Newark. We are one of the oldest, in fact, 

in the country, having been chartered in New Jersey in 1845. We have been 

in Newark ever since. We plan to stay there a good long time. When we 

look down the street at Prudential, we think that this is the company with 

the might of ten. We are the company with the might of one, I guess. 

We haven't grown to one of the twentieth largest mutual life insurance 

companies in the country with insurance in excess of thirty five billion 

dollars on the basis of any arbitrary event. We have done it because we 

have, throughout our history, provided high quality life insurance products, 

met our contractual obligations, and treated our policyholders equitably. 

We are appearing today in support of Assembly Bill 2001 because we feel that 

its enactment is in the best interest of our policyholders, and also in the 

best interest of the citizens of New Jersey. 

We do not offer for sale deposit term, or additional first year 

premium life insurance policies for reasons which I won't articulate orally, 

but are listed in our statement, and I think you have heard them over and 

over again. 

We also do not contend that the marketing of deposit term should 

be prohibited. We are not afraid of competition. Obviously, we have been 

able to survive competition since 1845. We do feel, however, that the experience 

in the marketplace suggests the need for legislation such as Assembly Bill 

2001, to extend to consumers the protection of the non-forfeiture laws previously 

enacted by the legislature and to curtial abuses in the marketplace, which 

have arisen from the unique features of deposit term. 

The legislature has seen fit to regulate life insurance generally. 

It has enacted nonforfeiture laws; it has enacted unfair trade practices 

legislation, and so on. Unfortunately, when those laws were passed, many, 

many years ago, we were not confronted with the economic forces which have 

brought us here today, and with the kinds of products which don't seem quite 

to fit those earlier laws and regulations. And, what we are saying is: Let 

there be competition, but let it be on an equal basis. Put everyone on an 

equal footing. Extend the protections that you have already seen fit to 

provide to the public to this new type of product. 

As far as replacements are concerned, we do feel that this is a 

very complex area which is probably best left to regulation by the Insurance 

Department. The National Association of Insurance Commissioners recently 

promulgated a new model life insurance replacement regulation which, unfortunately, 

does not adequately take into account the unique nature of deposit term insurance. 

So, I think there is much more work to be done, but I think the best work 

probably could be done at the insurance department level in that area. 

However, as to nonforfeiture legislation, and as to the marketing 

practices, which this bill addresses, there being no laws which now clearly 

apply to this situation, we feel that this bill should be adopted. 

That's all I have to say. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN BORNHEIMER: Thank you very much. 

The next speaker will be Abe Tarriff. 

A B R A H A M T A R R I F F: Ladies and gentlemen, I am speaking on behalf 

of the New Jersey Association for Truth in life Insurance. We are an Association 

that is consumer oriented for the purpose of trying to bring to, and educate 

the public on, ethical practices and counseling in life insurance and, as 

you say, side funds. 

This is not in my speech, but I will also take exception here. 

We have nothing to do with, nor is there any similarity between our work and 

the equity funding. We have opposed that, and we currently oppose that type 

of funding. 

I am a certified financial planner and have two offices in New 

Jersey, in Bergen County and in Monmouth County. I am a general agent. I 

have been in the insurance business and I have been in the securities business 

for the last 20 years. I have been weaned on whole life. I was also a securities 

salesman with a major security firm. I am currently a general agent and 

I employ about ten people. I am also an adjunct faculty member of the College 

for Financial Planning, and a member in good standing of the Institute for 

Financial Planners. 

Gentlemen, I am a little nervous, so forgive me. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BORNHEIMER: Take your time. 

MR. TARRIFF: First of all, it is imperative that we understand 

the purpose of life insurance. It is not a panacea to cure all financial 

ills. It is a need to replace a lost future income for the family unit in 

the event of an unfortunate premature death, so the family unit may maintain 

its cohesivness. It is also used to keep an estate in tact upon a death, 

and, again, to maintain the family cohesiveness. 

Another thing about insurance·; There is nothing in the Good Book that 

states that insurance must be kept from the cradle to the grave. Life insurance 

should be kept only as long as the need and suitability exists. If the suitability 

exists and there is a need at age 100, by all means one should be able to 

keep it to age 100. It should not be mandated that you must terminate it 

at a premature time. 

For the purposes of differentiating those who favor this bill, 

and those who know this bill is a horror, I will call the opponents, those 

who have proposed this bill, the "vampire life insurance peddlers." I am 

Afraid these vampires perpetrated a great fraud and deceit upon the sponsors 

of this bill. Hopefully, I can be instrumental in preventing you learned 

gentlemen from ~tting fraud and deceit upon the consuming public and your 

constituents. 

These vampires would lead you to believe that cash value life insurance 

is a virtue, and that any other kind of life insurance is only temporary 

and should be avoided, and should only be used sparingly and as infrequently 

as possible. 

Gentlemen, cash value is a cancer on the public. Allow me to induce 

you to kill this bill in its infancy. The vampires claim that our product 

and the informmation we impart to our clients represents unfair competition. 

Perhaps so, if you were to consider the least expensive with the maximum 

of protection as unfair competition. The vampire insurance industry per.a~izes 

their salesmen if they were to sell the proper type of life insurance protection. 
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I will ask you, is it unfair to give you a product that will permit you to 

have adquate protection, while simultaneously permitting you to save and 

invest your hard earned dollars for the benefit of you and your family, or 

would you prefer to provide only a portion of your needed protection plus 

leave your savings with the vampires at your death? It is your choice. If 

this bill should pass, you are asking each and every one here and the consuming 

public to leave our savings with the vampires. 

The vampires are asking you to legislate for them what they cannotdo, 

orare unwillinqto do. They are asking you to legislate us out of business 

so they can continue to commit legalized fraud and deceit on the public. 

Are you aware that cash value is owned by the insurer, not the 

insured? The vampire insurance industry sells this type of insurance as 

a savings plan. It has convinced the public, and hopefully you can see through 

this, that it is in your best interest to buy two benefits, but receive only 

one benefit. Should you die, the face amount is paid to the named beneficiary, 

and your hard earned savings remains with the vampires. Should you need 

any of your own money, you may have some, but they will charge you interest 

for you to use a portion of your own money. 

If you were to die and your savings had not been returned to them, 

they will take it from your widow. These vampires will pay your widow a death 

benefit, minus the amount of your own dollars you have used. If that is 

not criminal, I don't know what is; it is tantamount to theft, theft when 

the money is needed most, theft at the time of death of the breadwinner. 

The product these vampires are asking you to do away with is the 

most consumer oriented life insurance product known to man today. The vampire 

insurance product has been with us sunce 1860. Now a product comes along 

that will permit the insured to maintain protection to age 100, if needed, 

a product which is the least expensive and the cheapest possible to purchase 

and maintain. In one fell swoop, it has taken the life insurance industry 

from the horse and buggy age into the rocket age. These vampires want to 

do away with progress. Why are you letting them? 

The life insurance product which we foster is constantly being 

improved. Tremendous strides have been made, and will continue to be made. 

rtis general agents like myself, and those who are opposed to this bill, 

those of us who are consumer oriented, who continually prod and push to create 

better life insurance products for the consumer. We have a product 

will allow us to make a living and employ many who can also make a living. 

It is this product that permits our clients to invest in municipal bonds. 

If I may make an aside, the Spots Complex bonds that you talk about 

I sold over one million dollars worth of those bonds to my clients. 

It is we term agents who have provided for the needs of the public. 

It is we who have our clients hard earned dollars earning dollars for their 

retirement. 

The vampire insurance industry tells us it is sinful to save and 

invest in Series E Bonds. It is the vampire insurance industry which is asking 

you to make it unlawful for us to tell the public that they will have more 

dollars by investing their hard-earned dollars in tax deferred E Bonds at 

7%. They want you to make it unlawful for us to tell the public that 8% 

is more than 4%. These vampires want you to make it unlawful for us to educate 

the public about the magic of compounding. Yes, gentlemen, these vampires 
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are asking you to perpetrate fraud and deceit on the New Jersey donsumer 

for their own self-serving interest. Please do not let them. 

These vampires also would have you believe that their dividend is 

a return on profit. They never tell the public that is a misnomer, 

as it has nothing to do with profits. They are nothing more than a partial 

return of your own dollars which are derived from a deliberate overcharge 

of premium. If you must legislate, I suggest you pass legislation denying 

the use of the word dividend from life insurance contracts. It is incombentupon 

you to see that they clean their house. 

Gentlemen, the product these vampires are asking you to legislate 

out of business is the best consumer oriented life insurance policy on the 

market. This product is the best consumer buy on the market. We are living 

in inflationary times, yet this product is one of the very few buys for the 

consumer which costs less to buy. Why are you thinking of removing this 

product from the marketpoace? This product permits the consumer the greatest 

value for their dollar. 

Please do not remove this from the market. This is the Cadallac 

of the industry at Pinto prices. Next week are you going to do away with 

the Pinto or the Chevette because they are cheaper than the Cadillac, or 

because Cadillac cannot compete? Will you next outlaw the sale of these 

cars? 

Why are you tampering with free enterprise? The vampires would 

like you to for their own self-serving interest. 

The product we offer has the greatest flexibility. Why not let 

the law of supply and demand dictate what should be sold in the marketplace? 

Why not let the consumer decide. Why are you now regulating the marketplace? 

If this product were so bad, why is the consumer demanding it? Next week 

are we going to ban health insurance if it is not sold by these vampires? 

The overwhelming majority of complaints received by the New Jersey 

Department of Insurance concerning the sale of deposit term are from vampire 

agents losing a client. They cannot compete with out product, nor with our 

conscientiousness. Why are you doing for them what they are not willing 

to do for themselves? Why are you promulgating deceit and fraud on the public 

for these self-serving vampires? 

Never has a deposit term agent been fined or lost his license in 

New Jersey as a result of doing anything improper. There is a replacement 

regulation in force in New Jersey since 1972. No one deposit term agent 

has lost his license or been fined for violating this regulation. Gentlemen, 

this legislation before us has been proposed and written by those companies 

and their agents who do not sell deposit term. This legislation has been 

written and proposed by the vampire life insurance industry. They are angry 

every time they lose a sale to us. They want you to eliminate the competition 

for them. Why are you permitting them to have you accomplish for them what 

they cannot do for themselves? You are being used to hurt one group for 

the self-serving interests of another group. Perhaps next week you will 

regulate that only one brand of milk, or eggs, or bread can be sold in the 

State of New Jersey. 

Gentlemen, there are approximately 30,000 people who will lose 

all or part of their income if this bill passes. These people have done 

nothing wrong except to create and sell an excellent consumer product. 
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Why are you even thinking about taking their jobs away from them? I think 

you gentlemen are too intelligent to allow this to happen. I think you gentlemen 

are too clever to be rooled by these vampires. These vampires suck out the 

family's life savings. They suck at the interest your money can be earning 

for you. They suck away a child's education funds. They suck away a person's 

retirement funds. They suck away a widow or widower's income. They suck 

away at the very fiber of protection. 

Gentlemen, I beg you to consider the consequence, and search your 

own conscience and defeat this bill here and now. Do not allow this bill 

to be released from this committee. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BORNHEIMER: I don't know whether to say thank you, 

Mr. Tarriff. Thank you very much for your presentation. 

Mike, do you have a question? 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: No, I just want to make an observation. I 

wish you would come down here more often, because I have to laugh more in 

these Chambers sometimes. 

I n·::pc•cl your judqllll'ltts, <llt<l I cc•rLainly respect you. I Wdnl 

to thank you very, very much for coming down today. Please don't be nervous. 

The next time you do, try not to be nervous. There is nothing to be nervous 

about. We are here to learn. There is nothing conclusive here. That is 

why we have a public hearing. 

If I can make a suggestion to you-- Can I ask you this first? 

MR. TARRIFF: Sure. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: You call me Mike and I will call you Abe. 

Abe, let me ask you this: How long have you been selling deposit term? 

MR. TARRIFF: I started selling deposit term in the early '70's. 

The first product I sold I wasn't too thrilled about. I was selling securities. 

However, the deposit term, as you call it, has had a tremendous evolution, 

and it is nothing like it was in the early '70's or late '60's. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: Okay. You have been selling it for less 

than 10 years would you say? 

MR. TARRIFF: I have been selling it for six or seven years. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: What I am trying to get to is, your enthusiasm 

is great; you sell a lot of insurance because you have the motivation and 

you believe in your product, and that is great. What I want to know is, 

before you sold deposit term, were you one of the vampires? 

MR. TARRIFF: Unfortunately, yes, I was one of the vampires, and 

strangely enough - if I may - do you know when I realized that something 

was wrong with cash value insurance? When I was studying for my CLU. There 

was something about it that I couldn't put my finger on, but that made me 

very, very uncomfortable. I really comes back home to you when you pay a 

death claim, when you know that instead of $20,000 or $10,000 you could have 

given that widow $80,000, $90,000, or $100,000 for the same dollars, gentlemen; 

you know what insurance is all about. When you have a client call you up 

and say: "Abe, I have to thank you; because of you I have enough money to 

have my son's jaw corrected," this makes you feel like a calling. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: Abe, I don't want to belabor this, there 

are other speakers, but just let me say this to you: I am sure you are 
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probably aware that there are products in the industry, not necessarily participat­

ing- although if a person wants to, they can use a dividend option - but in 

a non-par situation, I am sure you are aware that there are products that 

have term riders on the equity portion of a contract and a cash value. You 

know, I don't consider the people that believe in their product and are getting 

the best value that they know of for their client vampires. But, you are 

entitled to your opinion. 

MR. TARRIFF: That's the only way I can describe them without getting 

more forceful. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: Abe, I will leave you with this: You have 

to remember that there are people on the other side of the issue, who feel 

that the people who are defending your position are incompetent, to put it 

nice. Now, the word incompetent and the word vampire are, to me, trigger 

words; they avoid the issue. And, what I am trying to say, at the risk of 

being serious for thirty seconds, is that I would hope that when you market 

your product, you don't go out and call life insurance people vampires, and 

I would hope that life insurance men who don't sell deposit term do not go 

out and call you a crook. Maybe then we can deal with the issue, instead 

of with the emotion. 

MR. TARRIFF: As a matter of fact, I had to sit with myself a little 

bit before preparing this and say, "how am I going to differentiate my philosophy 

from theirs," and the word vampire came to me. What other industry just 

sucks away everything the family tries to create? So, I thought that was 

very appropriate. I'm glad I gave everybody a little giggle. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: Thank you, Abe. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BORNHEIMER: Thank you. Ronald Richman. 

R 0 N A L D R I C H MAN: If there are any cash value agents by the name 

of Dracula, I am glad that I am not a woman. 

I think that what we are talking about today -- none of us really 

hit the issue, nobody, because we only had one consumer. What we have listened 

to is rhetoric. What we have listened to is our opinion of the consumer. 

What we have listened to is how it affects our income. 

Mike, if you want to call me Ron you made a statement earlier. 

You said: "Solely for one's own enrichment." I wote it down, that the agent 

sells this solely for his enrichment. There is an enrichment to the client. 

I want to read it to you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: I didn't say that. 

MR. RICHMAN: You said a lot of things, and it is easy to forget. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: I may have said something but--

MR. RICHMAN: Well, I wrote it down, because I think what is going 

on here today is criminal to the people of this State. Let me finish what 

I am talking about. We have a bill that is sponsored by a couple of men 

that probably can't pass an insurance examination. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BORNHEIMER: I'm one of them; I am the sponsor. 

MR. RICHMAN: Okay, then they don't even understand what it is 

to sell insurance. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: Can I help you, please? 

MR. RICHMAN: Yes, you can. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: I realize that we can fill the air with a 

lot of sparks very easily. 
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MR. RICHMAN: You have had that opportunity; I haven't. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: Be my guest. Go right ahead, sir. 

MR. RICHMAN: Now, what I am saying is this bill has been put forward 

by a couple of people and we don't even know if they know anything about 

insurance or what is even happening out there. And, I wonder where it comes 

from and why it came from there. I don't see a lot of clients around here 

complaining that they are getting hurt. I just don't see them. I don't 

see them marching through that door saying that they are being ripped off 

and hurt by this product that we are talking about doing "this", "this", 

and "this." 

I am going to read you something that I think is the most important 

thing I have ever seen. It is called the "Widow's Study." Now, the women 

on this panel, or the women listening, should be really interested in this 

because this is what life insurance is about -- it is about children. I 

am going to read something, with the help of Abe's glasses. I am going to 

quote this. You have that article up there. This says: "During the month 

of July the ADCO home offices were favored with a visit by Ron Richman" -

that's me- "of New Jersey ... " Incidentally, I started as a Prudential agent, 

and after one year, when I found out what the truth was, I could no longer 

sell that product. 

(continuing) " ... ADCO partner and MGA." That's who I am. "During 

his visit Ron showed us what he calls his Widow's study and we want to share 

it with you in Ron's own words." These are my words: 

"We show them that we believe this is the most important document 

(widow's study page). More than all the articles you'ver read, what the FTC 

has said, or what ever your agent has said" - or even an Insurance Commissioner, 

which I respect - "this document is the most interesting one. You will notice 

there are sixteen names on here (see the list)." It is on the second page. 

"If you will notice, the column that says insurance before replacement -- because 

this bill in its disguise is designed to help us stop replacing -- the total 

amount of insurance these people had was $190,500." That is a little over 

$10,000 a family, which is the wonderful job that was done by the opposition. 

That meant if they died, that is the total amount of insurance their families 

would get. 

"Now, inside these policies was that old cash value, and that totaled 

$30,350 as you will see at the bottom of the third column. But the way those 

contracts are worded by their company lawyers is that if these people were 

to die all this money is kept by the insurance company. There would be $30,000 

that made someone else richer and not the children since insurance is for 

the widow and the children. 

"With the philosophy we have, we don't want to spend any more money 

'cause times are tough enough right now. Since there are modernized products" -

and let's call what we are talking about a modernized product, whatever name 

you want to give it - "we took the same money these people were spending, 

replaced their policies and increased their insurance to what you see in 

the second column. You can see the total amount of insurance became $588,708 

without their spending a nickel more. In addition, once we replaced their 

old insurance it released over $30,000 in cash values. Most of the people 

took that money and put it into savings or an investment. This is not a 
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hypothetical situation we are talking about. This is called the Widow's 

Study because you see," Mike, "all those sixteen people are dead. They all 

died. These are my clients. I cried with everyone of these families," no 

matter who laughs, but the families didn't. 

"The point I am trying to make is, they received $588,708 plus 

$30,500 for a total of $619,058 instead of $190,000. That's over $400,000 

better," to circulate in the community, "and do you know all they had to 

do? Believe and listen to what I had to tell them. This junk that these 

other insurance companies are putting out is your children's enemy! And 

that's why you should get out of selling what you are selling. That's why 

I want you to change what you are doing ... doesn't that make sense?" 

You see, what I am trying to tell you is this country had an election. 

I've been a Democrat for a long time. You are. And they said, "We don't 

want this bureaucracy; we want free enterprise. We want the people to be 

able to decide what they want." 

I question this regulation. You see, I am a little bit of a cynical 

person. I don't know why they drew it up. I mean, I don't want to accuse 

people of getting paid off. I just can't do that. But, 

I just wondered how intelligent these people are that put forward this bill, 

and what was their purpose? It certainly wasn't to help these children. 

It certainly wasn't to help these people. 

There are so many things that were said by a lot of the opposition, 

and unfortunately by you also, Mike. We don't have the time. If we did, I 

would like all of thffil to be up there and I will handle all of them, because 

when you speak the truth, you cannot be beat. And, the truth is, yes, there 

are a lot of guys "scram up" selling deposit term, but every time you sell 

a cash value policy you ''scram up", in place of another word, because you 

don't tell the people that when they want their money they have to pay eight 

percent. You don't tell the people that they keep the cash. You don't 

tell them anything. 

I made a suggestion to Mr. Sheeran one time, from the Insurance 

Department of the State of New Jersey, I said, "I really believe in full 

disclosure. Let Prudential, Metropolitan, and all the companies you guys 

represent as helping their client, send disclosures out." Say to the people-­

! mean, they don't know about this until we come in the house. They don't 

know that they get charged, a lot of them. They don't know that the face 

of their policy comes down. All of a sudden, four months later, or four 

weeks later, when the agent comes back he says, "Is this dividend an option? 

How come you didn't tell me about that before?" We educate the people. Yes, 

we educate them. And, I will tell you what I heard from a lot of the people 

here. I have challenged people--

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: Excuse me, sir. I would appreciate it if 

nobody made any sly remarks when a person is sitting in that seat. That 

goes for anybody in this room. This is not the Franklin Life Insurance 

Company - or whatever it is - Board Room, and it is not the Prudential Board 

Room -- okay? I apologize for interrupting you. 

MR. RICHMAN: Well, I am used to that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: Well, okay-- go ahead. 

MR. RICHMAN: You see, they won't handle me one-on-one. I challenge 

whoever snickered to give me t'•n of his clic,nts, ;mel l will qivc him ten 
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of mine. Let. me to into his home and tell him what a wonderful fellow he 

is, and then let him go and talk to my clients. You see, I am a guy who 

is very loved and very hated. I am hated by the agent and loved by the client. 

These people died. I am person that is considered very dishonest by an agent, 

but very honest by my client. That is what this hearing is about. I don't 

want to protectthee, and I don't want to protect me; I want to protect 

the client. We only heard one client. This guy back there who talked about 

the six cases he had for the year -- I may be responsible for replacement 

of 1,000 clients who were misled by the old kind of insurance by this "rotten" 

d<·pos i l. L<•nn. 

I would like to tell you something: There are some deposit terms 

on this market that should be taken off. There are. Because there are some 

things in these deposit term products that are bad for the consumer. As 

bad as they are, they are better than any old cash value policy. But, they 

should be off the market. 

There are policies -- like we talked about ART doing such a wonderful 

thing. Why is is wonderful? It is not self-completing. There are no savings 

at the end for the client. It is not systematic savings, which people need. 

They will get to the point where they can't afford it. I mean, we talk about 

things: it runs out; it is temporary these are all the arguments that 

I used to have to come up against when I was replacing. There is a product 

on the market that is level outlay, that is self-completing, where the premium 

doesn't go up, the outlay doesn't go up, you get much more insurance than 

the old way. Their savings at the end is completed. 

You see, the thing that I question is, if I was an agent and I 

krww that then~ was <:1 product like that on the market, why would I continue 

to sell one that gave people a low rate? I don't know what it is, one point 

three, two, four -- I don't know. Who knows? It is not printed in the policy. 

You talk about using deposit term wrong -- I mean, the agents that sell cash 

value insurance go in and tell them it pays eight percent. Where? Where? 

You can't find it in the policy. 

There is a policy on the market when people want their money, Mike. 

You don't have to pay interest to get it. It doesn't affect the face value. 

And, you don't have to pay extra money for the dividend option. Why shouldn't 

Lh~ people be allowed to have that? And, also, when they die, they get the 

cash value, plus the face. Why is that product, and products like that,being 

thrown into one container which says: all modified premium whole life, all 

deposit term? If you want to legislate deposit term, speak to the people 

in the deposit term business. They will tell what is wrong with their product. 

I will tell you what is wrong with deposit term, and I will tell you what's 

wrong with whole life. 

You see, if there is a product on the market that had the best 

f<•atun~s of whol<~ lift~ and the best features of term, that would be super. 

There is a product like that. Are you aware of it? Are you, Mike? 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: Are you talking to me? 

MR. RICHMAN: Yes, I am talking to you because you made a lot of 

statements about--

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: I want you to finish. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BORNHEIMER: Hold it. You are dealing with personalities. 

It is not a one-one-one hearing. 
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MR. RICHMAN: 1'he only reason I rcfcrcd to Mike is lhut he~ seems 

to have a lot of statements. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BORNHEIMER: Mike has right to have statements, and 

you have a right to have statements, and we are not going to debate between 

you and him. 

MR. RICHMAN: I oppose " lot of the things he has said, because 

they are not knowledgeable. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BORNHEIMER: That is personal. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: Are you finished with your statement? 

MR. RICHMAN: Yes, I'm done. I have a lot of things, but I will 

stop here. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: Mr. Chairman, I would appreciate the opportunity, 

number one, to say that I am glad Ron came down today. 

MR. RICHMAN: Thank you. I carne down for the people. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: Well, I am happy you are here for the people, 

because I think that is what I am here for. 

MR. RICHMAN: I hope so. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: I think that is what I was elected to be 

here for. I am not going to get cross with you. I don't think it serves 

any purpose, quite frankly. Except, I would like to ask you, if you would 

help me. 

MR. RICHMAN: Okay. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: May I ask you, Ron, how long you have been 

selling deposit term? 

MR. RICHMAN: Oh, about ten years now -- about eight or ten years, 

somewhere around that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: And, in those ten years you have had the 

misfortune to lose sixteen clients? 

MR. RICHMAN: Yes, unfortunately. It happens. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: I know it happens. What I see from this 

profile, and the people involved- again, the kind of people we are talking 

about -it is obvious, I think, that you are talking about people who have 

somewhat limited resources. 

MR. RICHMAN: The average guy. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: For insurance, number one. Well, I don't 

know what the average guy is anymore. My average policy is over $200,000 

face. 

MR. RICHMAN: Well, I am not interested in that guy. I am interested 

in the people. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: There is nothing wrong with that. 

MR. RICHMAN: Well, I'm concerned about the people. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: People are people, and I wish you would let 

me finish; I allowed you to talk. 

MR. RICHMAN: Okay. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: Now, I am going to say to you that you have 

a right, and you have been given that right. What I tried to say to you 

before was, I don't think you do your cause any good by attacking individuals 

instead of attacking the issue, because, sir, respectfully, there are some 
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things that you arc not o.warc of that exist in the insurance industry -­

you indicate this by your statements. 

MR. RICHMAN: What o.re they? 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: I don't want to take the time of this Committee, 

but I would be happy to talk to you later. 

MR. RICHMAN: Okay. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: And, perhaps I can learn something, and perhaps 

you can learn something. It might be beneficial to both of us. 

MR. RICHMAN: Okay. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: I want to thank you for corning down. 

MR. RICHMAN: Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BORNHEIMER: The next person will be Alexis Berg. 

A L E X I S B E R G: Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman, and Mr. Adubato. Iam 

Alexis Berg, Assistant Counsel of the Life Insurance Company of North America, 

which we call LINA. I am here this afternoon with Paul Sulik, a Vice President 

and Actuary of Investors Life Insurance Company of North America, a subsidiary 

of LINA. On behalf of these companies I wish to file comments concerning 

the proposed legislation, although I am not going to read my entire statement 

into the record. I am just going to try and summarize some of the points 

that perhaps have not exactly been made in this foremat, although much of 

the contents of my statement has been previously discussed. 

The companies I respresent are within the Life and Group Division 

of INA Corporation, one of the nation's largest insurance, health care, and 

diversified financial institutions. 

The Life and Group Division markets a full line of individual life 

insurance in 50 states, approximately 50% of which is whole life. We therefore 

believe that we represent a balanced view. Investors Life markets, in 43 

states, two forms of ten-year renewable term insurance with maturity benefit 

policy. These products would be adversely affected by the proposed legislation. 

Charges of misrepresentation and misleading marketing techniques 

have been leveled against the product and other modified premium life products. 

We feel that similar charges could be leveled against many products, or against 

o.ny product that is improperly sold, and that this product should not be 

singled out for what we believe is discriminatory treatment. 

Our stongest objections pertain to Section 2 of the Bill, and I 

will make a frew brief comments on that section. This section, if promulgated, 

would effectively destroy our product. From the standpoint of the Nonforfeiture 

Law, the major problem underlying Section 2, as I understand it, is that 

it splits the product into separate pieces, a savings component and the amount 

at risk. This splitting technique is inconsistent with, and contrary to, 

the intent of Standard Nonforfeiture Law. The pricing and design of any 

product takes into account the entire stream of premiums, which must be sufficient 

to offset the cost of benefits and to provide the company with a sufficient 

margin for expenses and profits. 

Moreover, the question of appropriate accumulation of cash values 

ha~; been fully addressed by existing Nonforfeiture law. We see no reason why 

this product should be singled out for special treatment. A decision to material-

ly change the Nonforfeiture Law, which is implicit in this proposal, 

65 



should not be made without thorough and thoughtful consideration of all ramifications 

by qualified actuaries and other insurance professionals. We understand 

that the NAAIC is undertaking such a study, and we feel that no action to 

amend the Nonforfeiture Law should be made until the results of that study 

are made final. 

The additional first year premium - that unique feature of the 

product that has been most often criticized, is the central feature that 

makes it a worthwhile alternative to whole life and term insurance. One 

of its purposes is to provide a persistency incentive to counteract problems 

of lapse. That additional first year premium also enables the agent to be 

compensated at a dollar level more consistent with the compensation for whole 

life, while enabling the premium cost to be kept closer to that of term. 

These, in fact, are the reasons modified premium products work so well for 

the consumer, the company, and the agent. 

I would like to make a couple of comments pertaining to Section 

4 of the proposal. We have no objection to the contents of Section 4, which 

addresses marketing and advertising techniques. We believe that our sales 

practices are consistent with that section, but we question the appropriateness 

of legislation gearted to the marketing of a single life insurance product. 

We believe that such a task is more appropriately the province of the State 

Insurance Department. 

We believe the fundamental issue underlying this proposal is an 

issue of competitiveness in our economy and of the willingness of the legislature 

to pass laws to limit or prohibit free competition. In this age of high 

inflation, many criticisms have been leveled at whole-life insurance. We 

believe that whole-life insurance continues to be an appropriate product 

for individuals in many circumstances. And, as I indicated earlier, our 

companies sell a great deal of whole life insurance. But, consumers appear 

to be increasingly moving toward term. 

According to an article published in Fortune Magazine on July 14, 

1980, the growth in whole-life sales in the United States has slowed sharply 

with the increase in inflation and in interest rates. According to this 

article, and I quote: 

"The average annual compound growth in face values of whole life 

dropped from 4.2% in the 1969-'72 period to 1.6% in the years since. In 

contrast, sales of term ... have grown at an average rate of 7.8%. Last year, 

about 54% of all ordinary life sold was term, up from roughly 43% in 1972." 

The article continues to state that: 

"Whole-life has been the product on which most agents have made 

their living; alternative products, such as term and annuities, are not as 

rewarding. They generally carry lower commission rates ..• and, more important, 

generate fewer premium dollars. Premiums of each dollar of term sold, for 

example, run about one-third what they do on whole life, and there is no 

evidence that the agents can make up the difference by selling three times 

as much in face values." 

Whether or not one agrees with the subjective conclusions of the 

Fortune article, one must recognize that there is a growing need for the 

life insurance industry to be more flexible in offering products to today's 

consumer. 
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Inflation and high interest rates have combined to make consumers 

more sophisticated in making their financial choices. This in turn has created 

a challenge to the insurance industry to meet consumers' needs with new products 

th~t make sense in this economic environment, products that make sense to 

t.hc cump<~ny, Lhl' consunh'l·, .tnd th<· acwnL. 

In response to this challenge, a huge array of new offerings has 

hit the insurance market. Some are structured to relate premiums and face 

values either to the rate of inflation or to current interest rates. But, 

the real challenge to the industry may well be products that take their cue 

from the old advice, "buy term and invest the rest." In the past, that advice, 

if heeded, left the policyholder entrusting the money he did not spend on 

whole-life to a bank, or the stock market. Now, certain segments of the 

insurance industry arc beginning to come forth with products that will accommodate 

the needs of the consumers to provide funds for the future, reward the saver 

with interest rates more appropriate to the economic realities of today, 

and still provide an insurance death benefit. Products such as modified 

premium life insurance are designed to meet these industry challenges. 

The effect of the proposed legislation, if adopted, would be to 

indirectly accomplish the banning of a product, currently marketed as a viable 

alternative to whole-life insurance by imposing arbitrary requirements for 

early cash values. 

It is essential that the insurance industry, state insurance departments, 

and state legislators not only allow but encouraae innovative products which 

reasonably meet, or attempt to meet, the challenges of today's problems . 

Though we generally believe that modified life insurance should 

be subject to disclosure and non-forfeiture requirements no different from 

those applied to other life insurance products, we recognize the legitimacy 

of certain criticisms that have have been directed at the marketing and advertis­

ing of the product. We believe that the appropriate response to such criticisms 

is informed regulation by state insurance departments. 

We acknowledge that these products may have the potential for being 

misunderstood by less sophisticated consumers because the products are relatively 

new and have relatively unique premium and benefit patterns. 

For these reasons, we believe that the advertising of the product 

should be subject to strict standards, and that the nature of the product, 

especially the premium and benefit petterns, should be fully disclosed and 

carefully explained to prospective purchasers. 

We believe, however, that the proper arena for the regulation of 

the marketing, advcrtismcnt, and solicitation of modified premium life is 

the same as that for any other insurance product -- the state insurance department. 

To protect against marketing abuses, and to insure full disclosure, 

we recommend that a regulation be adopted by the New Jersey Insurance Department 

along the lines of a regulation recently promulgated in Pennsylvania. I 

have attached a copy of this regulation to my statement as "Appendix A." 

Alternatively, if you believe that the issue is sufficiently general 

in scope that it should be addressed at the legislative level, we would request 

that the attach<'d regulation be introduced to the Assembly. It is far more 

appropriate than Bill A-2001 in answering the criticisms of the product. 

It requires full disclosure by means of a specific disclosure statement 
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that would supplement the disclosures required under the New Jersey Life 

Insurance Solitication Regulation and contains specific and strict marketing 

rules. 

In conclusion, we sincerly hope that the Banking and Insurance 

Committe will not succomb to pressure to support legislation which we believe 

is contrary to the best interest of the citizens of New Jersey. Rather, 

we hope that you will recognize the anti-competitive features of Bill A-

2001, and that you will not issue a favorable report to the floor of the 

Assembly. 

Thank you for the opportunity to present our views. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BORNHEIMER: Thank you very much. Mike, do you have 

any questions? 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: I was listening from the back of the room, 

so I was paying attention. I want to thank you for an excellent presentation, 

and I think a fair one. Thank you. 

MS. BERG: Thank you. (see page for recommended regulation) 

ASSEMBLYMAN BORNHEIMER: George Olson. 

G E 0 R G E 0 L S E N: Good evening. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BORNHEIMER: Not yet. (laughter) 

MR. OLSEN: First of all, I want to make a correction. I am a 

consumer. I own a lot of life insurance, of which a good protion is whole 

life, and of which some is term. 

have a little bit of both. 

I haven't been convinced that I shouldn't 

I am here today on behalf of myself. I am here today on behalf 

of myself as a private pratitioner in the business of life insurance, health 

insurance, and pensions. 

I would like to give you a brief description of what I do and what 

a majority of my peers do. I consider myself a private pratitioner. I have 

clients who pay me money because they are concerned about their loss of income. 

My clients recognize that thPre are three ways that Lh<'y C<ln lose lhci r income. 

One is by death, another is by old age, and the third is by disability. In 

my private practice, I accept a responsibility. Whenever one of my clients 

loses his income because of death, old age, or disability, I provide the 

arrangements to replace that income he lost, consistent with an amount of 

money that he was paying me -- not directly to me but to the companies contracted 

to indemnify him against these hazards. 

Very basically, these are the elements in the professional life 

underwriter's job. I am induced to do this job with commissions I receive 

from the insurers of these risks, and I am encouraged to service them with 

my continued availability if they had any questions about their specific 

coverage. For this continued service, I receive service fees. Because of 

this commission basis, I have an incentive to visit with my clients regularly. 

Keeping in touch through regular visits helps me keep the policyholder informed 

about any changes in policy form, and also direct him to make any changes 

that may be required because of increased business responsibilities, mortgages 

to insure, or changes in family situations and possible changes in his estate 

plan where life insurance could provide liquidity to pay state and/or federal 

inheritance taxes. 

The life and health insurance industry requires intelligent, honest, 

people, I feel, who must be geared to provide free counsel -- free counsel --
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and direction to the consumer. With this, I also feel a responsibility to 

compliment the consumer when he has bought something properly. These practitioners 

must be well informed in matters of health insurance, life insurance, and 

pensions. However, unlike the stockbroker, investment counselor, the banke~ 

or the trust officer, I am not interested in any fudiciary involvement. This, 

I believe, places me in the majority amongst my peers. I am defining my 

business to you in order that you understand our long term service obligations 

to the most important people in our world, the consumer. There are always 

changes in marketing methods in this great country. This is the mainspring 

in our capitalistic society. The reason for our presence here today, however, 

is due to marketing. Methods of marketing our product, life insurance, with 

the personal gain of the agent as the only and sole motivation, creates a 

business climate that is and has proven to be unhealthy. The future service 

to the policyholder is thereby put in jeopardy. 

In my twenty five years in this business, there has been a constant 

invasion by people outside and inside this industry. They have made a career 

for themselves convincing the life insurance policyholder, whom I would like 

to refer to as poor gullible Joe consumer, that he can do ever so much better 

with the cash values he has generated in his whole life insurance policies 

by surrending them and reinvesting or leveraging his money. Today's promise 

is double your money in ten years. The most successful vehicle in these 

invasions of the past have been mutual funds in the late 1950's and early 

'60's, mutual funds combined with life insurance in the late '60's, and now 

deposit term. Each of these plans have one common denominator -- getting 

the cash values out of the life insurance policies. In most poor, or lower 

to middle class families, because of the semi-compulsory or forced savings 

principals of life insurance policies, the cash value was the easiest asset, 

if not the only asset, to liquidate and reinvest. The mutual funds samesman 

was encouraged during his period of invasion to get his "upfront money" for 

what is known as a contractual plan. 

By way of example, poor gullible Joe bought a life insurance polcy 

and paid the premiums for ten to fifteen years. Cash value generated approximately 

$2,000. To the mutual fund man this $2,000 represented twenty months times 

$100 toward a ten-year contractual plan, upon which his commission was based--

on $12,000 or 120 months times this $100 monthly payment. When poor gullible 

Joe consumer started to pay the premiums, however, after the 20 months were 

paid by his cash value, the financial squeeze was on and poor gullible Joe 

consumer had to cash in the plan. He then found out that a good portion 

of his input, more than he ever dreamed, was in the form of commissions, 

loading costs, and investment and sales charges, but he went back to this 

old friend, the life insurance man who sold him the original policy, and 

started a new one. Ten years later, these cash values were built up enough 

to be vulnerable to a new scheme he was referred to by a good friend, poor 

gullible Lou, to an investor syndicate that was offering a truly fantastic 

plan, combining mutual funds along with insurance. The premise of this new 

plan was that with approximately a $1500 deposit, he could be the owner of 

a leveraged premium payment plan where the increasing asset value of the 

mutual fund would, or at least should ·-and l must say was expressed very 

optimistically=- be able to pay the premium on the life insurance. 
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The plan incorporated a whole life policy along with the fund -­

whole life, of course, because it ?aid a higher commission. The major carrier 

of this plan is now bankrupt. It was known as Equity Funding. The program 

sounded terrific: one premium of $1500 and no further premiums required, 

if all went well with the funds. The life insurance was well over $25,000 

without paying any premiums. Now, you might remember the rest of the story. 

The mutual funds went down in asset value and their values could not meet 

the premium payments on the life insurance, and poor unlucky gullible Joe 

consumer had to start paying the premiums on the life insurance policy, which 

he soon found were too high with the help of the sinking mutual funds. Unfortunately, 

the agent who sold him the plan was by this time selling two-acre lots of 

desert property in Nevada, and could care less what happened to the poor 

gullible Joe consumer back here in New Jersey. So, poor gullible Joe consumer 

called his friendly life insurance man and started a new plan with him all 

over again. Seven to eight years later, he was telephoned by an investment 

consultant assistant, or whatever title he wanted to use since he could be completely 

irresponsible in what he said to poor gullible Joe to get to see him because 

he had no license responsibility. 

He was informed that because of his firm's wise ways in the investment 

market, Joe could be shown why the cash values in his life insurance portfolio 

were a swindle, low interest rates, no return of cash value upon death and 

a long list of reasons why the unsavory ways of the giants of the life insurance 

industry were stealing his hard earned dollars, and how the agent who sold 

him the plan was an accessory. 

When he heard the fraudulent ways of his existing life insurance 

on his life he is ready again to become a victim of still another scheme. 

Deposit term. This istruly a sad story in our times. It is truly difficult 

to determine how many dollars passed through the hands of poor gullible Joe 

consumer and into the pockets of high-commissioned salesmen and their short 

term, highly promoted investment vehicles. A great number of these sales 

people, unfortunately -- well, maybe fortunately immediately leave the 

business and move on to the next gimmick as soon as this one fails to produce 

the key to open the door to the promised land where there are horns of plenty 

waiting for all the unsuspecting poor gullible Joe consumers. 

Your passage on the control of deposit term, as defined in the 

legislation discussed here today, will help to protect ourselves from ourselves. 

It should be understood, gentlemen, that all of us who are licensed to sell 

life insurance in New Jersey coul~ if we wanted to be less professional, 

market these schemes amongst our own policyholders. We could do that only, 

however, if we were motivated purely for mercenary reasons. 

Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BORNHEIMER: Thank you very much. Are there any questions, 

Mike? 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: No. Thank you for coming, Mr. Olsen. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BORNHEIMER: Bob Graham. 

R 0 B E R T B. G R A H A M: Good afternoon. My name is Robert B. Graham, 

Sr. I am a registered investment advisor, and the President of Basil Investment 

Corporation, which is a fully-licensed stock brokerage firm, registered with 

the Securities and Exchange Commission. I am also a registered principal 
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which required more than four answers to pass the examination. In fact, 

it required an eight-hour examination. I am also Chairman of the Board for 

the Committee' for Constitutional Taxation, and in that capacity I addressed 

Congressman Al Ullman and the House Ways and Means Committee in Washington 

on August 18, 1980. I stated that the second American tax revolution has 

already started, and that we the American people were going to do everything 

in our power to make sure that politicians who vote for and support uncon­

stitutional, un--American, anti-free enterprise laws, are never reelected. 

The effectiveness of our recent program for clensing the political 

system was very successful. Congressman Al Ullman, 8ne of the most powerful, 

and many other Congressmen like him, was defeated, never more to hurt the 

American people by their votes for more controls and more regulations, which 

only favored the special insterests of the politicians. 

At the last hearing on the matter in front of us today, which you 

had postponed, I had requested in the interest of honesty that all the members 

of the Committee sign an affidavit under threat of perjury which simply states 

that you nor your families nor any of your friends have not and will not 

accept any financial remuneration from any insurance company, and to show 

your honesty in this matter, you would waive your sovereign immunity rights. 

One person stated, and I quote: "I won't sign that. Hell will 

frc~c'ze first." Another yelled: "Call the State police." Now, since none 

o[ the members of that paiJcl would sign the honest politician affidavit that 

day, I had prepared another honest politician affidavit for every member 

of the Committee to sign, and your signing of the honest politician affidavit 

will go a long way in convincing your constituents that you are not profiteering 

from the passage of this unconstitutional, un-American, anti-free-enterprise 

proposed legislation. 

I started my career in the insurance business with the Prudential 

Life Insurance Company in 1959. I workod hard and I studied their materials, 

and they claimed, at the time they did it, that they gave me a promotion to 

a manager. Now, it didn't take me long to realize that there was something 

drastically wrong, and I think today we have skirted all around the issue completely. 

We have done a dance with it. 

I blame the ninety seven percent turnover in agents each and every 

year on everything but the real problem. You just can't make enough money sell­

ing cash value insurance. You can't make enough money to keep an agent in the 

business selling term, because the hidden problem that no one wants to admit 

to is that the top management of Prudential, or the other mutual companies 

and their home office bureaucracy which feeds off the efforts of the agents, 

is just too great. I am sure you have seen the football player in the back 

of the car with the big head and the small body, and the head keeps going around 

like this (demonstrating) well, this is the problem we are faced with right 

now within the industry. 

Now, that is like the bureaucracy in government today, where they 

are only interested in their own survival, for they could always hire another 

gullible agc'nt for a short period of time and then replace him with another 

new agent. The companies thrived on turnover. They really didn't care how 

many unsuspecting, good people they wasted to feed themselves. Their motto 

is well known throughout the industry. The motto is: Hire them in masses; 

train them in classes; and kick them out on their asses. Sell your friends 
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and relatives to get started, and time will take care of the rest. And, I am 

sure you, being in the insurance industry, have heard that. 

Now, up until 1965, I sold cash value insurance, which is a whole 

life insurance. In fact, in 1965 I received an award for selling over two million 

dollars of insurance. Then the President of the United States started to counter­

feit money by removing the silver backing to support his "guns and butter" policy 

to finance the Lydon B. Johnson great, agent orange, Viet Nam society. At that 

point, in 1966, cash value life insurance became obsolete, and I never sold 

anything but term insurance after 1965. 

I was taught by Prudential that cash value life insurance was an invest­

ment, as it paid a two and one-half percent return on the money invested. And, 

in 1965, when the banks were only paying two percent, it was a good product, 

and I commend the people who sold it up to that point. But, the Federal Trade 

Commission last year proved that the information was a lie, and that, in fact, 

it was a poor policy. 

Now, I am sure that you, gentlemen, and everybody else in here remembers 

the Prudential ads showing the Empire State Building and the jet planes landing, 

and the TWA's and the Eastern's, and the pouring of the steel, and the making 

of the rubber, and a beautiful voice in the commercial saying: "If you get 

a piece of the rock, you share in the profits of Prudential." Now, this was 

another deliberate lie, and the Florida Insurance Commissioner, Thomas O'Malley, 

not only banned Prudential from its false advertising, I know - because I testified 

there - but he made them advertise a complete disclaimer and a retraction. 

Did you ever wonder why, when you needed money the most and had to 

borrow your money from your cash value policy, you had to pay someone else interest 

on your own money? The cash value companies lower your protection and increase 

your premium until you pay yourself back. That is a real stupid investment. 

Now, I am not here today to tell you to ban this cash value policy, 

no. By the way, it is the worst possible insurance policy for anybody earning 

under $100,000 a year. The free enterprise system allows consumers to choose, 

without government control, without government intervention. The Edsel became 

obsolete. Gentlemen, the Ford Company did not go to the politicians and demand 

that people must only buy Edsels, no. Ford changed. The updated their product. 

They modernized and they built the Escort. Only under a communist government, 

or communist rule, do you not have competition. 

If Prudential and the other supporters of this anti-free-enterprise 

legislation want to keep selling their Edsels, let them. They, in a free society, 

have a right to be as wrong as they want to be, as long as they don't hurt others. 

Your bill will hurt the consumers of New Jersey. It is pernicious. It is a 

swindle, and it is a deception. If you, the politicians who support this bill, 

are not deceived, then you are the deceivers. And, any politician who does 

support this bill will, I believe, be telling the consumers in his area that 

he opposes the free enterprise system, and supports an anti-free-enterprise 

system. 

I must confess I appreciate one thing you have done today; you have 

done something with this bill that I could not accomplish in two years. Because 

of your efforts to-- I don't know, I used the word railroad, maybe that is 

the wrong word -- railroad this anti-consumer legislation, you have aroused 

and, yes, even angered an awful lot of normally apathetic producers to unite, 

and tomorrow I will be instructing them, in detail, on how to expose your voting 
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record t.o your constituency. '!'he choice of systems is yours today. The choice 

on election day belongs to the people, and we ~ill make every effort to inform 

them of your vote on this bill. If you value your position, remember August 

the 18th Al Uhlman laughed at me. Please, remember Al Uhlman. 

Those are my closing remarks, but I would like to add something else 

because there were so many things that were said here today. I don't think 

we are trying to attack any individuals. I don't really believe this. I think 

we arc trying to hold people accountable. I don't think there was one person -

and no one can name one person - who has retired on the cash values of their 

life insurance policies, because they have all been eroded. The most important 

thing w~ have to remember is don't let this thing continue. 

Instead of all of us in this room fighting one another about the wrong 

thing, we shouldn't be fighting. We are both on the same side. I agree with 

everyone. I remember when I paid off a death claim on a cash value policy, 

but I remember paying off a lot more on a term policy. Here is our problem. 

Here is everybody in this room's problem: In 1964 this was interchangeable . 

You could swap the silver dollar for the paper dollar. Today it costs twenty of 

thesephony -- of these paper dollars to get one of these (illustrating with 

a silver dollar). That means that in terms of the 1964 purchasing power, this 

is worth a nickel. So, if you are earning twenty thousand dollars today, what 

are you really earning? One thousand? And, it is all because of what has happened 

in Washington. There is no solving this problem unless we all get together. 

And, I am not here to threaten you; and if you took it what way, I am sorry you 

did. I am here trying to explain to you that your legislation will not solve 

the problem. This problem must be solved by the people in Prudential not making 

bad loans like they just did. 

The people from another insurance company - Equitable - made a horrendous 

loan three years ago. I would have loved to borrow the money from them at four 

percent. You see, they loaned the money to the Chairman of the Board's company. 

Now, that should be a full blown investigation. 

You see, I am not here today to fight with you about what is happening. 

All I am saying is, hey, if he wants to try and sell an Edsel, or you want to 

try and sell an Edsel to her, and I come along and I say, "Hrnmrn, you get four 

miles to a gallon; the tires fall off" -- you know, and you go back to him and 

ht' s;tys, "Well, look at the comfort yougct"- well, what happened to the Edsel? 

It went. Why should we be forced to keep a product going whose time has past? 

I will say this to you: You are right about annual renewable term; 

you are wrong about deposit term, because if you are looking at a sixteen dollar 

per thousand cash value product, and you are looking at a three dollar I 

am using a hypothetical figure -- figure for deposit term, and you are looking 

at a two dollar figure for annual renewable term, and if the three dollar figure 

will keep you in the business so that you can service your clientele instead 

of being one of the ninety-seven percent that is turned over and I am sure 

you realize that the turnover in the life insurance business is horrendous --

if that keeps you servicing your client, I don't care what the commission is, 

the sixteen dollar one didn't. Do you understand my point, and what I am driving 

at? So, we have to come up with a product that is going to help our people. 

We know a man can't make a living selling annual renewable term; we 

know that. We also have seen the turnover record for the insurance industry 
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selling cash value -- we know that. . We do know another thing. I have been 

selling this deposit term product since 1966. I have people here. I didn't 

bring it with me, I am sorry. I would like to tell you my last ratio since 

1966; it is over ninety percent persistency. Now, that should tell you something 

okay? And, it has kept me in the business, and it has kept me to the point 

where I can-- You know, I heard the last gentleman talk about where they take 

the money out of the policies, and this and that. My only question to him is, 

if everybody is taking the money out of all the insurance policies, how come 

the banks are so loaded with money; how come the money markets are so loaded 

with money? Are they the only places? 

You know, I replace a lot of insurance -- an awful lot. I wrote something 

down here. Everybody neglected to talk about the first year load of the cash 

value policy. I mean, that is a horrendous load. But, I am not here to knock 

that. I am saying to you that instead of knocking the commission on deposit 

term, let's knock the commission that the poor agent is getting paid on whole 

life. Let's make it two hundred and sixty percent, the commission on a whole 

life product so that the agent can live, and we eliminate the turnover. 

That's the only thing I am saying to you. I appreciate your patience 

with me. Do you have any questions? 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: Mr. Graham, I would just like to make one or 

two observations. May I ask you, Mr. Graham, do you live in New Jersey? 

MR. GRAHAM: No, but my companies are licensed in New Jersey -- all of 

them. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: The reason why I brought that up is because you 

have been selling deposit term since 1966. 

MR. GRAHAM: It was leagal in Pensy then. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: Yes, I realize that. I am saying New Jersey. 

MR. GRAHAM: I am licensed in Delaware. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: You may be interested to know that the company 

I am a general agent for has the product, deposit term, and was refused the 

product in New Jersey in about '66. It since then has been accepted in New 

Jersey. But, that is just a side comment to you. 

I was extremely interested in your analysis of the changing times 

we are going through -- the cause and effect of those changing times. I would 

just like to, if I may, say that I respect your enthusiasm very much. I would 

also like to say to you, very respectfully, that when you talk about the money 

market and the value of money, I disagree with you; not that the changes don't 

take place in Washington, but who is responsible for those changes'? You give 

me an opportunity to say to you that you haven't -- and I am sure you probably 

have -- with your effort and your energy looked a little closer at how the federal 

reserve began. 

MR. GRAHAM: I know that, sir. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: And what is really causing this problem of money 

in this country -- with the central banking theory and other things like that. 

MR. GRAHAM: It is not a theory; it is a fact. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: Well, okay. You seem to be at another level 

in your analysis -- forgetting deposit term for a minute. I, for one, appreciate 

your observations, tcven though I don't necessarily concur with youL pn~mis<' 

as to how they began or who the primary movers of these changes were. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: Well, I just wanted to make an analysis. 

MR. GRAHAM: Okay. There is an answer to the insurance industry. 

They defeated - they killed - the mutual fund indust.ry by doing the same thing 

that is trying to be done here. The last gentleman talked about doing away 

w:iLh tlw conlraclual. You SL'<', LhL) highest profession in this world is not 

a legislator, it is a salesman. It is the only profession that separates communism 

from capitalism. They have legislators in Russia. They have doctors, lawyers 

they have every profession in Russia, but they don't have salesmen. It is the 

highest profession in the world, and I am proud to say that I am one. 

I am not a great salesman, but I get by. The problem that we are 

faced with in this country is, once you take the incentive away from a salesman 

to go out and sell his wares, at that point you delegate that product to a death 

knell. I can hear the bell. I can hear the bell in here. For whom the bells 

toll, and they are tolling right now. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: Let me help you this way, whether you want it 

or not. You were at the committee meeting, and I am sure you observed the fact 

that there are seven members on this committee. Now, there were three members 

present this morning. One had to leave. Quite frankly, I had other appointments 

this afternoon, and I said to the chairman that I was leaving. I decided to 

come back. I cancelled my appointments for one reason, because of the enthusiasm 

that I saw here, and because I feel very strongly about free enterprise, not 

only in words but in deeds you see? 

You have a right to question anything you want, but I am judged every 

two years in my district. I have never, and I never will, sign any statement 

of my character. If you have anything to question about my character you go 

ahead and question it. I have nothing to hide. They can do anything they want 

anybody, any bureaucracy, any judgment, any tapping, or anything else, because 

there is nothing they are going to find. I face that constituency and so do 

the other eighty members of this body. 

I don't take exception to your presentation, but I do take exception to 

the fact that there is an innuendo that the people here have a preconception, 

that something sinister is already done. If that was true, let me point out 

to you, respectfully, I wouldn't be sitting here listening now. 

Let me also point out to you that there is nobody that I know of, 

and I am not saying it doesn't happen, I am saying that I personally know of, 

that I wouldn't be proud to say is a member of this body -- I don't care what 

side of the aisle they sit on. That may sound like a speech to you, and perhaps 

it is. 

MR. GRAHAM: It is. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: I have allowed your speech, so I will take mine. 

My speech is that your right is to watch and watch people that are in elected 

office. And, those people in elected office are there to watch you. 

I appreciate you coming down here. 

MR. GRAHAM: Okay. Sir, just so there is no doubt in anybody's mind, 

I would like to present you with one of the affidavits, and you have the right 

to sign it or not sign it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BORNHEIMER: I would like to make a few comments myself. 

We will discontinue this portion of the public hearing and reschedule another 
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one because we have constraints a~; far as our staff is concerned, and certain 

limitations. 

I would like to say that it is always interesting to me as a legislator-­

! have said it before, and I will say it again. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: Excuse me for interrupting. Mr. Graham, does 

this mean I have to give up my lite insurance license that I have had for twenty 

years? Because it says that I, nor my family, nor any friends, have not and 

will not accept any financial remuneration from any insurance company. I couldn't 

send my three kids to college if I signed this. 

MR. GRAHAM: Well, sir, may I suggest to you that I did not know at 

the time when I drew that up that there was going to be this conflict of interest 

on your part. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: Well, Mr. Graham, that conflict of interest -­

I don't know what you are talking about. But, if you knew anything about Mike 

Aduba.to, and if you knew anything about the past seven years, you wouldn't make 

that statement. 

MR. GRAHAM: Well, see, I did not know that you were licensed and 

that you were receiving it. Now, we can make yours to eliminate your renewals 

or your future commission. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: You can make anything you want. I will end 

the conversation by saying what I said before. I am not signing anything for 

you or anybody else. If you have any charges to make, you make them and we 

will go to due process. 

MR. GRAHAM: We sure will. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ADUBATO: We may end up making charges against you and 

your ethics. That's very possible. 

MR. GRAHAM: Well, you are welcome to do that, and your threats are 

idle. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BO~lllliR: As I was stating before, we have developed a 

lot of information. What I was alluding to was, as the gentleman stated as 

a true salesman - every salesman will state it - nothing happens until something 

is sold. Well, we find in government that nothing happens until a piece of 

legislation is put into the box: A lot of people get excited and we get a lot 

of conversation and a lot of information. I would presume that a lot of people 

learned something today. I know I learned a lot. I have learned a lot about 

life insurance; I have learned a lot about deposit term. I don't sell insurance. 

I don't sell cars. I am just an accountant that can figure out things and add 

and subtract a little bit. That's why I have an eraser on my pencil, because 

I make mistakes too. 

However, it is very important to let you know that government does 

try to find out in a strange way, and it is called public hearings, and it 

is called listen to the public and listen to both sides of the issue. This 

hearing will continue sometime in the future. Those who remain on the list 

will be contacted and will be given an opportunity to testify. Those who 

will have an opportunity to come back can submit written documentation which 

will become part of the record, either as of today or the next time we have a 

hearing on this bill. So, please continue to submit your information, pro or 

con, whichever you want to send. Thank you for being here today. We appreciate 

it very much. 

(hearing concluded) 
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DEPOSIT TERM: 
A matter of consumer concern? 
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PHONY ISSUE: 
Product 

REAL ISSUE: 

Competition 
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EXAMINE THE FACTS: 

1. Product introduced in 1964. 

2. Approved for sale in all 50 states, 
District of Columbia, Puerto Rico, 
and all U.S. Military Installations 
through Department of Defense. 

3x 
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THREE PERSPECTIVES: 
1. Agents - Protect commissions. 

2. Companies - Protect business 
inforce and future 

\ profits. 

3. Consumers - Economic needs. 
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GENUINE CONSUMER INTEREST? 
1. Billions of dollars of debit insurance inforce-termed by 

many-a consumer "ripoff." 

2. Agents' contracts-almost 40°/o less commission for selling 
Art vs. Whole Life. 

3. Whole Life Contract-delete one word-save consumers 
millions of dollars . 

4. Northwestern Mutual answer-increase one million policy­
holders' coverage by four billion dollars at no increase 
in premium. 

Others' response: 
Attempt to stem tide through political clout. 

Sx 
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THOSE INTERESTED IN CHANGING 
THE NON-FORFEITURE VALUES FOR 
DEPOSIT TERM HAVE TWO COMMON 
CHARACTERISTICS: 

1. Majority of sales/in-force is Whole Life. 

2. Deposit Term not offered as an alternative. 

6x 
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REAL ISSUE: COMPETITION 
. 

Deposit Term has several major consumer advantages that 
some agents and companies object to: 

1. Lower Initial cost than Whole Life-thus young asset-poor 
families can come closer to fulfilling real insurance needs 
(see F.T.C. and House Subcommittee reports). 

2. Higher commissions than annual renewal term-allows 
agents to make a living (lower than Whole Life commissions). 

3. When coupled with a modern high yielding annuity, 
offers the consumer more flexibility and protection against 
early lapse. 

7x 
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COMPARISON 

WHOLE LIFE 
PARTICIPATING vs 

ASSUMPTIONS 

1. Male age 35 

LIFECYCLE 
MODIFIED WHOLE LIFE & 

FLEXIBLE PAYMENT ANNUITY 

2. $100,000 insurance initial amount. 
3. $1,964 annual outlay. 

4. Dividend accumulated at interest current scale 

5. Flexible payment annuity 

Current Yield 8.25°/o 
Guaranteed Yield 6°/o for 5 years, 4°/o thereafter 

8x 
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FLEXIBILITY 
Problem: Policyowner can't pay 2nd year premium 

Whole Life (Par.) 

Cash Year Premium Value Premium 

1 $1 ,964 $231 PROBLEM $668 

2 $1 ,964 $281 

3 $1 ,964 $295 

4 $1,964 $315 

5 $1,964 $337 

LifeCycle can pay next 4 years premium ... 
The Par Whole Life cannot. 

llx 

LifeCycle 
. Cash 

Value 

$1 ,402 NO 
PROBLEM 



12 

• 



1.) 

OBJECTIONS TO: 

• Modified Whole Life (Deposit Term) 
• 

• LifeCycle 
1. Client loses deposit. 

2. Unconscionable commission schedule 

3. Annual renewable term is cheaper. 

4. No stepped-up cost basis at death . 

• 
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RETIREMENT OBJECTIVES 
1. Stop paying the $1 , 652 annual outlay from 

earned income. 

2. Provide additional retirement income of 
$ aoo monthly. 

3. Maintain a minimum $100,000 death estate. 

4. Maintain a minimum $100,000 living estate. 
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AT RETIREMENT, USE LIFECYCLE FLEXIBILITY 
TO MAKE THESE CHANGES: 

-~- ·-· ·- > 

I o Use partial withdrawal feature to 
1 provide income equal to the current 

Cash Accumulation (l) ( 
8.25% Withdrawal Rate 2) 

I 8.25% interest rate. Cash accumu-
: lation stays level. 
L_ __ "'··--- ·----- . 

1 o Continue $25,000 of the Modified 
1 Whole Life as Whole Life. 
[ Discontinue the other $36,000 
~ ------------ ·- ---
' 
I 
jo Use the annual withdrawal to pay 
I the life insurance premium and 

I provide $839.25 additional 
monthly retirement income. 

·------ --------------

I 
i 

Annual Withdrawal 

$25,000 Whole Life Annual 
Premium 

$25,000 Whole Life Premium 
Add't Income ($839.25 x 12) 

___ _L Annual Withdrawal 

----- "-~, --~ ·--. --·- - --
/ 

(l) Excludes $800 cash value continued in $25,000 Whole Life Policy. 
(2) 8.25% withdrawal rate is illustrated to equal the current 8.25% 

interest rate. Current rate may change in future, but will never 
be less than the guarantees. 

$143,345 
X .0825 

$ 11 ,825 

$ 1 '7 54 

$ 1 '7 54 
1 0 '071 

$ 11 ,825 

X 
r-­
..--1 
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AGE 

CASH IN 

CASH OUT 
(PREMIUt~) 

• • 

RETIREMENT CASH FLOW ANALYSIS 

Non Participating 
Whole Life 

65 75 85 
-- -~e-- ~--··--- • --------

$ 0 $ 0 $ 0 

1 '652 16' 520 33,040 

LifeCyc1e 

65 75 85 

$ 11,825 $118,250 $236,500 

1 '754 17,540 35,080 

TOTAL -------- -(·~-1-~~;)(1~-~520) (33,040) 1 10,071 100 '71 0 201 ,420 

LIVING ESTATE 

DEATH ESTATE 

-- ---- --------------------~- --- ------------------· 

49,800 65,900 77,000 143,345 
----- ----- -- ---- ---- --·-----~-----------·- --·-----· --- ... ----- - ... 

100,000 100,000 100,000 168,345 
- - ... ---- ---- ~------------ ---·-. ---------- -------- - ---

- -· - -- -----

150,670 

168,345 

LifeCyc1e Total Difference is $201,420 + $33,040 = $234,460 

157,770 

168,345 

X 
co 
r-1 



RETIREMENT WITH TRADITIONAL WHOLE LIFE* 
·-----··-··-----

I -----
OPTION (Choose Any 1 

·------- -· ------------ -- -- --------~ 

Column and Read Down) 

Retirement 
Objective 

I 

Monthly 
Life Income 
No Refund 

$347 
Monthly 

Paid-Up 
Insurance 

$76,400 

---- - ------------- ----- . -

Extended Cash Continue I 

Term Surrender Premiums I 
Insurance Policy 
13 Years $49,800 
71 Days Cash 

~----------------------- -------------------------------- ····--·-- ---· ---------

' Stop Annual Outlay 
~ From Earned Income 

' 

Yes 
--------C---···------· -· 

i $800 Additional I No 
; Monthly Retirement i ($347 
! Income I Maximum) 
~- - ·-----+-------···· --·- ___ .. ·-
1 Minimum $100,000 1 

~~~~;:u:5 :~::.ooo ·--------+-- -No 
, Livi~g Estate _j_·------~---

Yes 

No 

No 

Yes 

No 

Yes (But only 
13 years 

Yes 

No 

No 
________ _J_l __ day_s L _ .... _ _ __ . __ . -- . -. 

No No No 

* 3ased on $100,000 Whole Life policy issued to a man, age 35, by Fireman's Fund American Life Insurance Company. 

LOAN OPTION REDUCES INSURANCE AND INCREASES PREMIUMS 

~ • 



ADVANTAGES - FLEXIBILITY 
LIFECYCLE 

1. Cash accumulation flexi· 
bility. Contributions may be 
increased or decreased on a 
monthly or lump sum basis; 
stopped, then started again 
or discontinued Indefinitely. 

2. Functionally separate 
elements for insurance and 
cash accumulation allows for 
more estate and financial 
planning flexibility. 

3. Significantly lower fixed 
premium commitment. 

WHOLE LIFE-PAR 

1. Not possible. 

2. Insurance and cash accum· 
ulation integrated and, thus, 
less flexible. 

3. High total fixed premium 
commitment. 

20x 
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ADVANTAGES - FLEXIBILITY <cont.> 

4. Liquidity via partial with· 
drawal, 10o/o of annuity 
accumulation may be 
withdrawn each year at 
no charge. Withdrawal 
amount in excess of 10°/o 
subject to low one time 
withdrawal charge. 

5. Competitive interest rates 
reflecting money market 
conditions and FFAL 
investment reults. 

6. Ability to modify type and 
amount of coverage. 

4. Permanent loan interest 
rates from 5°/o to 8°/o loan 
reduces insurance and 
increases cost. 

5. Fixed by law, interest on 
dividend accumulations 
will vary but have no 
underlying guarantee. 

6. More restricted. 

2lx 
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FLEXIBILITY - CONCLUSION 
1. There is no comparison between 

Traditional Whole Life and 
LifeCycle. 

2. Objections are based on the 
inability to compete ... not 
real issues. 

22x 
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COMPETITION OR 
CONSUMER INTEREST? 

1. New Business 

2. Agent Retention 

3. Replacement 

23x 
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4 
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*0 
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COMPARISON SUBSTANDARD 
$100,000- Rated T4 - Male Age 35 

PAR WL LifeCyclc 

-
Life u r e A nnutl y 

Premium Premium Payment 

2.322 096 1 4 26 l s 

2.32 2 522 1.800 I 2.322 550 ~ 1. 7 7 2 

2.32 2 590 1.7 3 2 

2.322 634 1.600 

23.220 7.270 15.950 

46.440 23.250 23.190 . 
*TOTAL CUMULATIVE OUTLAY 

Total 
Out loy 

2 .J 2 2 

2 J 2 2 

2 32 2 

2 .J 2 2 

2 J 2 2 

23.220 

-
46.440 

l6A 

~ ! 

X 

""" N 



LO 
N 

I 
' 
t 
I 

TOTAL 

OUTLAY 

$ 2.322 

4.644 

6.966 

9.288 

12,600 

23.220 

$ 46,440 

j 

" I 

• 

,\ 
t 

SUBSTAf\JDARD COI\~PARISON 
$100,000 Rated T4 Male 35· 

. 

YEAR 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

10 

20 

I 

. PAR WL 

CASH VALUE 

0 

200 

1.400 

3.100 

4.800 

15.000 

$ 44,100 

INCLUDES 

CASH VALUE 

OF PAID Uf.' 

ADDITIONS 

· Lifeycle 
CASH 

ACCUMULATION 

$ 1. 536 

3.594 

5. 781 

0.095 

10.54 1 

25.644 

$66,4 75 
. 

INCLUDES 

LIFE CASH VALUE 

AND ANNUITY 

CASH ACCUMULATION 

j 
! 

~ 

"'"" 

. 

DIFFERENCE 

I 
$ 1.536 I 

3.394 I 4.30 1 ; 5.195 

~ 5. 7 4 1 'i . ), 

10.644 

$22.375 

/IJ(l 

- ··- - ···-·· ----- ---·.I 
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SUPPORT? 
1. American Council of Life Insurance (ACLI) 

2. National Association of Insurance 
Commissioners (NAIC) 

3. National/State Consumer Groups 

4. American Society of Actuaries 

5. Federal Trade Commission 

6. Congress 
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"THE REPLACEMENT OF PRUDENTIAL 
POLICIES WITH PARTIAL ENDOWMENT 
POLICIES (DEPOSIT TERM) ON FINANCIAL 
GROUNDS RARELY, IF EVER, CAN BE 
JUSTIFIED." 

National Underwriter 

Septernber13, 1980 
Myron Margolin 
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FIREMAN'S FUND AMERICAN 
LIFE, BASED ON ITS EXPERIENCE, 
CONTENDS THIS STATEMENT IS 
SELF SERVING, MISLEADING AND 
INACCURATE. 

28x 
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The truth from the consumers' persp~ctive can 
be determined and clearly should be determined 
before any changes are made in the non-forfeiture 
statutes that may adversely affect New Jersey 
consumers' choice of products. 

We respectfully request that the New Jersey 
legislature, in concert with the New Jersey 
Department of Insurance, undertake an in-depth 
study on the subject of replacement to determine 
if replacements are in the best economic interest 
of the consumer. Such an undertaking will have 
the full and complete support of Fireman's Fund. 

29x 



ADVERTISING AND 
SALES SECTION: 
We have no objection to 'any rules 
that are fairly and equally applied to 
all products. We strenuously object 
to rules designed to discriminate 
against a single product line. 

30x 
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STATEMENT OF THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF 
LIFE UNDERWRITERS AT NEW JERSEY HEARING 
ON THE MATTER OF PROPOSED LEGISLATION, 

NOVEMBER 12, 1980 

Good Morning. My name is Roland L. Panneton. 

I am Counsel for and appear before you today representing The 

National Association of Life Underwriters (NALU). NALU is 

a federation of approximately 1000 local and state associa-

tions, where membership in the former totals over 140,000 

individual life insurance agents, general agents and man-

agers throughout the United States and 3,500 of these individ-

uals are located in New Jersey. 

We are pleased to be afforded the opportunity to 

present our Association's views concerning what we consider 

an extremely serious matter. A-2001 is legislation which, 

if enacted, should have a significantly positive impact on 

the consumers of New Jersey who might be considering the 

purchase of deposit term insurance. As we understand it 

A-2001 would not adversely affect the sale of deposit term 

but would require certain disclosures which will assist the 

consumer in his decision making and also A-2001 would prohibit 

certain marketing techniques which would tend to mislead and 

confuse the consumer. 

Both deposit term proponents and opponents alike 

will probably agree that the introduction of deposit term 
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insurance into the marketplace has been controversial to say 

the least. It has been praised as " ... a real breakthrough for 

consumer-oriented life insurance, a superior type of life 

insurance." 1 On the other hand, Dr. Herbert Denenberg, a 

former Insurance Commissioner of Pennsylvania and former 

Professor of Insurance at the Wharton School said" ... deposit 

term is founded on forfeiture, is structured to lead to mis-

representation and misunderstanding, is a likely tool of fraud 

and deception, and is another sorry example of life insurance 

competition by confusion and by proliferation and profusion of 

policy forms. 2 It should not be approved for sale." 

We see the need to answer two questions this 

morning: l)Does the deposit term product and the way it is 

marketed create such problems as to call for special legislation 

to alleviate these problems, and 2) if so, will A-2001 sub-

stantially insure that purchasers of these products in New 

Jersey will be protected from these problems. 

After considerable research of the deposit term 

product it became very clear that a number of qualified 

authorities feel this product does create serious problems: 

1. These types of policies (deposit term) tend 

to lend themselves to misrepresentation, 

1sylvia Porter, "Is Deposit Term for You", 
New York Post, (August 1, 1977) 

2 
Statement of Herbert S. Denenberg presented at a 

Hearing before the State Board of Insurance, Austin, Texas, 
(C::tobcr 4, 1977), p. 8. 
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have the capacity to mislead the purchaser, and 

therefore are contrary to the public interest. 3 

2. "We view deposit term as a form of term insurance 

in which the price structure provides a front-

end load. The policy thus generates some funds 

to make it possible for that company--without 

dipping deeply into its accumulated resources--

to pay the agent a more substantial first year 

commission than would be possible under a regu­

lar one year renewable term policy••. 4 Some 

have the opinion that one reason deposit term 

was created was to pay high enough commissions 

to motivate salesmen to sell term insurance. 

Insurance trade publications and mailers to 

agents show commissions as high as 200% to 250% 

for deposit term insurance. 

3. "The nonforfeiture laws were passed to rid the 

insurance market of unfair and unreasonable 

forfeitures. These laws define what an unfair 

and unreasonable nonforfeiture is ... the deposit 

term policy repudiates this tradition by exacting 

3 
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Insurance Department 

Bulletin, (August 2, 1971). 

4or. Joseph M. Belth, The Insurance Forum, Vol 5, 
No. 4, (April 1978). 
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a severe and outrageous forfeiture, in some cases 

total forfeiture of what had been billed as a de-

·5 
posit." 

4. "He (Chairman Yantis) said he will propose an 

emergency rule that would have the effect of dis-

couraging the sale of 'deposit term' life insurance 

policies ln which customers stand to lose their 

deposits if they fail to make scheduled payments." 6 

"After reviewing the matter (deposit term) at length, 

the State Board of Insurance determined that without 

such rules or regulations, the welfare of the citi-

zens of Texas purchasing life insurance policies 

7 would be adversely affected." The regulations 

issued in Texas required minimal cash values for 

deposit term. The State Board later withdrew the 

regulations when they determined that the Texas 

statutes did not glve them the authority to set 

cash values in this manner. This technicality 

does not alter the opinion of the State Board of 

Insurance as expressed in the Board Order. 

5. "There is enough low cost term insurance in 

5 

the marketplace today for any concerned buyer 

8 
without adding confusion to the product." 

Denenberg Statement (See footnote 2) . 

6Dallas Times Herald, April 20, 1978, p.l. 

7 Texas State Board of Insurance Order 33707, "Rules 
for Deposit Term and Related Policies", (April 28, 1978). 

8Howard J. Saks, CLU, "Deposit Term has Significant 
2wbacks" Estate Planning, (January 1978), p. 38. 
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6. Sylvia Porter wrote a pro-deposit term 

article (see Footnote 1), but in a later 

article she had this to say," ... some highly 

respected consumer-oriented critics are 

openly attacking deposit term sales as 

'deceptive' ... Belth is concerned that you are 

not being told the whole truth about replace-

ments of your existing policies with deposit 

term or about original purchases of the new 

form of insurance." 9 In Ms. Porter's original 

article praising deposit term she mentioned 

three companies selling deposit term. One 

point of interest was that Ms. Porter's family 

was beneficial owner of 21,906 shares of stock 

in one of those companies. Ms. Porter admitted 

her family's stock ownership and wrote another 

article on deposit term and the quote above is 

from that second article. 

7. "The problems with PET (Partial Endowment Type) 

policies stem primarily from the conflict 

between the marketing techniques associated 

with the product and the true nature of the 

9sylvia Porter, "Deposit Term Insurance Has Pros, 
Cons", Dallas Morning News, (Monday, May 1, 1978), p.3C. 
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product. These problems fall into five broad 

categories: 1) misleading or confusing termin-

ology; 2) artificial relationships; 3) arbitrary 

severability; 4) cash value inequities; and 5) 

inadequate disclosure." 10 

The last quote above by Dr. Harold Skipper was taken 

from an article which appeared in the CLU Journal. Dr. Skipper 

explains in detail and analyzes the problems associated with 

deposit term products. 

~r. Skipper points out, however, that in his opin­

ion the problems associated with deposit term policies should 

not be viewed as being peculiar to these products but are 

actually endemic to the existing system of life insurance. 

They merely magnify already existing systemic problems. He 

believes that, as sucn, they cry out for systemic analyses and 

solutions. The systemic problems Dr. Skipper outlines fall 

into five categories: 

1. Inadequacy of Unfair Trade Practices Acts; 

2. Inadequacy of Standard Nonforfeiture Laws; 

3. Inadequacy of Solicitation Regulations; 

4. Inadequacy of the Replacement Regulations; and 

5. Inadequacy of agent licensing procedures. 

10 
Harold Skipper Phd., CLU. "Perspectives on 

Partial Endowment Type ("Deposit Term") Life Insurance; 
Implications for Regulators," CLU Journal (July 1979) p. 18. 
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From a long-range perspective, Dr. Skipper may be 

absolutely correct. Presuming Dr. Skipper's prognosis is 

correct, to remove from the marketplace the supposed five 

systemic problems above would certainly be the ideal solution 

not only for deposit term, but for all other problems now 

present in the marketplace. However, this is the real world 

we live in and to even suggest that these five categories of 

systemic problems will be successfully addressed 1n the short 

term is wishful thinking at best. The consumers of New Jersey 

need relief from the problems associated with deposit term 

today, not 6 or 7 years from now. If and when long-range 

systemic solutions can be implemented, the short term solu­

tions needed today can be supplanted. New Jersey needs a 

solution now. 

The last question to be answered is whether A-2001 

is adequate to protect the New Jersey insuring public from 

the many problems associated with the deposit term product 

and its marketing. NALU feels that it is and fully endorses 

A-2001. 

Thank you once again for the opportunity to 

share our thoughts with you. 

* * * 
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Mr. Chairman and Members of the Assembly 
Banking and Insurance Committee: 

I appreciate the opportunity to appear here today and to present my 
views on Assembly Bill #2001, a measure which would establish statutory 
non-forfeiture and disclosure standards for a class of life insurance 
policies commonly described as deposit term insurance. Before I state my 
specific position on the bill, I think it would be helpful to provide some 
background on this type of life insurance product and on general issues of 
life insurance regulation which are relevant to its sale. 

In recent years there has been a great deal of discussion--focused 
in the proceedings of the National Association of Insurance Commissioners, 
the Federal Trade Commission and various committees of the U.S. 
Congress, and in academic circles--regarding the consumer•s need to 
understand the differences between straight life insurance and term life 
insurance and to have the use of meaningful cost indexes by which to 
compare the true cost of different policies in order to make intelligent 
purchase decisions. Volumes have been written on these subjects, which 
are considerably broader than the scope of your inquiry here today. 
Suffice it to say, for your present purpose, that consumers are gradually 
coming to a somewhat better understanding of two extremely important facts 
about life insurance purchases: First, that term insurance--or simple 
death protection--is in the short run significantly lower-priced than 
straight life insurance, so that an identical amount of initial premium will 
generally buy from three to five times as much term insurance as straight 
life insurance; and secondly, that the purchase of straight life insurance 
(or indeed, any type of life insurance that provides cash values in 
addition to death protection) represents, in part, an investment of 
premium funds whose performance can be adequately gauged only through 
the calculation of some type of cost index or rate of return taking accurate 
account of the time value of money involved in the transaction. 

The practical inferences to be drawn from these facts are also 
twofold: that term insurance is an excellent choice for some insurance 
buyers, as straight life is for others; and that, if a consumer decides to 
purchase straight life or any type of cash value insurance, he or she 
should select a policy whose cost index or rate of return compares 
favorably with those of other available policies. 

The increased consumer interest in term insurance and concern about 
a favorable rate of return on cash value policies have both influenced, in 
a way, the intensive marketing of deposit term policies over the past few 
years. The deposit term-or as it should more accurately be called, 
partial endowment term insurance policy - is a variant of conventional term 
insurance. However, recognizing that conventional term insurance 
produces a relatively low commission income for agents, and that this in 
turn creates a disincentive for some agents to sell term policies to their 
customers, the price of partial endowment term usually includes an 
additional first year premium that permits additional compensation to agents 
who sell it. Although such compensation is higher than that usually 
available for conventional term policies, in absolute amount it may be no 
greater - and in fact may be less - than the compensation available for the 
sale of a straight life policy. Incorporating a second distinguishing 
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feature that makes them in some small degree a hybrid between term and 
traditional straight life insurance, partial endowment term policies also 
provide an endowment or equivalent cash value that becomes available to 
the policyholder typically toward the end of the term period - at the end 
of eight, nine, ten, eleven or twelve years. 

It can be seen, therefore, that the partial endowment term policy by 
its special structure addresses several of the practical problems involved -
from a company or agent 1 s point of view - in the sale of term insurance 
policies. The additional first year premium provides the opportunity for 
better compensation to the agent, while the availability of an endowment or 
cash value amount in the policy 1s later years creates an incentive for a 
consumer to make the larger outlay required for the first-year policy 
premium. The consumer purchases the simple death protection which he or 
she needs and, if the policy is maintained, will have available an 
endowment benefit at the end of the term period. 

However, the special structure of partial endowment term insurance 
also lends itself, according to many critics, to serious abuses in the 
marketing of the product. Critics point first to the name 11 deposit term 11 

insurance and to the use of the word deposit to describe the additional 
first year premium. The additional first year premium is not a deposit as 
that term is commonly understood, the critics rightly contend, because the 
insurance company does not put it into a special side fund to be gradually 
accumulated at a specified rate of interest. Rather, the so-called deposit 
is simply integrated with the company 1s overall premium collections and 
serves as a source of funds to offset acquisition expenses - particularly tbe. 
commission of the soliciting agent. The endowment or cash values that are 
provided in the policy 1s later years therefore do not derive directly and 
exclusively from the so-called deposit or additional first year premium, not' 
are they accumulated gradually at a specified rate of interest. In fact, 
there are often no endowment or cash values at all in the first several 
years of the policy period. Contrary to a consumer 1 s understanding of the 
word deposit in connection, for example, with a savings account in the 
bank, the so-called deposit under a partial endowment policy is itself at 
risk and will be wholly forfeited if the policyholder lapses the policy in 
any of the first several years of the policy period. 

If the critics of partial endowment term object in the first place to 
the use of the word deposit as a product name and specifically as a name 
for the additional first year premium, they also strenuously object to the 
practice found in the sales presentations of some agents of emphasizing an 
apparently generous 11 rate of return 11 on the policy which is illustrated by 
comparing the amount of the additional first year premium with the higher 
endowment or cash value amount that will be available to the policyholder 
at the end of tne term period. The critics rightly argue that this is an 
artificially constructed rate of return relationship that may easily divert the 
consumer 1s attention from the negative or much smaller rate of return 
which the policy would provide if it were terminated in any ot the 
intervening years. Furthermore, even if a policyholder held the policy for 
the full term period, the rate of return emphasized by the comparison at 
the additional first year premium and the subsequent endowment or cash 
value tells nothing meaningful about the true cost of the policy. 
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Aside from the fact that the endowment benefit does not truly derive 
from the additional first year premium and does not represent a return on 
that premium this kind of comparison in any event directs the consumer's 
attention only to certain fragments of the overall cost of the policy. While 
the misleadingly labeled rate of return produced by this comparison may be 
manipulated to produce an apparently favorable rate of return, this 
inappropriate form of disclosure could easily mask what is a relatively 
unfavorable cost for the simple death protection or term coverage which is 
the main point of buying the pol icy. This kind of fragmentary 
disclosure is not the overall policy cost disclosure which most, if not all, 
consumer advocates have championed in recent years; a prospective 
customer being told a certain figure is a rate of return on his additional 
first year premium may not understand the difference, however, and may 
easily be misled. 

Although the two I have just mentioned are the criticisms most 
frequently made of some agents and some companies in the marketing of 
partial endowment term insurance, there are others. Some critics feel, for 
example, that agents may not adequately explain the automatic conversion 
features which apply to some partial endowment policies, under which a 
policy may be converted to straight life with a different premium 
structure. Others allege that some partial endowment term salesmen use 
misleading or improperly identified promotional literature as part of their 
sales presentations. These alleged abuses are no different in kind, it 
should be pointed out, from abuses that have often been alleged of agents 
making sales presentations regarding straight life insurance policies and 
other 11 traditional" forms of file insurance. 

One of the first problems facing an insurance regulator or other 
responsible parties wishing to take corrective action regarding alleged 
abuses in the marketing of partial endowment term insurance is to decide 
to what extent ~ of these problems are unique to the partial endowment 
product, and therfore deserving of a unique remedial response, and to 
what extent they are illustrative of more general problems in life insurance 
sales that can be addressed through general regulations covering all types 
of life insurance policies. One of the particularly controversial demensions 
of partial endowment term insurance sales is that the need for a higher 
than average first year premium outlay makes particularly promising sales 
prospects of consumers who already have traditional straight life insurance 
policies with significant cash values that could be used to pay the first 
year premium on a partial endowment term policy, if the decision were made 
to replace the existing policy. It has been estimated that as many as 40 
percent or more of partial endowment term insurance sales may constitute 
replacements of existing policies, particularly traditional straight life 
policies. For reasons having to do with their sincere understanding of 
their clients' best interests, but also no doubt with their own competitive 
interests and their desire to retain the continuing commission income 
available from existing policies, agents who sold the existing policies do 
not take kindly to this abrupt marketing challenge from partial endowment 
term salesmen. This concern possibly colors the apparent conclusion of 
some agents and companies who sell mainly straight life insurance policies 
that partial endowment term sales constitute a unique and nearly overwhelming 
threat to the consumer welfare. 
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We note, for example, the special concern of the traditional agents 
and companies that consumers be spared the significant financial penalties 
that may result if they purchase partial endowment term policies and then 
lapse these policies during the first few years of the policy period. The 
Department of Insurance fully shares this concern, but we are aware that 
this financial threat to consumers is not a threat uniquely posed by partial 
endowment term insurance sales. For decades past, the same risk has 
applied equally - or perhaps to a greater degree, because of the higher 
premium amounts involved - to purchasers of straight life insurance who 
lapse their policies during the first few years after purchase. Published 
statistics show that at least one in five purchasers of straight life 
insurance do lapse their policies within the first year or two after 
purchase, and thereby collectively absorb acquisition costs on their 
policies amounting to many millions of dollars annually. We have not heard 
such vehement expression of concern about the plight of these policyholders 
as we now hear about those who may suffer if they lapse a partial 
endowment term policy. 

In similar manner, a representative of a leading company marketing 
straight life insurance recently testified in another state that, while he 
thought that state 1s existing regulation on replacement of life insurance 
policies was adequate for replacement situations involving traditional 
policies, it was not adequate for partial endowment term policies. For 
partial endowment terms policies, he said, there ought to be a unique 
requirement that the consumer be provided with an 11 objective index or 
yardstick 11 , such as the surrender cost index, for both the existing and 
proposed replacement policy, indicating which policy would be the 11 most 
cost-effective. 11 While the Department shares this traditional insurer 1s 
concern that consumers considering a partial endowment term policy as a 
replacement for an existing policy be given comparative cost information on 
both policies, we wonder why this proposal should be limited only to those 
replacements involving partial endowment term. We think that a consumer 
has a need for the best available comparative cost information in any 
replacement situation, and that his or her needs should be considered 
independently of any relative advantage accruing to the existing agent and 
company or the new agent and company in a proposed replacement 
situation. 

Frankly, the problem which the Department of Insurance has with 
many of the analyses of partial endowment term sales abuses, and many of 
the proposed remedies, is that they are too enmeshed in the competing 
concerns and interests of one group or another of companies and agents 
and not sufficiently attuned to the primary interest of the consuming 
public in any remedial action which is to be undertaken. We do not doubt 
for a minute that principals on both sides of this controversy are 
proceeding on assumptions of what is best or at least good for consumers, 
but we do think that a less passionate analysis of partial endowment term 
insurance problems clearly indicates that in their general form they are 
representative of the kinds of problems the consumer has faced in the life 
insurance marketplace for some time past. 
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While we agree with critics of partial endowment term that, for 
example, the use of the word deposit and the emphasis by some agents on 
an artificial "rate of return" relationship between this deposit and a sub­
sequent year cash value cannot be condoned, we do not on that account 
reach the conclusion that partial endowment term insurance is an inherently 
objectionable and misleading product which deserves to be singled out for 
particularly harsh and discriminatory regulation. In this respect we find 
ourselves in agreement with Dr. Joseph Belth, a professor of Insurance at 
Indiana University and well known consumer advocate, who has written as 
follows: 

I see nothing inherently wrong with deposit term 

insurance - unless its name is construed as something 

inherent. I see nothing wrong with a company selling 

a term policy with a large first-year premium in order 

to make possible a reasonable level of compensation to 

the agent. Nor do I see anything wrong with providing 

some cash values in such a term policy . . . I believe 

the fundamental problem is one of inadequate disclosure. 

I do not intend to suggest by this comment that 

deposit term should be singled out for rigorous 

disclosure, because I view deposit term as simply 

another in a long line of examples of the adverse 

consequences of inadequate disclosure. 

43x 



-6-

On this point we also find much that is wise in the published 
comments of Dr. Harold Skipper, a professor of insurance at Georgia State 
University whom observers on both sides of this controversy acknowledge as 
an impartial and expert analyst. "The proponents of partial endowment 
term life insurance are correct," Professor Skipper has written, 1'in that 
their product appears after to have been singled out for special, somet1mes 
unfairly disriminatory treatment." 

The "concern over misleading terminology used in marketing partial 
endowment term policies is understandable," Professor Skipper agrees; 
however, he adds, 1'the concern is subject to allegations of being 
self-serving. Why, one may ask, has the life insurance business waited 
until the late 1970's to express concern for consumers over confusing 
terminology used to describe its products? Long before one heard of 
'deposit term life insurance, 1 some insurers and agents described their 
policies and benefits provided thereunder in terms which after were as 
misleading as those used by the marketers of partial endowment term 
policies. 11 A case has not been made "that more disclosure is necessary 
with partial endowment term poi icies than with other policies," Professor 
Skipper continues. 1' A case has been made that different -- not necessarily 
more -- disclosure is necessary with all life insurance policies. it is hard 
to understand how different disclosure patterns for different types of life 
insurance policies will make the consumer's task easier. The consumer 
needs one regulation which applies to all life insurance policies and which 
provides meaningful cost information. 11 

On the question of replacements of existing policies by partial endowment 
term policies, Dr. Skipper usefully points out that 1'nothing is inherently 
deceptive or wrong with replacement.... The problems stem not from 
partial endowment term products themselves but from Replacement Regulations 
incapable of providing consumers with adequate information for decision-making 
in virtually all replacement situations... The implicit assumption in the 
[existing] replacement regulation is that the average consumer is capable 
of simple gazing at the many figures contained in the comparison statement 
and of somehow arriving at the corrent decision. This is an heroic 
expectation." The marketing of partial endowment term policies "simply 
has highlighted problems which have been in existence for years. The 
problems should be attacked at their source -- an inadequate Replacement 
Regulation should be made consistent with the Solicitation Regulation and 
both should provide high-quality cost information to provide meaningful 
assistance to the consumer in decision-making. 11 

Finally, regarding the argument of partial endowment term critics that 
such policies are a special threat to consumers because of the lack of cash 
values in the early years, Professor Skipper has this to say: 

The claim by critics of [these] policies that 

consumers do not fully understand the nature of 

oocential costs on early termination ... should be 

44x 



removed from its self-serving surroundings and 

elevated to a proper generalized perspective. One 

could argue that few purchasers of any cash value life 

insurance policy understand fully the nature of costs 

to themselves on early termination. Further, 

imcomplete evidence on lapse rates under these policies 

suggests that if anyone within the life insurance 

business should be subjected to criticisms about costs 

because of early lapse, heading the list should be 

insurers and agents marketing whole life and 

endowment insurance. High early lapse rates within 

the life insurance business continue to be a source of 

problems for and embarrassment to the business. 

Noting that some critics have proposed changes in the Standard 
Non-forfeiture Laws to compel higher cash values in the early years of 
partial endowment term policies, Professor Skipper warns that "care should 
be taken to avoid motivations and changes which are couched in terms of 
punitive action against partial endowment term policies alone. 11 If changes 
are to be made in non-forfeiture laws to deal with a variety of problems 
affecting different life insurance products, Professor Skipper advises that 
"practicality supports making all necessary changes in the law at the same 
time ... 11 The principle of equity to be applied in such changes, he suggests, 
is that "any two essentially identical policies be required to have the same 
minimum cash values." 
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In considering what remedial changes should be made in New Jersey 
to eliminate abuses connected with the sale of partial endowment term 
policies, I think we are fortunate to have the words of an insurance scholar 
of Professor Skipper•s credentials urging us to a fair and balanced course 
of action. Although the statements I have just quoted would be an obvious 
comfort to agents and companies selling partial endowment term who do not 
want to be singled out for harsh treatment, I think Professor Skipper•s 
remarks are equally persuasive to any responsible party with an ordinary 
sense of fair play. Indeed it is significant that the article by Professor 
Skipper from which I have just quoted was described as an 11 excellent 
paper 11 and introduced into the record of an insurance department hearing 
in another state by a vice president of one of New Jersey•s leading domestic 
life insurers as part of his overall submission on what should be done to 
eliminate abuses in the sale of partial endowment term insurance policies. 

The New Jersey Insurance Department believes that there are three 
essential criteria that should be used to craft a workable remedial response 
to partial endowment term insurance problems, or to evaluate any of the 
multitude of proposals that have already been advanced. We believe, 
first, that any proposal should be evaluated primarily for what it does to 
advance the overall interests of New Jersey•s life insurance consumers, 
and not for the relative advantage it provides to one or another group of 
agents or companies who are understandably competing to retain or expand 
their share of life insurance business in the state. This criterion 
immediately suggests a second, which is that remedial action should be -­
to the extent feasible -- neither piecemeal nor discriminatory but should 
deal with whole classes of consumer problems and should be applicable 
across the board to any and all industry practices or products that 
generate these problems. Third, we subscribe to the traditional wisdom 
that where a problem can be handled by an administrative agency under 
existing general statutory standards, it is preferable to address the 
problem through available administrative procedures. 

This brings me, and I appreciate the patience you have shown in 
allowing me to fill in the relevant background, to a consideration of the 
Department•s position on Assembly Bill #2001. There are two main parts to 
this proposed legislation. The first is a product-specific set of rules for 
determining minimum non-forfeiture values or cash values during the 
succeeding years of a partial endowment policy term. The second is a 
product-specific miscellaneous list of disclosure rules that would apply to 
the sale of partial endowment term policies. 

To begin with the section of the bill establishing new specific 
non-forfeiture values for partial endowment term policies, it is the 
Department•s position that these provisions would operate not so much to 
advance the general interest of consumers as to advance the special 
interest of the industry competitors of partial endowment term companies 
and agents. We do not object in principle to the idea of increasing the 
required cash values in the early years of any life insurance policy. This 
is one possible approach, as more adequate disclosure is another, to the 
problem of avoiding or reducing the risk to consumers of significant 
financial penalties becau5e of early lapsation of policies. What we do find 
offen ;ive about the srec,flc provisions of Assembly Bill #2001 is that thev 
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single out partial endowment ter·m policies for precisely the kind of 
discriminatory and punitive regulation that we have said we would like to 
avoid. If the minimum non-forfeiture values which would be imposed by 
Assembly B iII #2001 are really necessary to protect the interest of 
consumers, we would wonder why they ar·e not proposed for application to 
all cash value life insurance policies. 

As matters now stand, if these provisions were enacted, partial 
endowment term policies would be required to provide higher cash values 
in the policy 1 s early years than, for example, competing straight life 
insurance policies sold by Prudential or Metropolitan. We think this is 
unfair, and we think it is unnecessary. We think it violates Professor 
Skipper 1 s suggestion that such changes not be couched in terms of 
punitive action against partial endowment term policies exclusively, and his 
point that for the sake of practicality, all proposed changes in 
non-forfeiture laws should be undertaken at the same time. We note that 
the National Association of Insurance Commissioners is now perfecting 
recommendations for a variety of improvements in the Standard 
Non-Forfeiture Laws, and we believe that is the appropriate general 
context in which to consider equitable changes that would affect partial 
endowment term policies. 

Turning to the miscellaneous list of disclosure rules in the remainder 
of the proposed legislation, the Department of Insurance has no strong 
objection to the content of most of these provisions, except that where 
they would prohibit certain misleading terminology or mandate certain forms 
of disclosure, we think that the consumer interest and ordinary common 
sense would dictate that they apply to any life insurance poli~y where the 
same kind of problem needs to be addressed. 

In a recent meeting with companies and agents who are among the 
major sellers of partial endowment term insurance and others who are 
among its severest critics, we proposed to amend the Department 1s existing 
life insurance solicitation regulation so that the most important of these 
proposed disclosures and prohibitions would be available as protections for 
New Jersey consumers in any and every solicitation situation where they 
are relevant. We proposed, for example, to prohibit the use of the term 
11 deposit 11 either in the name of partial endowment term insurance or as a 
designation for the additional first-year premium, and to prohibit 
misleading state-ments or implications of a rate of return relationship 
between the additional first year premium and the endowment available at 
the end of the policy term. The critics of partial endowment term 
predictably favored this prohibition, and we found it interesting that the 
representatives of partial endowment term companies and agents at our 
meeting were also willing to accept it. 

We felt that the single other most valuable prov1s1on contained in 
Assembly Bill #2001 was the designation as an unfair trade practice of 11 the 
failure to include information that explains what happens to the additional 
first year premium if the policy is terminated prior to the end of the term 
period, 11 or in other words the mandatory disclosure of the risk of a 
substantial financial penalty if a consumer lapses a policy in the first few 
years of the policy term. Since this risk may be equal or greater in the 
case of a traditional straight life policy, we proposed an amendment to the 
Department 1 s existing solicitation regulation that would mandate such 
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disclosure for all cash value policies. The reaction to this proposal was 
also interesting. Representatives of partial endowment term companies and 
agents were willing to live with it, while their critics were opposed to 
applying such a rule to the sale of their own policies. 

Although the critics of partial endowment term apparently find it 
consistent to require a special warning of the dangers of early lapsation 
exclusively for the purchasers of that product, and not for their own, woe 
find this to be a monumental inconsistency. The unwillingness of some 
.parti.al eAdowment term critics to live under the kind of rules they \WQ.UJd 

m<;~ke for others is in our view prima facie evidence of the discriminatory 
cast of many of these proposals. The Department of Insurance believ.es 
that many of thee disclosure rules prescribed in Assembly Bill #2001 sh-ould 
be adopted for the protection of New Jersey consumers, but we do not 
think it is a good or practical idea to fashion separate miscellaneous Lists 
for every different insurance product that may need additional regulat·ion. 
Still less do we think it is a good or practical idea to engage in such 
miscell.aneous regulatory list-making through the legislative process. 

The third criterion we have suggested for the evaluation of proposal'S 
an partial endowment term problems is that these proposals should rely, to 
the extent possible, on available administrative remedies. The Department 
of Insurance does not believe that the problems relating to partial 
endowment term insurance are qualitatively different than disclosure and 
other problems which are currently addressed in the Department's 
solicitation and replacement regulations, and we believ.e that those 
reguiations are the obvious starting point for efforts to improve discl·osure 
to consumers. To address the problems through l.egislation w-ould, w.e 
beH.eve, fo·reclose the opportunities provided through these administrative 
mechanisms and set a burdensome precedent for legislative involvement in 
the detail.ed regulation of dozens of other insurance products with th.eir 
own problems and with their own avid partisians and critics. 

The Department is actively pursuing its study of partial .endowm.ent 
term insurance problems and at the first opportunity, in the January is:Sue 
of the New Jersey Register, will publish remedial pr.oposals in the form of 
amendments to the existing life insurance solicitation regulation. 

While we have not yet put this proposal into final form, it will cover 
many of the practices intended to be addressed through the disclos.ure 
Standards proposed in Assembly Bill *t2001. 

In addition, we agree with companies and agents on both sides of the 
partial endowment term insurance controversy that an improvement in the 
Department's life insurance replacement regulation is needed, and that this 
would benefit consumers in a variety of ways including but not limited to 
partial endowment term replacements. A revised model replacement 
regulation recommended by the National Association of Insurance 
Commissioners seems to provide many improvements over our existing 
regulations, and we will therefore propose changes based on this mode·l in 
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the January New Jersey Register. One defect. of all replacement regulations 
is that they seem more attuned to the clarification· of rights and 
procedures applicable to existing and replacing companies and agents than 
directly to the plight of the consumer in trying to make a sound decision 
regarding a proposed replacement of insurance. Rules governing the 
conduct of existing and replacing insurers are a step in the right 
direction, since they increase the likelihood that the consumer will receive 
information illustrating the argued advantages of either course of action. 
In any replacement regulation finally adopted by the Department, however, 
we will try to assure that the consumer is the prime focus of attention and 
concern, and not merely a passive third party in a vigorous tug of war 
waged by existing and replacing insurers. 

We will of course provide adequate opportunity for industry and 
public comment on each of our proposed administrative remedies before 
adopting them in final form. 

In conclusion, I would like to thank the Assembly Banking and 
Insurance Committee for this opportunity to present the Department•s views 
on Assembly Bill #2001. We certainly share your concern that action be 
taken to correct the problems which it is intended to address. I hope that 
my comments have been helpful in this regard. 
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THE NEWARK, N.J. ASSOCIATION OF 
LIFE UNDERWRITERS 

134 EVERGREEN PlACE, EAST ORANGE, N.J. 07018 (201) 1078·0'157- 01·58· 

To The Assembly Banking 
And Insurance Committee 

At The Public Hearing Held 
in Trenton on November 12th, 1980 

Statement of the Newark Association 
of Life Underwriters Presented 
By Lili Schmid,CLU. 

My name is Lili Schmid,C.L.U., and I am here on behalf 

of the Newark Association of Life Underwriters, the 

largest lqcal association in the state. I have the 

honor of serving as the current President of the Association 

and I am accompanied by: 

Name Title 

1) Sheppard D. Huntington.<~•-•-/ 1st Vice President 

2) Arthur D. Shankman 2nd Vice President 

3) Timothy R. Holt,CLU Secretary 

4) Joseph A. Spencer,III,CLU Treasurer 

5) John H.·Priestman,CLU National Comitteeman 

6) Daniel J. Ryan,CLU Immediate Past President 

I would like to point out that the majority of our Association 

officers have attained the designation of Charter Life 
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Underwriter (CLUJ which is earned by the successful completion 

of ten (10) extensive examinations covering not only life 

insurance, but economics, investments, business law and taxation. 

Further, that the involvement of our officers in Association 

activities cteates no economic advantages to them. Each works 

to enhance our profession and encourages our members to conduct 

the sales of life insurance in the best interests of our clients -

the buying public. 

We arc here to seck your support of AsscJnbly Bill A-2001, which 

addresses itself to i1nproving the non-forfeiture values available 

to the purchase~of so called Deposit Term Insurance. The bill 

also seeks to correct certain unethical practices and misleading 

representations that have been utilized in the sale of this 

product and should be eliminated in the sale of all life insurance. 

We do not advocate, nor do we believe Bill A-2001 will cause the 

demise of the Deposit Term contract. There are currently many 

variations of this type product on the market and it does have 

its advantages and disadvantages to the purchaser. With full 

and complete disclosure the buyi11g public would be able to determine 

whether or not this type insurance contract meets their needs. 

We also realize that there are agents, including some of our 

Association members, who truly believe they are selling the 

contract of the future and are not selling deposit term as a 
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replacement contract, but as a means of increasing existing 

coverage. 

In addition to the fact that the contracts ofteh lack 

non-forfeiture values on early termination, the hasiL: problem 

with the sale of Deposit Term is the abuses being made by a 

large number of agents selling the policies. Many of these 

same agents have little training in the application of 

insurance to the heeds of the public. Their whole sales 

approach is based on the replacement or taiding of existing 

contracts. This replacement approach has the effect of chargit1g 

the buying public with two sales commissions for the same hasit 

coverage. It would certainly be naive to assume that the public 

is not bearing the cost of this double commission penalty. 

The sales process involved has taken many devious forms 

including a telephone tape recording made by a past membet of 

the U.S. Congress, utilization of misleading ahd untrue statementsj 

quotations made out of context from governmental repotts and last 

b u t no t 1 e a s t , an o p c n at tack on the i n t c g r i t y o f o the r s <11 e s 

people based on totally false charges; 

I personally attended a seminar sponsored by a Majot Insurance 

Company selling a form of Deposit Term. the meeting was conducted 

by a Vice President of Company and was designed td fecruit agents 
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to sell their products. After an explanation of the product, 

an outline was given of the ways and means to sell the product 

as the replacement of existing insurance and not on how to meet 

the needs of the public. This included how to order a computer 

prepared statement not from the insurance company, but an 

independent firm which would display the advantages of 

replacement. No mention was made as to the disadvantages of 

the replacement, nor what alternative would be available to the 

insured if they retained their current insurance. 

Unfortunately, our industry periodically goes through "The 

Return of the Locust" who feed upon the productivity of others. 

Many of the same advocates of Deposit Term, were found to be 

advocates in the 1960's of replacing current contracts with Term 

and Mutual Funds. For the many buyers who succumbed to this 

approach, the years did not produce the magic economic gains 

promised by these sales people, and the buyers in fact suffered 

substantial economic losses. 

I arn sure that many ol those who will or have appeared before 

you, to sec the defeat of this bill, will state the bill is a 

restraint of trade, and violates their constitutional rights. 

Please keep in mind the Bill does not seek the elimination 

of the product, but rather the inclusion of provisions that 
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protect the buyer and which are currently found in other 

cash value policies. Also they may accuse the backers of 

this Bill of being PAWNS of major insurance companies, ~nd 

even recipients of cconomi c:1l i nduccmcnts. Pur ther, they 

?ttack the motives of other agents, while at the same time 

failing to disclose that the product they seek to market as 

a replacement, often yields equal or greater commissions than 

those of the existing agent. 

Please do not be mislead by these heated and emotional charges~ 

but try to concentrate on whether or not the Bill in question 

seeks to accomplish the greatest good for the buying public. 

If you are able to reach this conclusion we ask your support 

of A-2001. 

Thank yol.l. 

I 

\~,,' 

' 'l . \ I 

Lili Schmid,CLU. 
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STATEMENT AT NE\.J JERSEY ASSEMBLY PUBLIC HEARING 

NOVEMBER 12, 1980 

I am George W. Harding, Senior Vice President and Actuary, University Life Insurance 

Company of America, Indianapolis, Indiana. I am a Yellow of the Society of Actuaries 

and a member of the American Academy of Actuaries. I am speaking in opposition to 

assembly bill 2001 and vill give you a number of reasons why this bill should be 

abandoned. 

(1) A.2001 amends Chapter 25, which deals primarily with the cash value requirements 

of all types of policies. 

Those who have reviewed this Chapter know it is quite technical and virtually 

incomprehensible to those who are not actuaries. 

A.2001 is not well vorded and tends to confuse rather than enlighten. 

I suggest that any needed changes in such matters be left to actuaries and to 

insurance department personnel for recommendation. 

(2) Cash values and other insurance matters are separately regulated by each of 

the various states. 

Complete uniformity among the states is impossible but there is substantial 

uniformity in cash value laws throughout the statPs. 
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This uniformity is promoted through the NAIC by promulgation of model regulations 

and legislation. 

Uniformity is desirable so that costs may be kept low and confusion minimize.d. 

{3) A major package of amendments to this very Chapter 25 has been in the making 

for over two years. 

The package was submitted for final approval last month to a special 

subcommittee of NAIC which deals with these actuarial matters. 

The package will be recommended for adoption at the NAIC meeting to 

be held in-New York this December. 

Each state will then be asked to have the package introduced as legislation 

as soon thereafter as possible. 

The package is of considerable importance to the insurance industry as well as 

to insurance purchasers. The effect will certainly bP to substantially reduce 

the cost of insurance. 
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(4) This amendment package deals with a number of changes. 

Of significance today iH the fact that cash values for additional first 

year premium policies are affected by certain of these amendments. 

The effect will not be nearly so severe as would that of this bill, yet the 

amendment package will -- we hope -- receive substantial support from the 

insurance industry as a whole. 

Thus, there is no need to "jump the gun" with this bill. 

(5) The apparent effect of this bill would be to require early cash values, in the 

very firs~.year for most additional first year premium policies, whereas cash 

values are not provided now until later years. 

The early cash values are benefit costs which must be provided out of the 

total pool of funds provided by the payment of premiums on these policies 

as are all benefit costs. 

Clearly then, the increased benefit costs can be met only by (1) reducing 

commission expense or (2) by increasing premium income. 

Thus, either New Jersey consumers suffer from increased insurance costs (and the 

increases necessary are substantial) or New Jersey agents suffer from reduced 

commissions or both suffer. (and the reductions are substantial) 
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The likely result would be to make these policies either unproductive for the 

agent to sell or imprudent for the purchaser to buy. 

(6) The effect of this bill is to provide greater benefits than are now provided to 

those who terminate early; those who continue to pay premiums pay the added cost. 

Those who terminate early do not pay enou~1 to cover the actual costs incurred 

up to the time of termination. 

Those who continue must make up that loss. 

(7) The early cash values which would be required by this bill for additional 

first year __ premium policies are unreasonable and inconsistent when compared 

with other types of policies. 

For example, whole life policies require a premium significantly greater 

than is charged for additional first year premium policies, yet no cash value 

is required by Chapter 25 until the third year. 

Likewise, if premiums for an additional first year premium policy did not 

reduce after the first year and instead remained level -- thus costing a great 

deal more -- the requirements of this bill would not apply nnd yet EO E~Eh :"-_"!_]_u~ 

would be required for J:tan> vears! 
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Further, the actual pattern of premium payments called for under an additional 

first year premium policy after the first year is not level but is instead 

increasing -- so as to more nearly follow true costs of insurance -- the cash 

value requirements for such a policy under this bill would be the same as for 

an otherwise identical policy with level premiums. Such a requirement flies in 

the face of fact and reason and, further, is inconsistent with requirements 

for other policies with comparable variations in premium scales. 

(8) This bilJ would do a dif;service to in~;urance legislation in NJ by introducing 

into the law faulty concepts and perceptions of the nature of life insurance 

contracts and the relationship between premiums and benefits. 

Each life insurance contract provides a package of benefits -- death benefits, 

cash surrender values, options to forfeiture, loans, etc. In exchange for 

these benefits, a series of premium payments is specified at the outset, 

No particular benefit provided in a policy can be identified with any parti-

cular premium or part of it. 

Yet this bill clearly assumes that a part of the first year premium is solely 

allocable to certain benefits and no other. 

Quite the contrary is true. 
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(9) As written, it appears that this bill would apply to policies currently in 

force or perhaps even thos~ termiuated some years ago. 

If so, this bill would impair contractual relationships and most likely would 

be found unconstitutional. 

(10) \-lith respect to the portion of this bill dealing with advertising an& ~ales 

practices, I'm really surprised to see a limitation only for additional first 

year premium policies. 

The cited practices are presumably as reprehensible when performed witlh. respt:>ct 

to other types of policies as with additional first year l)remiu.m planS:. 

(11) Certain of the items proposed as unfair trade pra.ct:ices are imapprop·r:iiate. 

(g) The use of the various terms would seem to• be appropcria.t:e undeT certain 

circumstances, for example when true. 

(h} For any policy. termination results in forfeiture of all premd:ums; J~a~:id,. 

subject only to any cash value which may be available. 

(i) The separation of premium into artificial Cl>mp"nents simply c€lnfusf.'s 

the issue. The .£_~t.~_i_!:.~ amount of each premium purchases the ('nUre 

package of benefits provided by the JWlicy. 
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(12) The implementation period of 30 days is far too short. This bill, if passed, 

would require recalculation of all cash values for each issue age, printing 

of those values and refiling of the new form for approval by the NJ insurance 

department. 

A more realistic period would be six months. 

TO SUNMARIZE, I urge you to set this bill aside. 

(1) It is not needed, because the NAIC is working on the same subject and will 

be taking action in about a month. 

(2) Even if it were needed, it would produce seriously damaging effects to either 

NJ purchasers or NJ sellers of this product, or both. 

(3) The effects of this bill benefit early terminators who even now do not pay 

their fair share, and penalize those policyholders who continue. 

(4) This bill would produce unreasonable and inconsistent results in comparison 

with other policies. 
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ST!\nH~:ur OF JOHN u 'Iv~u_cu, ,J J<. 
THE MUTUAL BENE:FIT LIF:·: INGlmAi';CI·: COt·ll'/\TlY 

NE\1/\HK, NI~\V .mm~F:Y 

As;,embly Conu.ti ttl'C on J>:nl1"i nLj :Ul• l : n~;u ;·;_ml:•' 

Hc::1.rinrr,s on J\s:.;eulul.y l>ill ;;,,. 2001 
Trenton, Nevr Jerc.:cy 

Nove::nber L:, 19[>0 

I appreciate the opportunity to tcr.tifY br::torc your cu;n,JiV;~: ·,rv.:.:,· 
on behalf of The Mutual Benefit J,ift· ln:;urance Comprm:v oJ' li··-,F,r>., ;;, ' .. ,.,, ... ,. 

Mutual Benefit Li:(\: is one of tl~<~ oJdc.;t J.!J'c .l.n!;u:r:uwc ,.,). ;:u1i:':: ,,, 

the country, having been ch:).rtcred :i.n the State of J!r_'V/ .:cr:;;cy :i.n Jd.':). '·'; 
are runone tl1e 20 l.arr,cst mutLL'll life in~;ura11ce c~.~~;r!J.'l~tnic~~ in th2 (i!; · !.:.:.:< .~ : ... :~l . 
\'lith total life insurance in force in excess of )) lJi.Llion doll:tr~; :,;;,, .1:· ;r:l.:; 

of more than 5 billion dollarc;. 

Ide have achieved our position in the life insurance inclu;, .r:i '':>' · •ro­
Vidinc; over the decades n. high quality 1nortfolio of life ~n;,uranc,~: ,,.-.-ut:.'.':, ·'. 
'vie have ne-ver failed to meet our contractual obli ~;a bow;, ~mel we iV<J' a: •. ~ .-': 
treo.ted our policyholders equitably. 

He arc ap1)earing tou:w in support of /\:-;r;cmb.ly }:ill 2CJL, t.vc:: :;c ',, _ 
feel that its enactment i.s in the best interest:~ of our policylwL::cr::. ,. 
also feel that it is in the best intcre:~ ts of all of Lho[;e cit i.z•:v: .·;:, ';l: 
State of I'iew Jersey vrl1o mir~)1t purchase j nsurance product;.; in 1~11(: . ·r! .. 

Mutual Benefit does not offer for sale the artdit.Lonal fir:~L-,'/''~'.l" 

premium ,life insurance pob.cies (commonly referred to as "deposit tc:c::t" 
policies) vlhich 1\sscmbly Dill 2001 r,ccl-:.:3 to rer;ul:J.Lc for tr.c l'ol::..()',-;;,,. 
reasons: 

(l) Deposit tcnn is merel.'i a ;:;r,cci::Ll type of ct:.ldwlr,cnt insur :.:nc!' 
end-loaded tenn insurance, or a coyabination l;h(~rcof. 

(2) He alrc:.c.:.y offer tenn and vThole liCe :insur:u·~:c~ : ulic~ie:s v:iJ.ic:L •uvJHi· 

better coverap;e at a lo-,,cr cost tlwn j::; mn·r.1:dJy fll'CWi_Jc>1 un->::r· rlc; 0::. ,; 
term policies. 

(3)-Thc dcp(;.;i.l:; tenn prorlncL i::; ·ird1crr·r.l._;y :;lJ:;,:,-1 i.ii..c~ ;,,, rr•:r.i.r.-<11 ,, :· .1 

n:\ r:rr·:~rr·::''rti.:J_t~ i <1n. 

( 5) Dcpu::;i t term doc:; not o.i'l'cr tiH; L 1 :-: i [lj lit,: of ~:l1o I•, .L ~ · •: 1 ;:; •, i. i , . 

respc~t t.o policy lc.1_:,;_;, \oJaj_vcr uJ' r!l·cm.itlliL~ .i.n t..TH· t~'i{ ~:~ u_;· ,~_1,_i_.: 

n_nd oth<!r v:1luablc cx1;r·t lJcr:cU.l. ri·!t-r::. 
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He do not contend that l;ltc mar;'.cl;ing of deposit terrn :.;uou.l.d b<; 
n.bsolnt~ly prohibi tccl. 1!c do feel, however, that the cxper.Lcncc ~ n t11c 
market; p.lacc t.·.o 1i-'l.t".e [;11/~l':c:;l;:: Li1c need. for lc•,·:i:;Ltl;ion ::rtcll ;1:; f\:;::e:r:>iJ}y 

Bill 2001 to extend to con~; LUr.cr~; the pro tee \;ion oJ' the noni'or fc;j_t ur'~ lm1:: 
previously cnrtctccl by the Lcgi:;lature and to curtail r1buses in the cr::.1cl:et­
inr; of dcpoc-;it term ..,.1hlch orisc: from i t:3 unique features . 
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Rules and Regulations 

(31 PA. CODE CH. 87] 

Modified Premium life Insurance 

lleccmber 13, 1979 

The Insurance Department, by this 
order, allt>pls an amendment to 3 I l'a. 
Code Part IV !Life lnsurancrl ChaptPr 
871relating to requirements tor certain 
life insurnnrc pt•hciPs nnd ;-,alP., 111.:, 
tices) hy anwnding § ~7.13 ·lor!lll'r!\' 
relating to dt>pnsit ter111 polu.:u·-; .uHJ 
now to he related to mod1tietl p1elllll••'l 

life insurance) as 'et fonh in Annex A 
to thi• order. 

Propost'd rult• makin~C: on § H7.1 :1 
was first published at ~ Pa B 2:172 
(August 2b, 1971'11. with a noure of 
heating at 8 Pa. B. 2607 (Septrmher 
16, 1978), at 8 Pa. B. 3515 (December 
9, 1978), and at 9 Pa. B. 1759 (.June 2, 
1979). Fiscal Note 1·79·6 was pub­
lished at 9 Pa. B. 1759i.June 2, 19791 

At 9 Pa. II. 3~HJ (Octoher li, I :J79), 
§ 87.13 was repuhlishl'd as propnsf'd 
rule making. As a result of that not ice 
comments were rPccivcd and individu· 
ally evaluated. Some comments voin,d 

~upport for the '""emlment of§ 87.1:1. 
Some u':'!avorahle comments objectrd 
to_ prrnnttmg the sale of modified pre­
mmm life tnsurancc. HowevPr, the In· 
surance Department has conclud<'d 
t~at with thl' adoption of this r!'h'llla· 
l10n suffi<'IPnl snfeguards will he 
pn·st·nt to pro I f'l'l a purclwsPr of modi­
fh•d premium life insurance. ( )tlwr un 
favorable tomml'nl s n•lated to th~ 
treatment ot nonforfeiture values in 
the n~g-ulatinn. llt,wever, after rPvin'V, 
thP ln<;urnnce f)ppartnwnt. hao.; dt·· 
tennined thai ih tn•alnll'nt of nonfor­
f?iturc vah~cs in tlw reguli..ilion i~jnsti­
fled and will prevent undue forfeiture 
~f premium whPn a modd'it'd premium 
hfe msuranc•• policy is terminatl'd. One 
unfavorahle ronuncnl tPiated to addi­
tional di~clo~ure requirPnwnls for 
modified premium life insur<.~nce as 
compared to disrlosurc requirernt'nts 
for other type~ of life insuranre. flow­
ever. it is felt thnt the unusual fcaturl's 
of modified prPmium life insurc.ttu:P 
justify additional disclosure n:quirc­
ment s. The final comment made a 
mcritnriou~ suggestion that a sl'nlPfll'(' 

be added a ttl"' t•ml of paragraph (81 of 
subst•etton (c) of § 87.13: this "l(;r,os­
tlon has been incorporated in Annex A 
to this ordPr. 

. The Department will nccPpt modi­
fu.:d prPmiurn. life insurant·t• filin~~s 
after puLlieaiJ•;n .-,( Uti~ ott! .. r; ~~~~ .... 
Ever. approval will n~t hP ~~1vt•n nri1·· 
tn tin• efferti'.'t' .1.-ll(• of !)lie; ilrdPf. Tt. 
e .. xp~ditP filing~, nil modifiPd pn•mium 
life msurance lilings should lH• iH'f'om· 

panied h_v I hP following: all polici•·' 
nnd ndPrs, uwlud.·1g- annuitj, .. ,, \o..·lnc!i 
will he snlieit<'d WII h the modifii'CI pre 
mmm .. l1fe policv: '',!ohn f)op" c11mph•t. 
t.•d ttl~do~t.tJ ,. Ill I m; n·qwn·d h, 
§ 87.1~fcltfila,.df7).dt··la ].hnliot,"" 
completed n•pl;1eemenr fnrn., »quirt~d 
by§ ~7.l3(ciiHI. 

l'i1e r'-'J.,rulation ht:rc.- ~ a\· Jt,.. d ; 
adopti'd pursuant to aut.horit, cor; 
tninPd in The I nsurancc J.>epa;.l!Jwn: 
Act of one thm"and nine hundred and 
t:venty-one, as amended (40 P. ~ 
§§ 1-3211: The Insurance Company 
Law of 1921. as amended f.lO ('_ S. 
~§ ~l41- 9911. The Fraternal flrnrfit 
Socil'tv f''od<• (·!l.l 1'. S §§ 1111-101 
l!4110lill: ThP lJ1,',r lnsurnnr•· 
Practices Act 1-10 P ~ §§ 1171.1 --
1 i 71.1 ol and Thr Admini,tnli\f• t :od•· 
ni 1929, as UIIWtHit·d t?l I' - ~( ti•l, 
}.-<;li, ·Ill and 11 '·t awi tn 1 !li ;! ·11!1 v 
w•ilt tlw (·f,li1tlH•I1'.\'t~.-:ll!i. (\ .rt tlf.ii' 

j~}l, ,..I.'Jli 1 "' {',\ 1' f '; ''I~ ,·,'; i iUo \.;,; •. I' 1·1 

:£ ·, ~~ . ,·.I : l·. ! ' './, 

pare~ lrtsurance { ommissinfler, Pn. 
Cmwlth 371 A.2d 564, 2\J Common­
wealth Ct. 459 0 9771, Decree affirmed 
by Supreme Court, pern1riam, Pa. :l9~J 
A.2d 1131 (1978); and Cro1<•n Life In· 
surance Company u. Cnmmonwralth of 
Pc•nnsylr•arlia, lh·partmf'nf of Insur­
ance, 39 l'a. Commonwealth Ct. 9·1 
(19781, !'a Ctowlth 3\!·1 A.2d 1:10:, 
I I ~17HI 

ThP I nsur;~ m·1· I )t'pnrtnwnt finds: 

(II That public noti<·cot intention to 
anwnd the administrative reJ..,rulatiuns 
amended hy this order has been duly 
given pursuant to §§ 201 and 202 of 
the('[)[. (4:i I' S. §§ 1~01 and 120~1 
and tlw fl'h'1Jlation'i thrrPund('r, 1 Pu. 
Code§§ 7.1 and?.< 

(2) That the amendment of the rcgu· 
lations of the Insurance Department in 
the manner provided in this ord~r is 
n~cessary and appropriate for the ad­
mini~! rat. ion and Pnforn•rnpnt of tht:! 
authori7.ing statutes. 

The l nsuranc·e llepartnwnt, acting 
pursuant to the authorizing statutes, 
orders: 

(A) The regulations of tht• I nsurancc 
Departrnpnt, 31 Pa. Code Part IV, 
ChaptPr R7. are amended by amending 
§ R7.13 to read as set forth in Annex 
A. 

(I!) 1'he l nsuran<"r Departmt>nt shall 
submit this ordpr and /\ ntlPX A lwreto 
to the llPpartnwnt of .Justi('l• for ap­
prov<~l as to IP!:ality ns n•quin·tl by 
law. 

(CI The Insurance CommiS>.ionet 
shall duly certify this orch·r and Ann~x 
A lwrett. ~uul dt•pt•.sit the samt· with 
tht• l.Pgislative Hef.,rencl' Bureau as 
required by law. 

(D) This order shall take efft•rt liO 
days after'\JUblication in the l'eml.,)'l­
vania Bulletin. 

IJy the Insurance l>r>partm"nt 

I!AHVEY BAHTLE, Ill, 
Insurance Commissicmer 

Annrx A 

TlTLEJI. INSliKANU·: 

PARTIV. UH:tNSlJRANCE 

CIIAPTUt 87. RH.)l'IREI\IENTS Hllt 
n:n rAIN un: INSllkANl'l·: 

I'OI.IC'II·:S A."'ll SAUS 
I'RACTJU:S 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

87.13. Modified prtminm life in,nr· 
a nee pnlide~. 

~a) n('<>f'n)>tion of nu·difird prt•milan 
life prndr.: ('i 

(1) ModifiNJ premtum tPrrn insur 
ancr is n contract of i~Jt.;ur·:uu··· whiC'h 
invoht•:; tlw paymPnl ,Jf an additional 
first yt•ar pn•rnilJI!i which j ... rctUIIll'd 
to t ht· pohc~·holdt•r at t ht- t'IHI of a st .. 

I(:Ctt·d p1 rind of •. t•ar-.. • -.u.tll_v "lJ~ht tH 
ten, im.rt•i.JSt·d hy both intt'rest lt111l f.,, 
feitun·~ of ! ho~t· who tt·rminatt• tht>1r 
contracts durin!( the term pt'riod 

f2) \lodifit·d ptt>lllium wholt· life i~ 
.~-mil.n !O modifit•d pn•f;litun ft•rrn 11; 
~t.r:JIH't~ rxcept that .. thl' lt>tln irhur 
a net' ben('fit i~ convt~rted to .1 wholi•lifr­
plan at al tainPd age. This ronver~wn 
to wholr life ('O\'t>ragl' rnn\· he auto 
matie or rlectt'd ur the cc,vPrage pl·riod 
may lw ronllnuouco. In <.;oi!Jf' polit irs. 
tlw inrrt•ast•d adcht,nnal prPmium 
hend1l is not paid out 111 eash upon 
convt·rs1on to \\'hoiP !Jfp After the con· 
n·rsion, the nonfor Jt·itLirt' values oft hr 
wholt• hfP pol1rv n.:.-. ··r rnav not ht· 
fl\11 1wntr•d by ih,• • .. ·1!11(· ~-r 1 his acldi 
titl!• d J!lt'll)lllll'l '"'!. ,., ('~)fl\"•''"tl'll 

poL~·u·"l provide •"•:,\. ·, ~:u·c \';tilll·•; 

''< i! · 11 1~ -·;~n·s'-' "'II 

·, • :·ntllll grudw!l · 
:t •.l1- ;tt~ !:ttonal 
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the life of the policy. Some modified 
premium whole life policies offer the 
policyholdt•r the option to "roll Ovrt" 
the value and start u new modlfi!!d 
premium whole life policy instead of 
continuing on the original contrnct. In 
this case and depending upon the 
policy design, some or all of the 
augmented ptemium from the origi-na-l 
coverage is used as the initial larg~ 
pn•miurn for tlw ·nt·W covt•rug<·. t hu~. il 
i~ possible tor a modified premium 
whole life in•u• a nee policy to In! rolled 
ovrr several times so that it in e1'ft·cl 
het·omes a Sl'ries of renewable modified 
premium lift' insurance policies. 

(.II Any ot.ln:r life insurance product 
~·hith is ~irnilar to a modifiC'cl premium 
hfe product nnd is determined by the 
I nsurann:! Commissioner to hf' a 
modified premium life product will be 
subject to tlw requirements of this 
chapter. 

(h) Bxplarwtion. To avoid possihiti­
tie'-i nf misundt>rst:tndin~ of thf• n:t't urP 
of rnodifiPd premium life products, 
surh produt'ls ruust he carefully suit! 
and fully ••xplained. This sPct ion srts 
forth n1inimum disclosure n•quir"c­
nwnts; ulso, this SPction sets forth 
minimum nonforfejture rcquir·Pmt_\nts 
for modified premium life products. 

fd Minimum disclosure rC(Jtlire­
mertts for modified premium life prod-
uCt.... · 

Ill All advt•rtisements, sale' malNi 
uls, and sal<'s presentations of modi 
fietl premiuln life products which fail 
to fully and fairly inform an applicant 
or prospet:ti\'c insurPd as to future• 
prelnium l'hangt•s. ht•nefit s, and rt'­
latt:d optlol\'->l'OilSllt.Utl H misn'ill't' . ..,Pn· 
t at.1on as to matt·! i:tl I ,1ct.s. No mi'1lt•ad­
ing stalt·nwnt.s or f}ll~'"itions shall ht• 
mmle in tlt•fining or ~om paring ot Jwt 
lypt•s of lift' insuranrP products; 
furltwrtnorc, colnparison used ih ~nlK·­
itatiom; shaH ht• an·urah•, ft.1ir, lind 
nHnph•t(~. 

(2) A disclosure shall be included in 
conspicuo_us print on th~ first pal{(' or 
S(Je~lflcat"'"" page of the policy indi­
catmg that, if the policy is t<>rminated 
prior to u certain poliry year, all or a 
port1?n nf the additional first-year 
ptemmm w1ll hi' forfeited. 

(:l) _lf_tlw policy contains a provi,ion 
perrmt.t111g \·oluntury addil ional de­
posits.as provided for by Chapter 86 <1! 
th1s l1tle (rt>latmg to jitemilltn and 
retirPm<•nt tl<·pr"it funds!. th~ haturP 
thereof ,,hall he disdosPd. Tlw dis· 
closu_r<_' shali dLti.ib"lJJ.sh such rlrposit 
prm·1s1on ~ nd the insured's rights 
thcr.,unriPr from the additional firsl­
yeat premium. 

. 14) .\~h•.·n_an annuity policy or ridet 
1~ ~whctll'd 111 contH'(~tion with a modi· 
fi<•d premiunt hfe product: tlw follow­
ing r1 quin·nh"nt~ npply: 

(:1 Th., n.llun· of th" annuity rover-­
agl' 'hall l·r· d · o:lo't•d The di~rlo"'"' 
shall dislint-,'llh/1 tllP annUlt)'· r'O\'(•tagt· 
and the annu~: ant's right:, tll~,n~utuiPJ 
fr~un thP .ntchtional tirst·}t·ar prP 
fllllllll. 

(ill If providi:d by a policy, the 
nnnu1ty n>vPrage 'hall providt• 
annUity lwnehts which are availahl" 
undt>r annwty polidl's gcnrraHv 
off•·n•rl hy tlw insurPr; if provid•·d hv it 
nd<·r. tlw rid~·' shall provide ~tTlllU.il v 
bt'Jll•fit~ wh1ch ure 1\ ailablf• und~r 
au nutty ridL"rzo g-t nerally offt•rPd hv the 
J[IL \ITl'J" • ~ 
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(iii) The continuation of the annuity 
covrragP mu~l he indPpendent of the 
continuntion of t.he modified premium 
life product. If the annuity covera!(P is 
provided by a rider. the rider shall 
contain a riglit of conversion to an 
annuity policy which. at the option of 
the insured. provide~s brndits that are 
no less favorable than those contained 
in the converted annuity rider. 

(iv) Any illustrative disclosure con­
cerning the annuity coverage shall be 
based on the guaranteed interest rate 
or rates provided by the annuity policy 
or rider. Excess interest payments 
provided by the annuity policy or ridN 
can be illustrated separately but only 
in addition to the guaranteed rate 
illustration. 

(fi) The term "deposit" shall not be 
used in referring to the additional first· 
year premium. 

· lo) A disclosure form shall hP !(Jven 
to evpry pro~pective purchaser of a 
modified premium life product no laf.er 
than the limP the application form is 
signed hy the applicant. The disclosure 
form shall be in addition to but ran be 
included in the disclosure statement 
requir<•d by Chapter R3 of this title 
(relating to disclosures in solicitation 
of life insurance). The form shall 
contain amounts pertaining to. the 
specific case and shall show the 
following amounts for each of the fi<".t 
20 policy years and representative 
policy years thereafter sufficient to 
clearly illustrate the premium and 
benefit patterns. The disclosure form 
must also contain the following: 

li) The amount of the annual premi· 
urn payable for the modified premium 
lifP policy, earh insurancr riUrr, and 
any annuity policy or rider, with the 
premium amount for each shown 
separately. 

Iii! The guaranteed amounts pay· 
able upon death at the end of the 
policy year as provided by the _mmh· 
fied premium life policy, each msur· 
ance rider, and any annuity policy or 
rider. with the amount for each shown 
separately. 

(iii) The guaranteed cash surrender 
values at the end of the year of the 
modified premium life policy, each 
insurance rider. and any annuity 
policy or rider, with values for each 
shown separately. Any guaranteed 
endowment amounts provided by the 
modified premium life policy shall not 
be included in the illustrated cash 
values. 

RULES /\NO REGULATIONS 

(iv) The cash dividends payable at 
the end of the policy year as provided 
hy th<' modified premium life policy, 
each insurance rider. and any annuity 
policy or rider, with the amount for 
each shown separately. Dividends 
need not be illustrated bevond the 
20th policy year. ·' -

(v) Guaranteed endowment 
amounts payable under the modified 
premium life policy. 

171 If the modified premium life 
policy provides for policy change 
options, the nature of each option shall 
be disclosed. Such disclosure sha II set 
forth a reasonably complete explana­
tion of the options, including the guar· 
anteed premium rates and insurance 
benefits. This disclosure must be 
provided to the prospective purchaser 
no later than the time the application 
form is sig-ned by the applicant and 
can he included in the disclosure state­
ment required by Chapter 83 of this 
title (relating to disclosures in solicita­
tion of life insurance). 

IRI In the case of replacement sir ua· 
t ions. the prrmium changes and policy 
chanfie options shall he fully disclosed 
I o the prospective purchaser. This 
disclosure can be included in the 
replacement statement required by 
Chopter 81 of this title !relating to 
replacement of life insurance and 
annuity policies). In addition. a copy of 
the disclosure statement required by 
paragraph (6) of this subsection shall 
be furnish~ to the replaced company 
on request. 

(d) trrtifications and maintenance 
of disclosure form delivery. 

! II Thr agent. or rpprr•sentative shall 
submit to the insurer with or as a part 
of the insuronce application a state­
nwnt, signed by him. certifying that 
the written disclosure form was given 
no later than the time that the applica­
tion was signed by the applicant. 

121 The insurer shall maintain the 
ngent or representative's certification 
of disclosure-form delivery in its 
appropriate files for at least three 
years or until the conclusion of the 
next succeeding regular examination 
by the Insurance Department of its 
domicile. which<•ver is later. The 
absence of th<· certification from the 
appropriate files of the insurer shall 
constitute prima facie evidence that no 
disclosure form was provided to the 
applicant of a modified premium life 
policy. 

(e) Mirzimum nonforfeiture require­
ments for modified premium life prod­
,ucts. 

(I) In the case of modified premium 
term insurance, nonforfeiture values 
shall be at least as great as those 
calculated by applying section 410A of 
The Insurance Company Law of 1921 
(40 P. S. § 510.1) to the policy. The 
present value of the future guaranteed 
benefits used in the calculation of the 
adjusted premiums for the policy shall 
be equal to: to present value, at the 
date of issue of the policy, of the sum 
of the guaranteed term insurance 
benefits provided for by the policy up 
to the end of the term period plus the 
pure endowment benefit provided for 
by the policy at the end of the term 
period. 

(2) In the case of modified premium 
whole life insurance, minimum nonfor­
feiture value requirements shall be 
determined by applying section 410A 
of The Insurance Company Law of 
1921 (40 P. S. § 510.1) separately to 
the term coverage period and the 
whole life coverage period. If a pure 
endowment is not paid out in cash to 
the policyh"ldt•r upon conversion to 
whole life in~urnnce. minimum nonfor· 
feit.ure valll''" for the whole life insur· 
a nee policy shall be not less than those 
computed under section 41 OA of The 
Insurance Company Law of 1921 (40 
P S. § 510. II for the whole life 
insurance coverage plus the value of 
the pure endowment benefit accumu­
lated at a rate of interest specified in 
the policy for accumulating that 
benefit. 

(3) In the case of modified premium 
life products which differ from those 
described in paragraphs (II and 121 of 
subeection (a) of this section. the 
procedures for determining minimum 
nonforfeiture value requirements 
under this subsection shall be consist· 
ent with the requirements of para­
graphs (I) and 121 of this subsection 
and the intent of section 410A of The 
Insurance Company Law of 1921 (40 
P. S. § 510.11. 

141 In no event shall the calculation 
procedures set forth in this subsection 
be construed as permitting any 
nonforfeiture value lower than those 
which would otherwise be required in 
the absence of this subsection. 

(f) Fraternal benefit .<ocietie.<. The 
provisions of this sect ion apply to all 
fraternal benefit societies authorized 
to transact the business of life insur­
ance in this Commonwealth. 

(g) Compliance. Only those modified 
premium life insurance policies which 
are in complete compliance with there­
quirements of this subchapter may be 
sold and issued in this Comonwealth. 

(h) Penalties. Failure to comply with 
provisions of this section will subject 
the viola tor to penalties prescribed by 
section 354 of The Insurance Company 
Law of 1921 (40 P. S. § 477b) and all 
other statutes and regulations which 
apply. 

[I' a R. llrl(" N n 79·1 Hf<O Filrd n~,·rmhf'r 2ft I t)7~ 
9.00 II rn f 

PENNSYLVANIA BULLETIN, VOL. 9, NO. 52, SATURDAY, DECEMBER 29,1979 

65x 



Hal M. Wolfe 
14 Cobblestone Court 
Howell, New Jersey 
07731 

November 3, 1980 

In June: of 1980 I had my whole life insurance replaced with 
Modified Premium whole life through Charter Security Life Insurance 
Company. The insurance amount remained the same but the options 
for the use of your money are more towards the consumer's favor. 
I am now able to use my sach value accumulating in the policy 
without having to pay interest as was the case with my Aetna and 
Prudential Policies. Should I use any part of ~ny ·savings it is 
not deducted from the face amount of my policy as it would have 
w-ffh my old policies. Also in the event of my death my family 
will receive the face amount PLUS all savings which doubles my 
death benefit. Aetna and Prudential would of only paid the face 
amount and my cash value would have not been paid to my family! 
Please investigate my old companies as to why they rip-off the 
public like they do. Also, my new agent educated me to the true 
differences in the insurance industry. 
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